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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Audit Committee 
TXN Bancshares, Inc. 
Hondo, Texas 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of TXN Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary, which 
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated 
statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of TXN Bancshares, Inc. and its subsidiary as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and 
the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of TXN Bancshares, Inc., and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about TXN Bancshares, Inc.’s 
ability to continue as a going concern for one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements 
are issued. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements. 



In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:  

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of TXN Bancshares, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about TXN Bancshares, Inc.’s ability to continue as a going concern for
a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole. The supplementary consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole 

San Angelo, Texas 
April 16, 2025 
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December 31, (in thousands) 2024 2023

Assets
  Cash and Cash Equivalents
    Cash and due from banks 12,377$         8,862$           
    Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions 7,679             31,151           
          Total cash and cash equivalents 20,056           40,013           

  Securities available-for-sale, at estimated market value 212,348         229,377         
  Securities held-to-maturity, at cost 11,120           11,779           

  Loans, net 309,794         296,676         

  Premises and equipment, net 29,646           28,485           
  Accrued interest receivable 3,920             3,588             
  Other real estate owned, net 920 800 
  Cash surrender value of life insurance 16,194           15,736           
  Goodwill 120 120 
  Core deposit intangible 419 486 
  Restricted stock 3,223             2,731             
  Other assets 3,693             4,072             

Total assets 611,453$       633,863$       

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
  Deposits:
    Non-interest bearing 150,395$       163,274$       
    Interest bearing 409,778         387,075         
          Total deposits 560,173         550,349         

  Note payable 5,450             6,095             
  Other borrowings, net 17,144           47,353           
  Accrued interest payable 296 344 
  Other liabilities 868 1,290             
          Total liabilities 583,931         605,431         

  Shareholders' Equity
    Common stock, par value $1 per share: authorized 10,000,000 shares; 1,351,240 
      issued; 1,276,433 outstanding in 2024 and 1,294,433 outstanding in 2023 1,351             1,351             
    Additional paid-in capital 22,190           22,190           
    Treasury stock (at cost), 74,807 shares in 2024 and 56,807 shares in 2023 (3,890)            (2,954)            
    Retained earnings 37,940           35,431           
    Accumulated other comprehensive loss (30,069)          (27,586)          
          Total shareholders' equity 27,522           28,432           

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 611,453$       633,863$       

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

TXN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Years Ended December 31st (in thousands) 2024 2023

Interest Income
  Loans, including fees 21,213$         19,224$         
  Investment securities:
    Taxable 2,614             2,904             
    Tax-exempt 2,383             2,462             
  Other 2,657             600 
          Total interest income 28,867           25,190           

Interest Expense
  Deposits 11,228           8,837             
  Borrowings 3,046             1,918             
          Total interest expense 14,274           10,755           

          Net interest income 14,593           14,435           

Provision for credit losses - loans 223 213 
Provision for credit losses - unfunded commitments (84) 343
          Total provision for credit losses 139 556 

          Net interest income after provision for credit losses 14,454           13,879           

Non-Interest Income
  Service charges on deposit accounts 1,399             1,316             
  ATM and debit card service charges 1,723             1,587             
  Service fees 120 125 
  Investment brokerage fees 198 129 
  Gain (loss) on sale of available-for-sale securities - 19 
  Gain on sale of assets - 112
  Capital stock dividend 193 136 
  Earnings on cash surrender value insurance 458 397 
  Other 269 456 
          Total non-interest income 4,360             4,277             

Non-interest Expense
  Salaries, wages and benefits 8,089             8,037             
  Occupancy and equipment 2,570             1,536             
  Professional services 1,244             1,181             
  Data and item processing 1,754             1,775             
  Loss and/or write down on sale of assets 145 - 
  Core deposit intangible amortization 67 67 
  Other 1,784             1,827             
          Total non-interest expense 15,653           14,423           

Income before income taxes 3,161             3,733             

State income tax expense 35 5 

Net income 3,126$           3,728$           

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

TXN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Years Ended December 31, (in thousands) 2024 2023

Net Income 3,126$           3,728$           

Other Items of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
  Adjustment for (gain) loss on sale of available-for-sale securities - (19) 
  Unrealized holding gain (loss) arising during period (2,483)            8,516 
          Total other items of comprehensive income (loss) (2,483)            8,497             

Comprehensive income (loss) 643$              12,225$         

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

TXN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES



See notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 (in thousands)

 Common 
Stock 

Additional 
Paid-In 
Capital

Treasury 
Stock 

Retained 
Earnings

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Loss

Total 
Shareholders' 

Equity

Balance at January 1, 2023 1,351$          22,190$        (2,999)$        32,869$       (36,083)$           17,328$         

  Net income - - - 3,728           - 3,728 

  Change in other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - 8,497 8,497 

  Distributions to shareholders - - - (1,166)          - (1,166) 

  Treasury stock purchased - - - - - - 

  Treasury stock sold - - 45 - - 45 

Balance at December 31, 2023 1,351           22,190          (2,954)          35,431         (27,586)             28,432           

  Net income - - - 3,126           - 3,126 

  Change in other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - (2,483) (2,483) 

  Distributions to shareholders - - - (617) - (617) 

  Treasury stock purchased - - (936)            - - (936) 

  Treasury stock sold - - - - - - 

Balance at December 31, 2024 1,351$          22,190$        (3,890)$        37,940$       (30,069)$           27,522$         

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

TXN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Years Ended December 31, (in thousands) 2024 2023

Operating Activities
  Net income 3,126$           3,728$           
  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
    provided by operating activities:
      Net amortization of investment premiums 1,926             2,147             
      Net accretion of premiums due to purchase (205)              (622)              
      Amortization of core deposit intangible 67                 67                 
      Depreciation and amortization 1,262             502               
      Provision for credit losses - loans 223               213               
      Provision for credit losses - unfunded commitments (84)                343               
      Loss (gain) on sale of securities -                (19)                
      Gain on sale and donation of fixed assets -                (69)                
      Restricted stock dividends (101)              (61)                
      Earnings on cash surrender value of life insurance (458)              (397)              
      Net change in:
        Accrued interest receivable (332)              219               
        Accrued interest payable (48)                254               
        Other assets and other liabilities (79)                670               
                    Net cash provided by operating activities 5,297             6,975             

Investing Activities
  Activity in securities available-for-sale:   
    Sales proceeds from investment securities -                24,358           
    Maturities, prepayments and calls 219,484         232,539         
    Purchases (206,205)        (210,295)        
  Activity in securities held-to-maturity:   
    Maturities, prepayments and calls -                549               
     Purchases -                (295)              
  Sale of restricted stock 68                 330               
  Purchase of restricted stock (459)              (1,500)            
  Net change in loans (13,202)          (18,016)          
  Purchase of bank premises and equipment (2,423)            (14,536)          
  Proceeds from sale of bank premises and equipment -                390               
  Purchase of cash surrender value insurance -                (3,000)            
  Proceeds from the sale of other real estate owned -                1,300             
                    Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (2,737)            11,824           

Financing Activities
  Net change in deposits 9,824             (41,771)          
  Proceeds from borrowings 30,000           45,000           
  Payments on borrowings (60,143)          (137)              
  Proceeds from notes payable 936               -                
  Payments on notes payable (1,581)            (1,535)            
  Distributions paid to shareholders (617)              (1,166)            
  Purchase of treasury stock (936)              -                
  Sale of treasury stock -                45                 
                    Net cash provided by financing activities (22,517)          436               

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (19,957)          19,235           

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 40,013           20,778           

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 20,056$         40,013$         

TXN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

TXN Bancshares, Inc. and Subsidiaries (the “Company”) provides loan and banking services to
consumers and commercial customers at branch locations throughout Medina, Atascosa, Uvalde,
Real, and Bandera Counties in South Texas.  The accounting and reporting policies of the Company
conform with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and
to general practices of the banking industry. Policies and practices which materially affect the
determination of financial position, results of operations and cash flows are summarized as follows:

Charter Conversion

In August 2023, TXN Bank (“TXN”) converted to a Texas state banking association.  As such, TXN
Bank is now regulated by the Texas Department of Banking and the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas,
rather than the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency.  This conversion was made for operational
reasons and did not have any impact on the financial results of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2023.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of TXN Bancshares, Inc. and the
accounts of its wholly-owned subsidiary, TXN Bank.  All significant intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP, management is required to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the
date of the consolidated balance sheet and reported amounts of consolidated revenues and
expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Material
estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the
determination of the allowance for credit losses and the estimate of the fair value of securities.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Company’s activities are with customers located in Medina, Atascosa, Bexar, Uvalde,
Real, and Bandera Counties in South Texas.  The types of securities that the Company invests in
are described in Note 2.  The types of lending that the Company engages in are described in Note 3.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated financial statements of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents are defined as those amounts included in the consolidated balance sheet captions “cash
and due from banks”, “Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions” and “federal funds
sold”.  Generally, federal funds are purchased and sold in one-day periods. The Company considers
all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
As of December 31, 2024, the FDIC Deposit insurance coverage was $250,000.
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – continued 
 
The majority of cash and cash equivalents of the Company are maintained with major financial 
institutions in the United States.  As such, balances in transaction accounts at these institutions and 
at the Federal Home Loan Bank may exceed amounts covered by federal deposit insurance; 
however, these deposits typically may be redeemed upon demand and therefore, bear minimal risk.  
As of December 31, 2024, the maximum credit risk exposure is $2,997.  In monitoring this credit risk, 
the Company periodically evaluates the stability of the financial institutions with which it has deposits. 
 
Investment Securities 
 
Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are 
classified as “held-to-maturity” and are recorded at amortized cost. 
 
Securities not classified as held-to-maturity, are classified as “available-for-sale” and recorded at fair 
value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in accumulated other 
comprehensive loss. 
 
Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized as interest income using the interest method over 
the terms of the securities.  Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date 
and are determined using the specific identification method. 
 
Mortgage-backed securities represent participating interests in pools of long-term first mortgage 
loans originated and serviced by the issuers of the securities.  Market interest rate fluctuations can 
affect the prepayment speed of principal and the yield on the security. 
 
Loans 
 
Loans that management has the ability and intent to hold to maturity are stated at the amount of 
unpaid principal, less the allowance for credit losses and net deferred loan fees.  Interest is calculated 
by using the simple interest method on daily balances of the principal amount outstanding. 
 
The Company conducts most of its banking operations, especially its lending activities, within the 
geographic area where it is located.  As a result, the Company and its borrowers may be vulnerable 
to the consequences of changes in the local economy.  The concentrations of credit by type of loan 
are set forth in Note 3 – Loans. 
 
Commitment fees on loans with term lives in excess of one year are deferred and amortized over the 
lives of the related loans. 
 
Loans are charged off or accrual of interest is discontinued, if, after considering economic and 
business conditions and collection efforts, it is found that the borrower’s financial condition is such 
that collection of interest or principal in a timely manner is doubtful.  Past due status is based on 
contractual terms of the loan. 
 
All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on nonaccrual or charged off is reversed 
against interest income.  The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-
recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual.  Loans are returned to accrual status when all 
principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are 
reasonably assured. 
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – continued 
 
 
Allowance for Credit Losses 
 
As further discussed below, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2016-13, 
“Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial 
Instruments,” on January 1, 2023.  Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 326 (“ASC 326”) 
replaced the previous “incurred loss” model for measuring credit losses, which encompassed 
allowances for current known and inherent losses within the portfolio, with an “expected loss” model, 
which encompasses allowances for losses expected to be incurred over the life of the portfolio.  The 
new current expected credit loss (“CECL”) model requires the measurement of all expected credit 
losses for financial assets measured at amortized cost and certain off-balance sheet credit exposures 
based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts. In 
connection with the adoption of ASC 326, the Company revised certain accounting policies and 
implemented certain accounting policy elections. The revised accounting policies are described below. 
 
Allowance for Credit Losses –  Available-for-Sale Securities 
 
Management will assess available-for-sale securities in an unrealized loss position whether (i) the 
Company intends to sell or (ii) it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the 
security before recovery of its amortized cost basis.  If either case is affirmative, any previously 
recognized allowances are charged-off and the security's amortized cost is written down to fair value 
through income.  If neither case is affirmative, the security is evaluated to determine whether the 
decline in fair value has resulted from credit losses or other factors. 
 
In making this assessment, management considers the extent to which fair value is less than 
amortized cost, any changes to the rating of the security by a rating agency and any adverse 
conditions specifically related to the security, among other factors.  If this assessment indicates that 
a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows expected to be collected from the security are 
compared to the amortized cost basis of the security.  If the present value of cash flows expected 
to be collected is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an allowance for credit 
losses is recorded for the credit loss, limited by the amount that the fair value is less than the 
amortized cost basis.  Any impairment that has not been recorded through an allowance for credit 
losses is recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income. Adjustments to the allowance 
are reported in the consolidated statement of income as a component of credit loss expense. 
Management has made the accounting policy election to exclude accrued interest receivable on 
available-for-sale securities from the estimate of credit losses.  Available-for-sale securities are 
charged-off against the allowance or, in the absence of any allowance, written down through income 
when deemed uncollectible by management or when either of the aforementioned criteria regarding 
intent or requirement to sell is met.  As a result, no allowance for credit losses was recorded on 
available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2024 nor 2023. 
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – continued 
 
Allowance for Credit Losses – Held to Maturity Securities 
 
The allowance for credit losses on held-to-maturity securities is a contra-asset valuation account, 
calculated in accordance with ASC 326, that is deducted from the amortized cost basis of held-to-
maturity securities to present management’s best estimate of the net amount expected to be 
collected. Held-to-maturity securities are charged-off against the allowance when deemed 
uncollectible by management.  Adjustments to the allowance are reported in the income statement 
as a component of credit loss expense.  Management measures expected credit losses on held-to-
maturity securities on a collective basis by major security type with each type sharing similar risk 
characteristics and considers historical credit loss information that is adjusted for current conditions 
and reasonable and supportable forecasts.  Management has made the accounting policy election 
to exclude accrued interest receivable on held-to-maturity securities from the estimate of credit 
losses. 
 
With regard to securities issued by States and political subdivisions, management considers (i) 
historical loss rates for given bond municipalities, (ii) whether issuers continue to make timely 
principal and interest payments under the contractual terms of the securities, (iii) internal forecasts 
and (iv) whether or not such securities are guaranteed by the Texas Permanent School Fund (PSF) 
or pre-refunded by the issuers. 
 
Securities classified as held-to-maturity had a book value of $11,120 and $11,779 or 4% and 4% of 
the total portfolio as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  All were Texas Municipals with 
the majority comprising local municipalities in Hondo (City of Hondo and Hondo Economic 
Development). 
 
Historical loss rates associated with Texas Municipals similar to those in the held-to-maturity portfolio 
have generally not been significant.  Furthermore, as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, 
there were no past due principal or interest payments associated with these securities.  Accordingly, 
no allowance for credit losses has been recorded for securities classified as held-to-maturity as there 
were no current expectation of credit losses related to these securities. 
 
Allowance for Credit Losses – Loans 
 
The allowance for credit losses on loans is a valuation account, calculated in accordance with ASC 
326, that is deducted from the amortized cost basis of loans to present management’s best estimate 
of the net amount expected to be collected.  Loans are fully or partially charged-off against the 
allowance when deemed uncollectible by management.  Expected recoveries do not exceed the 
aggregate of amounts previously charged-off and expected to be charged-off.  Adjustments to the 
allowance are reported in the statement of income as a component of credit loss expense.  
Management has made the accounting policy election to exclude accrued interest receivable on 
loans from the estimate of credit losses.  Further information regarding our policies and methodology 
used to estimate the allowance for credit losses on loans is presented in Note 3 – Loans. 
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – continued 
 
On January 1, 2023 the Company adopted the provisions of ASC 326 using the modified 
retrospective method for all financial assets measured at amortized cost and off-balance-sheet credit 
exposures.  Based on the calculation of the allowance for credit losses at January 1, 2023, no 
additional adjustment was required to adopt ASC 326.  Operating results for periods after January 1, 
2023 are presented in accordance with ASC 326. 
 
Allowance for Credit Losses on Off-Balance Sheet Credit Exposures 
 
The Company estimates expected credit losses over the contractual period in which the Company is 
exposed to credit risk via a contractual obligation to extend credit, unless that obligation is 
unconditionally cancellable by the Company.  The allowance for credit losses on off-balance sheet 
credit exposures is adjusted through credit loss expense. The estimate includes consideration of the 
likelihood that funding will occur and an estimate of expected credit losses on commitments expected 
to be funded over its estimated life.  Management has estimated an expected loss of $363 and $447 
as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, and is included in other liabilities. 
 
Transfers of Financial Assets 
 
Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been 
relinquished. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be relinquished when the assets have 
been legally isolated from the Company, the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that 
constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and the 
Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets. 
 
Financial Instruments 
 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, 
including commercial letters of credit and standby letters of credit.  Such financial instruments are 
recorded when they are funded. 
 
Premises and Equipment 
 
Land is carried at cost.  Buildings and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation 
computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. 
 
 Buildings and improvements 5-40 years 
 Furniture and equipment 3-10 years 
 
When an asset is sold, retired, or otherwise disposed of, cost and related accumulated depreciation 
are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in current operations.  
Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred and expenditures for renewals and 
betterments are capitalized. 
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – continued 
 
Other Real Estate Owned 
 
Assets acquired through foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less estimated selling costs at 
the date of foreclosure.  All write-downs based on the asset’s fair value at the date of acquisition are 
charged to the allowance for credit losses.  After foreclosure, property held-for-sale is carried at the 
lower of the new cost basis or fair value less costs to sell and depreciation is not recorded.  
Impairment losses on property to be held and used are measured as the amount by which the carrying 
amount of a property exceeds its fair value and depreciated based on the remaining useful life.  Costs 
of significant property improvements are capitalized, whereas costs relating to holding property are 
expensed.  Valuations are periodically performed by management, and any subsequent write-downs 
are recorded as a charge to operations, if necessary, to reduce the carrying value of a property to 
the lower of its cost or fair value less costs to sell. 
 
Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance 
 
The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain officers.  Life insurance policies are 
initially recorded at cost at the date of purchase.  Subsequent to purchase, the policies are 
periodically adjusted for changes in the contract value.  The adjustment to contract value increases 
or decreases the carrying value of the policies and is recorded as income or expense on the 
consolidated statements of income. 
 
Goodwill 
 
Goodwill arises from business combinations and is generally determined as the excess of the fair 
value of the consideration transferred, plus the fair value of any non-controlling interests in the 
acquiree, over the fair value of the net assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition 
date.  A bargain purchase occurs when consideration is less than the fair value of net assets.  
Goodwill acquired in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful 
life are not amortized but tested for impairment at least annually or more frequently if events and 
circumstances indicate that a goodwill impairment test should be performed.  The Company does not 
believe goodwill to be impaired as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. 
 
Restricted Stock 
 

Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB”) Stock – The Company is a member of the FHLB system. 
Members are required to own a certain amount of stock based on the level of borrowings 
and other factors and may invest in additional amounts.  FHLB stock is carried at cost, 
classified as a restricted security, and periodically evaluated for impairment based on 
ultimate recovery of par value.  Both cash and stock dividends are reported as income.  FHLB 
stock had a carrying value of $1,932 and $1,831 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. 
 
Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) Stock – The Company is a member of its regional Federal 
Reserve Bank.  FRB stock is carried at cost, classified as a restricted security, and 
periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value.  Both cash 
and stock dividends are reported as income.  FRB stock had a carrying value of $1,024 and 
$633 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – continued 
 

The Independent Bankers (‘TIB”) Capital Fund Stock – The Company is a member of the 
TIB system.  TIB stock is carried at cost, classified as a restricted security, and periodically 
evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery of par value.  Both cash and stock 
dividends are reported as income.  TIB stock had a carrying value of $267 and $267 as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

 
Income Taxes 
 
The Company and its principal subsidiary, TXN Bank will file a consolidated corporate federal income 
tax return. The Company elected to be taxed as a Sub-Chapter S Corporation under the Internal 
Revenue Code, effective January 1, 2010. Under those provisions, the Company’s income, 
deductions, losses, and credits flow directly to the shareholders.  The Company does pay franchise 
taxes which are considered state income taxes on the consolidated statements of income. 
 
The Company is subject to routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no 
audits for any tax periods in progress.  The Company’s management believes it is no longer subject 
to income tax examinations for years prior to 2021. 
 
The Company pays Texas Franchise Taxes which are considered state income taxes under GAAP.  
These are separately stated on the consolidated statements of income. 
 
Retirement Plans 
 
Employee 401(k) and profit-sharing plan expense is the amount of employer contributions.  
 
Loss Contingencies 
 
Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are 
recorded as liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable, and an amount or range of loss can be 
reasonably estimated.  Management does not believe there now are such matters that will have a 
material effect on the financial statements. 
 
Comprehensive Income 
 
Components of comprehensive income are net income and all other non-owner changes in equity.  
The only component of other comprehensive income consists of net unrealized holding gains and 
losses on available-for-sale securities. 
 
Treasury Stock 
 
Common stock shares repurchased are recorded as treasury stock at cost.  At the date of subsequent 
reissue, treasury stock is reduced by the cost of such stock based on the first-in-first-out method with 
any excess proceeds credited to additional paid-in capital. 
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – continued 
 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information for years ended December 31:

2024 2023

Paid interest on deposits 11,280$          8,601$           
Paid interest on borrowings 3,107$           1,965$           
Cash paid for taxes 17$                5$                  

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions for years ended December 31:

2024 2023

Loan balances transferred to other real estate 120$              -$                
 

 
2. Investment Securities 

 
The following tables summarize the amortized cost and market value of securities available-for-sale 
and securities held-to-maturity at December 31, 2024 and 2023 and the corresponding amounts of 
gross unrealized gains and losses recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). 
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Investment securities available-for-sale consisted of the following:
Gross Gross Estimated

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market
Cost Gains Losses Value

December 31, 2024

Mortgage-backed securities 109,957$        -$               14,945$          95,012$          
Corporate bonds 5,002             -                 860                4,142             
U.S. agency securities 3,439             -                 293                3,146             
State and political subdivisions 124,019          2                    13,973            110,048          

          Total 242,417$        2$                  30,071$          212,348$        

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

Cost Gains Losses Value
December 31, 2023

Mortgage-backed securities 120,298$        -$               14,335$          105,963$        
Corporate bonds 5,003             -                 966                4,037             
U.S. agency securities 3,420             -                 340                3,080             
State and political subdivisions 128,242          2                    11,947            116,297          

          Total 256,963$        2$                  27,588$          229,377$         
 
 
 

2. Investment Securities – continued 
 

Investment securities held-to-maturity consisted of the following:

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Market

Cost Gains Losses Value
December 31, 2024

State and political subdivisions 11,120$          -$               -$               11,120$          

          Total 11,120$          -$               -$               11,120$          

December 31, 2023

State and political subdivisions 11,779$          -$               -$               11,779$          

          Total 11,779$          -$               -$               11,779$           
 
 
The proceeds from the sales of securities and the associated gains and losses are listed below: 
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2024 2023

Sale proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities -$                24,358$          
Gross gains on sale of available-for-sale securities -$                165$               
Gross losses on sale of available-for-sale securities -$                146$                
 
The amortized cost and estimated market value of securities at December 31, 2024, by contractual 
maturities, are shown below.  Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities if borrowers 
have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 
 
Investment securities available-for-sale: 

Estimated
Amortized Market

Cost Value

Due in one year or less 3,804$            3,781$            
Due in one to five years 18,296            17,401            
Due in five to ten years 54,384            48,524            
Due in over ten years or more 55,976            47,630            

132,460          117,336          
Mortgage-backed securities 109,957          95,012            

          Total 242,417$        212,348$         
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. Investment Securities – continued 
 
Investment securities held-to-maturity: 

Estimated
Amortized Market

Cost Value

Due in one year or less 639$              639$              
Due in one to five years 2,935             2,935             
Due in five to ten years 2,528             2,528             
Due in ten years or more 5,018             5,018             

          Total 11,120$          11,120$           
 
Investment securities were pledged to secure public deposits and for other purposes as required or 
permitted by law with a carrying value of $156,868 and $112,207 at December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. 
 
The following table shows investments gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by 
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized 
loss position, at December 31, 2024 and 2023. 
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Available-for-sale 

 

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

December 31, 2024

Mortgage-backed
  securities (107) 4,567$          36$              90,445$        14,908$        95,012$        14,944$        
Corporate bonds (2) -               -               4,142            860              4,142            860              
U.S. agency
  securities (2) -               -               3,146            293              3,146            293              
State and political
  subdivisions (397) 1,442            108              97,292          13,864          98,734          13,972          

          Total 6,009$          144$             195,025$      29,925$        201,034$      30,069$        

December 31, 2023

Mortgage-backed
  securities (105) -$             -$             105,963$      14,334$        105,963$      14,334$        
Corporate bonds (2) -               -               4,037            966              4,037            966              
U.S. agency
  securities (2) -               -               3,079            340              3,079            340              
State and political
  subdivisions (246) 507              18                102,000        11,928          102,507        11,946          

          Total 507$             18$              215,079$      27,568$        215,586$      27,586$        

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
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2. Investment Securities – continued 
 
The securities in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2024 and 2023 did not need an 
allowance for credit loss due to the current interest rate environment and not increased credit risk.  
As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the securities in an unrealized loss position consisted of 508 
and 355 securities, respectively. 
 
The Company monitors the credit quality of the available-for-sale debt securities through the use of 
credit ratings.  The Company monitors the credit ratings on a quarterly basis.  The following table 
summarizes the market value of available-for-sale debt securities at December 31, 2024, aggregated 
by credit quality indicators. 

Available-for-Sale
Rating Market Value

AAA 44,855$             
AA+ 87,852              
AA- 6,018                
AA 31,178              
A+ 4,572                
A 4,784                
A- 2,080                

BBB -                    
BBB- 393                   
NR 30,616              

     Total 212,348$            
 
Unrealized Losses 
 
The unrealized losses on the Company’s investments were caused by interest rate changes.  The 
Company purchased some of these investments at a premium relative to their face amount. At 
December 31, 2024, the outstanding premium related to investments in a loss position are as follows: 
 

Premium

Mortgage-backed securities 2,552$            
Corporate Securities 8$                  
Agencies 20$                  
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3. Loans 
 

Loans consisted of the following at December 31, 2024 2023

Commercial 30,735$          36,531$          
Real estate 241,779          219,037          
Agriculture 25,685            29,605            
Consumer and other 16,211            16,169            
          Total loans 314,410          301,342          

Less:  Discount on purchased loans -                 (139)                
Less:  Unearned loan fees (542)                (478)                
Less:  Allowance for credit losses (4,074)             (4,049)             

                 Total loans, net 309,794$         296,676$         

 
 
  
Loan Origination/Risk Management 
 
The Company has certain lending policies and procedures in place that are designed to maximize 
loan income within an acceptable level of risk.  Management reviews and approves these policies 
and procedures on an annual basis.  A reporting system supplements the review process by providing 
management with frequent reports related to loan production, loan quality, concentrations of credit, 
loan delinquencies, and non-performing and potential problem loans. 
 
Commercial loans are underwritten by evaluating and understanding the borrower’s ability to repay 
the loan through operating profitably and effectively growing its business. The Company’s 
management examines current and projected cash flows to determine the ability of the borrower to 
repay their obligations as agreed.  Commercial loans are primarily made based on the credit quality 
and global cash flows of the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the 
borrower. 
 
The cash flows of borrowers, however, may not be as expected and the collateral securing these 
loans may also fluctuate in value.  Most commercial loans are secured by the assets being financed 
or other business assets such as accounts receivable or inventory and may incorporate a personal 
guarantee to add strength to the credit and reduce the risk on a transaction to an acceptable level; 
however, some short-term loans may be made on an unsecured basis to the most credit worthy 
borrowers.  In the case of loans secured by accounts receivable, the availability of funds for the 
repayment of these loans may be substantially dependent on the ability of the borrower to collect 
amounts due from its customers.  Due to the nature of accounts receivable and inventory secured 
loans, the Company closely monitors credit availability and collateral through the use of various tools, 
including but not limited to borrowing-base formulas, periodic accounts receivable aging, periodic 
inventory audits, and/or collateral inspections. 
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3. Loans – continued 
 
Commercial real estate loans are subject to underwriting standards and processes similar to 
commercial loans.  Commercial real estate lending typically involves higher loan principal amounts 
and the repayment of these loans is generally largely dependent on the successful operation of the 
property securing the loan or the business conducted on the property securing the loan.  Commercial 
real estate loans may be more adversely affected by conditions in the real estate markets or in the 
general economy.  Management monitors and evaluates commercial real estate loans based on 
collateral and risk grade criteria.  As a general rule, the Company avoids financing special use 
projects unless strong secondary support is present to help mitigate risk. 
 
With respect to loans to developers and builders, the Company generally requires the borrower to 
have a proven record of success and an expertise in the building industry.  Construction loans are 
underwritten utilizing feasibility studies, independent appraisal reviews, sensitivity analysis of 
absorption and lease rates and financial analysis of the developers and property owners.  
Construction loans are generally based upon estimates of costs and value associated with the 
completed project.  These estimates may be inaccurate. 
 
Construction loans often involve the disbursement of substantial funds with repayment substantially 
dependent on the success of the ultimate project. Sources of repayment for these types of loans may 
be pre-committed permanent loans from approved long-term lenders, sales of developed property, 
or an interim loan commitment from the Company until permanent financing is obtained. These loans 
are closely monitored by on-site inspections and are considered to have higher risks than other real 
estate loans due to their ultimate repayment being sensitive to interest rate changes, governmental 
regulation of real property, general economic conditions and the availability of long-term financing. 
 
Consumer real estate loans are guided by the underwriting standards developed by the Federal 
National Mortgage Association for prime mortgages.  These standards place a premium on the 
borrower’s current ability to service debt and a proven track record of servicing debt in the past.  The 
Company’s policies and procedures discourage the underwriting of sub-prime mortgages. The 
Company periodically monitors its loans for deterioration in the borrower’s financial strength and 
deterioration in property values. 
 
The Company’s non-real estate consumer loans are based on the borrower’s proven earning capacity 
over the term of the loan. The Company monitors payment performance periodically for consumer 
loans to identify any deterioration in the borrower’s financial strength.  To monitor and manage 
consumer loan risk, policies and procedures are developed and modified, as needed, jointly by 
management and staff. This activity, coupled with a relatively small volume of consumer loans, 
minimizes risk.  
 
Agricultural loans are made to sound and prudent farmers and ranchers within the Company’s market 
area even though agriculture may be an unstable industry. In order to minimize risk, sound lending 
policies are extremely important, taking into consideration not only the value of collateral offered but 
also the performance history and anticipated cash flow from a given farming or ranching operation.  
All agricultural loan applications require a cash flow projection for the coming farming season, and 
the projection must show a margin between income and expense that is sufficient to repay the loan 
from normal farm operations. All agriculture loans will be supported by a perfected first security 
interest position in the products being produced. 
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3. Loans – continued 
 
The Company engages an external consulting firm to complete an independent loan review that 
reviews and validates the credit risk program on a periodic basis. Results of these reviews are 
presented to management and the Board of Directors.  The loan review process complements and 
reinforces the risk ratings and credit quality assessment decisions made by lenders and credit 
personnel, as well as the Company’s policies and procedures. 
 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company makes loans to executive officers and directors.  
These loans are made on substantially the same terms, including interest and collateral, as those 
prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other customers.  Loans to these related 
parties, including companies in which they are principal owners were $14,598 and $16,007 as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 
 
An age analysis of past due loans, segregated by class of loans, as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
were as follows: 

Recorded
Greater Investment

30-89 Days Than Total Total > 90 Days and
Past Due 90 Days Past Due Current Loans Still Accruing

Commercial 494$               -$                494$               30,241$          30,735$          -$                
Real estate 4,000              165                 4,165              237,614          241,779          165                 
Agriculture 181                 -                 181                 25,504            25,685            -                 
Consumer and
   other 222                 -                 222                 15,989            16,211            -                 

         Total 4,897$            165$               5,062$            309,348$         314,410$         165$               

Commercial 135$               -$                135$               36,396$          36,531$          -$                
Real estate 2,172              290                 2,462              216,575          219,037          290                 
Agriculture 13                  -                 13                  29,592            29,605            -                 
Consumer and
   other 143                 -                 143                 16,026            16,169            -                 

         Total 2,463$            290$               2,753$            298,589$         301,342$         290$               

December 31, 2024

December 31, 2023
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3. Loans – continued 
 
The following table details nonaccrual loans by segment for the years ended December 31: 
 

Non-accrual Non-accrual
with no with

Allowance Allowance

December 31, 2024

Commercial 21$                 -$                
Real estate 1,464$            -$                
Agriculture -$                -$                
Consumer and other -$                -$                

December 31, 2023

Commercial 223$               -$                
Real estate 231$               -$                
Agriculture -$                -$                
Consumer and other -$                16$                  
 
There was no material effect of not recognizing interest income on nonaccrual loans in accordance 
with the original terms during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 
 
Credit Quality Indicators 
 
As part of the on-going monitoring of the credit quality of the Company’s loan portfolio, the Company 
utilizes a risk grading system to assign a risk grade to each of its loans.  Accurate and timely credit 
grading is a primary component of an effective loan review system.  Loans are risk rated on a scale 
of 1 to 9.  A description of the general characteristics of the 9 risk ratings are as follows: 
 

Risk Rating 1 – PASS – Risk rating 1 includes any loan that is fully secured by TXN CD 
Deposits, U.S. Government agencies and any publicly traded stock that is properly 
margined. 
 
Risk Rating 2 – PASS – Risk rating 2 includes borrowers that have above average credit 
standards based on leverage, liquidity and debt service coverage ratios and having excellent 
management in critical areas. Overall financial ratios are considered acceptable. Borrowers 
in this category should be fairly well capitalized and have a history of positive financial 
results. This category would also include well-secured real estate construction loans. 
 
Risk Rating 3 – PASS – Risk rating 3 includes borrowers that have average leverage, 
liquidity and debt service coverage ratios and management that may be relatively 
inexperienced or untested. Overall financial ratios are considered acceptable. Borrowers in 
this category should be fairly well capitalized and have a history of positive financial results. 
This category would also include well-secured real estate construction loans. 
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3. Loans – continued 
 

Risk Rating 4 – PASS WATCH – Risk rating 4 includes borrowers that have average 
leverage, liquidity and debt service coverage ratios and management that may be relatively 
inexperienced or untested.  Overall financial ratios may not be as solid on an historical basis 
or may compare less favorably with industry standards but are still considered acceptable.  
Borrowers in this category should be fairly well capitalized and have a history of positive 
financial results. This category would also include well-secured real estate construction loans. 
 
Risk Rating 5 – Special Mention – Risk rating 5 includes borrowers that exhibit potential 
weaknesses/early warning signals that deserve close attention by the Bank. If left 
uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in the entity being unable to meet its 
financial obligations at some future date.  Characteristics of loans within this risk rating 
include but are not limited to very high and deteriorating leverage, uncertainty regarding 
future cash flow coverage / liquidity, questionable management, consistently late or 
inaccurate provision of required financial information or early material negative trend in 
profitability/losses. 
 
Risk Rating 6 – Substandard, Accrual – Risk rating 6 includes borrowers that exhibit well-
defined weaknesses, are classified substandard.  A substandard credit is inadequately 
protected by the current sound worthiness and paying capacity of the obligor or of the 
collateral pledged, if any.  Loans so classified must have a well-defined weakness or 
weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt.  Potential, but unrealized, weaknesses 
are not sufficient cause for a Substandard classification.  Loans in this category are 
characterized by one or more of the following: adverse trends and/or weakened financial 
conditions, insufficient cash flow and or working capital without adequate secondary sources 
of repayment, significant underwriting deficiencies and or collateral imperfections. These 
credits are characterized by the distinct possibility that the Bank will sustain some loss if 
deficiencies are not corrected.  
 
Risk Rating 7 – Substandard, Non-Accrual – Risk rating 7 includes borrowers that bear all 
of the characteristics of those in the “6” Substandard/Accrual category with the added 
characteristic of meeting the criteria for being placed on a non-accrual status: the loan or 
extension of credit is 90 or more days past due; it becomes evident that the borrower cannot 
or will not make payments or meet the terms for the renewal of a matured loan; anytime full 
repayment of principal and interest is not expected; and/or the borrower has filed bankruptcy 
and an approved plan of reorganization or liquidation of collateral is not anticipated to occur 
in the immediate future; or when foreclosure is initiated. 
 
Risk Rating 8 – Doubtful (Non-Accrual) – Risk rating 8 includes borrowers that have all 
the weaknesses inherent in a substandard classification with the added factor that the 
weaknesses are pronounced to the point where, based on current facts, conditions and 
values, collection or liquidation in full is highly questionable or improbable. While the 
possibility of loss is extremely high, the existence of specific pending factors, which may 
work to the obligor’s advantage, warrants that the estimated loss be deferred until a more 
exact status is determined. 
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3. Loans – continued 
 

Risk Rating 9 – Loss – Risk rating 9 would include loans to borrowers that are considered 
uncollectible and of such little value that its continuance as an active asset of the Bank is not 
warranted.  This classification does not mean that an asset has absolutely no recovery or 
salvage value, but simply that it is not practical or desirable to defer writing off all (or 
sometimes a portion) of a basically worthless asset, even though partial recovery may be 
affected in the future.  Losses should be taken in the period in which they surface as 
uncollectible. 

 
 

Consumer
Commercial Real Estate Agricultural and other Total

December 31, 2024

Credit Risk Profile by Internally Assigned Grade

Grade:
  Pass - Risk ratings 1-3 29,202$          239,521$         22,697$          16,211$          307,631$         
  Pass/Watch - Risk rating 4 1,491              1,346              2,850              -                 5,687              
  Special mention - Risk rating 5 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
  Substandard - Risk ratings 6-7 42                  912                 138                 -                 1,092              
  Doubtful - Risk rating 8 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
  Loss - Risk rating 9 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

        Total 30,735$          241,779$         25,685$          16,211$          314,410$         

Credit Risk Profile Based on Payment Activity

Performing 30,714$          240,315$         25,685$          16,211$          312,925$         
Nonperforming 21                  1,464              -                 -                 1,485              

        Total 30,735$          241,779$         25,685$          16,211$          314,410$         

Consumer
Commercial Real Estate Agricultural and other Total

December 31, 2023

Credit Risk  Profile by Internally Assigned Grade

Grade:
  Pass - Risk ratings 1-3 36,245$          217,366$         29,479$          16,153$          299,243$         
  Pass/Watch - Risk rating 4 -                 250                 -                 -                 250                 
  Special mention - Risk rating 5 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
  Substandard - Risk ratings 6-7 286                 1,421              126                 16                  1,849              
  Doubtful - Risk rating 8 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
  Loss - Risk rating 9 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

        Total 36,531$          219,037$         29,605$          16,169$          301,342$         

Credit Risk  Profile Based on Payment Activity

Performing 36,308$          218,806$         29,605$          16,153$          300,872$         
Nonperforming 223                 231                 -                 16                  470                 

        Total 36,531$          219,037$         29,605$          16,169$          301,342$          
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3. Loans – continued 
  

Allowance for Credit Losses 
 
The allowance for credit losses on loans is a contra-asset valuation account, calculated in accordance 
with ASC 326, that is deducted from the amortized cost basis of loans to present the net amount 
expected to be collected. Loans are charged off against the allowance when management believes 
the loan balance will not be collected. Expected recoveries do not exceed the aggregate of amounts 
previously charged-off and expected to be charged-off. 
 
Management estimates the allowance balance using relevant available information, from internal and 
external sources, relating to past events, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable 
forecasts.  Historical credit loss experience provides the basis for the estimation of expected credit 
losses.  Adjustments to historical loss information are made for differences in current loan-specific 
risk characteristics such as differences in underwriting standards, portfolio mix, delinquency level, or 
term as well as for changes in environmental conditions, such as changes in unemployment rates, 
property values or other relevant factors. 
 
The allowance for credit losses – loans is measured on a collective (pool) basis when similar risk 
characteristics exist. Loans that do not share risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual basis 
and excluded from the collective evaluation. For modeling purposes, our loan pools are based on call 
report codes.  The most significant pools include 1-4 family real estate, commercial and industrial, 
owner-occupied non-farm/non-residential real estate, construction and development, other non-farm-
non-residential real estate, agricultural production and farmland loans.  Management periodically 
reassesses each pool to ensure the loans within the pool continue to share similar characteristics 
and risk profiles and to determine whether further segmentation is necessary.  
 
Common characteristics and risk profiles include the type/purpose of loan, underlying collateral, 
geographical similarity and historical/expected credit loss patterns.  In developing these loan pools 
for the purposes of modeling expected credit losses, we also analyzed the degree of correlation in 
how loans within each portfolio respond when subjected to varying economic conditions and 
scenarios as well as other portfolio stress factors. 
 
Expected credit losses are estimated over the average contractual term of each loan pool, adjusted 
for expected prepayments when appropriate.  The contractual term excludes expected extensions, 
renewals, and modifications unless either of the following applies: management has a reasonable 
expectation at the reporting date that a modification will be executed with an individual borrower or 
the extension or renewal options are included in the original or modified contract at the reporting date 
and are not unconditionally cancellable by the Company.  When management determines foreclosure 
is probable or is deemed to be collateral dependent, expected credit losses are based on the fair 
value of the collateral at the reporting date, adjusted for selling costs as appropriate.  A loan is 
collateral dependent when, based upon management's assessment, the borrower is experiencing 
financial difficulty and repayment is expected to be provided substantially through the operation or 
sale of the collateral.  As of December 31, 2023 and 2024, the Company did not have any collateral 
dependent loans. 
 
Management qualitatively adjusts model results for risk factors that are not considered within our 
modeling processes but are nonetheless relevant in assessing the expected credit losses within our 
loan pools.  
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3. Loans – continued 
 
These qualitative factor (“Q-Factor”) adjustments may increase or decrease management's 
estimate of expected credit losses by a calculated percentage or amount based upon the estimated 
level of risk.  The various risks that may be considered in making Q-Factor adjustments include, 
among other things, the impact of (i) changes in lending policies and procedures, including changes 
in underwriting standards and practices for collections, write-offs, and recoveries, (ii) actual and 
expected changes in national and local economic and business conditions and developments that 
affect the collectability of the loan pools, (iii) changes in the nature and volume of the loan pools 
and in the terms of the underlying loans, (iv) changes in the experience, ability, and depth of our 
lending management and staff, (v) changes in volume and severity of past due financial assets, the 
volume of non-accrual assets, and the volume and severity of adversely classified or graded assets, 
(vi) changes in the quality of our credit review function, (vii) changes in the value of the underlying 
collateral for loans that are non-collateral dependent, (viii) the existence, growth, and effect of any 
concentrations of credit and (ix) other factors such as legal and competition. 
 
The following table presents details of the allowance for credit losses on loans segregated by loan 
portfolio segment as of December 31, 2024 calculated in accordance with the CECL methodology 
described above. 
 

Consumer
Commercial Real Estate Agriculture and other Total

December 31, 2024

Beginning balance 553$               3,053$            323$               120$               4,049$            
Losses charged to allowance (10)                 -                 -                 (358)                (368)                
Recoveries credited to allowance 37                  -                 -                 133                 170                 
Provision (94)                 73                  (17)                 261                 223                 

     Balance, end of year 486$               3,126$            306$               156$               4,074$            

Consumer
Commercial Real Estate Agriculture and other Total

December 31, 2023

Beginning balance 680$               2,967$            313$               168$               4,128$            
Losses charged to allowance (102)                -                 (21)                 (284)                (407)                
Recoveries credited to allowance 16                  -                 21                  78                  115                 
Provision (41)                 86                  10                  158                 213                 

     Balance, end of year 553$               3,053$            323$               120$               4,049$             
 
Modifications to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty 
 
From time to time, the Company may modify certain loans to borrowers who are experiencing financial 
difficulty.  Loan modifications to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty may be in the form of a 
principal forgiveness, an interest rate reduction, an other-than-insignificant payment delay, or a term 
extension or a combination thereof, among other things. There were no modifications of loans to 
borrowers who were experiencing financial difficulty during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 
2023. 
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4. Premises and Equipment 
 
Premises and Equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2024 2023

Land 5,686$            4,570$            
Buildings and improvements 22,607 5,879              
Furniture and equipment 5,032 2,137              
Construction in process 400                 18,716            
          Total premises and equipment 33,725            31,302            

Less:  Accumulated depreciation (4,079)             (2,817)             

               Total premises and equipment, net 29,646$          28,485$           
 
 
 

2024 2023

Depreciation expense 1,262$            502$               

Proceeds from sale of bank premises and equipment -$                390$               

Net gain -$                69$                  
 
 

5. Other Real Estate Owned 
 
Transactions in other real estate owned for the years ended December 31, are summarized as 
follows: 

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of year 800$               -$                
  Foreclosures -                 2,100              
  Additions to property 120                 -                 
  Sales -                 (1,300)             

Balance at end of year 920$               800$                
 
 
In 2024, the Company had no sales of property.  In 2023, the Company sold property for $1,300, 
which resulted in no gain or loss. 
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6. Deposits 
 

Deposits consisted of the following at December 31, 2024 2023

Non-interest bearing:
  Demand accounts 150,395$         163,274$         

Interest bearing:
  NOW accounts 13,913            1,308              
  Money market accounts 175,542          187,766          
  Savings accounts 76,462            47,052            
  Certificates of deposit 143,861          150,949          

409,778          387,075          

               Total 560,173$         550,349$          
 
 
 
Schedule of maturities of certificates of deposits were as follows at December 31, 2024:

2025 132,277$         
2026 8,997              
2027 1,046              
2028 712                 
2029 829                 

               Total 143,861$          
 
 

2024 2023

Related party deposits (executive officers and directors) 17,875$          22,027$          

Certificates of deposit $250,000 or greater 51,220$          66,111$          

 
 

7. Borrowings 
 
Note Payable 
 
The Company has a note payable to an unrelated financial institution acquired with the merger in 
2021 with a principal balance of $5,450 and $6,095 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.  
The note is secured by the common stock of TXN and carries a variable interest rate based on the 
Wall Street Journal Prime Rate less 0.25%.  Interest only payments were required until May 2022, 
when monthly principal and interest payments became due until maturity in April 2028.  At December 
31, 2024 and 2023, the Company was not in compliance with their return on asset debt covenant 
ratios.  Subsequent to December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company received a covenant waiver from 
the lender. 
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7. Borrowings – continued 
 

At December 31, 2024, future scheduled principal payments on the note payable are as follows:

2025 1,501$                  
2026 1,617                    
2027 1,740                    
2028 592                      

          Total note payable 5,450$                   
 
 
Advances from the Federal Reserve Bank 
 
At December 31 2024, the Company has outstanding advances from the Federal Reserve Bank, 
through the Discount Window Program, of $15,000 that matures on March 20, 2025, which has an 
interest rate of 4.50% and is due at maturity. The Company is eligible to borrow up to $23,575 as of 
December 31, 2024.   
 
At December 31, 2023, the Company had outstanding advances from the Federal Reserve Bank, 
through the Bank Term Funding Program, of $45,000 that matured on December 27, 2024, which 
had an interest rate of 4.85% and was due at maturity.  The Company was eligible to borrow up to 
$48,571 as of December 31, 2023.   
 
Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 
 
TXN Bank has advances of $2,062 and $2,205 outstanding, inclusive of net premium on purchase of 
$82 and $148, for total outstanding of $2,144 and $2,353 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively.  The interest rates on the fixed rate, long-term debt ranged from 3.257% to 3.427%, 
with monthly payments for all advances totaling $18. The weighted average rate at December 31, 
2024 and 2023 was 3.298%.  The advances were collateralized by first mortgage loans under a 
blanket lien agreement.  Based on this collateral and the TXN’s holdings of FHLB stock, TXN is 
eligible to borrow up to a total of $129 million as of December 31, 2024. 
 

2025 148$                     
2026 153                      
2027 158                      
2028 164                      
2029 169                      
Thereafter 1,270                    

2,062                    
Premium on purchase, net 82                        

          Total advances on Federal Home Loan Bank 2,144$                  

At December 31, 2024, future scheduled principal payments on advances from Federal home 
Loan Bank are as follows:
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7. Borrowings – continued 
 
Other Lines of Credit 
 
The Company has federal funds lines of credit from Frost National Bank in the amount of $10,000,000 
with an expiration of May 23, 2025, and with TIB for $2,000,000 with no expiration date. As of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company had no balance outstanding on these lines. 
 

8. Employee Benefit Plan 
 
The Company has a 401(k) retirement plan for all employees. The 401(k) Plan allows employees to 
contribute to the plan subject to Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) limitations. As of 2024 and 2023, the 
Company contributed a matching amount up to 5% of each eligible employee’s compensation. The 
Company contributed matching contributions to the 401(k) plan as follows: 
 

2024 2023

Matching contributions 260$               264$                
 
 

9. Financial Instruments With Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations of Credit Risk 
 
In the normal course of business, the Company makes various commitments and incurs certain 
contingent liabilities that are not presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.  
The commitments and contingent liabilities include various guarantees, commitments to extend 
credit, and standby letters of credit. 
 
The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the 
financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by 
the contractual amount of those instruments.  The Company uses the same credit policies in making 
commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.  The Company 
does not anticipate any material losses as a result of the commitments. 
 

2024 2023

Unfunded loan commitments 35,983$          38,572$          
Standby letters of credit 815$               1,067$             
 
Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation 
of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or 
other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. The Company evaluates each 
customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount and type of collateral obtained, if 
deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, varies and is based on management's 
credit evaluation of the counterparty. 
 
Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party. Standby letters of credit generally have fixed expiration 
dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.  The credit risk involved in 
issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to 
customers. The Company’s policy for obtaining collateral, and the nature of such collateral, is 
essentially the same as that involved in making commitments to extend credit. 
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10. Regulatory Matters 
 
Cash Reserve Requirements 
 
The Company can be required to maintain average cash reserve balances with the Federal Reserve 
Bank or depository banks thereof. There is no balance required at December 31, 2024 and 2023. 
 
Capital Requirements 
 
Banks are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies. 
Capital adequacy guidelines and, additionally for banks, prompt corrective action regulations, involve 
quantitative measures of assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items calculated under 
regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative 
judgments by regulators.  Failure to meet capital requirements can initiate regulatory action. The net 
unrealized gain or loss on available for sale securities is not included in computing regulatory capital.  
Management believes as of December 31, 2024, the Company meets all capital adequacy 
requirements to which they are subject. 
 
Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications: well capitalized, adequately 
capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized, although 
these terms are not used to represent overall financial condition.  If adequately capitalized, regulatory 
approval is required to accept brokered deposits.  If undercapitalized, capital distributions are limited, 
as is asset growth and expansion, and capital restoration plans are required.  As of December 31, 
2024 and 2023, the most recent regulatory notifications categorized the Company as well capitalized 
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action.  There are no conditions or events since 
that notification that management believes have changed the institution’s category. 

 
The following table presents actual and required capital ratios as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 
for the Company under the Basel III Capital Rules.  The minimum required capital amounts presented 
include the minimum required capital levels as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 based on the 
minimum requirements for capital adequacy purposes and the minimum requirements with the capital 
conservation buffer.  Capital levels required to be considered well capitalized are based upon prompt 
corrective action regulations, as amended to reflect the changes under the Basel III Capital Rules. 
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10. Regulatory Matters – continued 
 
 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2024

Common Equity Tier I Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 62,338$     16.08% 17,447$      4.50% 27,140$      7.00% 25,201$     6.50%

Tier I Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 62,338$     16.08% 23,263$      6.00% 32,956$      8.50% 31,017$     8.00%

Total Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 66,775$     17.22% 31,017$      8.00% 40,710$      10.50% 38,771$     10.00%

Tier I Capital
(to Average Assets) 62,338$     9.36% 26,638$      4.00% 26,638$      4.00% 33,298$     5.00%

As of December 31, 2023

Common Equity Tier I Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 61,298$     16.22% 17,006$      4.50% 26,454$      7.00% 24,565$     6.50%

Tier I Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 61,298$     16.22% 22,675$      6.00% 32,123$      8.50% 30,233$     8.00%

Total Capital
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 65,794$     17.41% 30,233$      8.00% 39,680$      10.50% 37,791$     10.00%

Tier I Capital
(to Average Assets) 61,298$     9.27% 26,450$      4.00% 26,450$      4.00% 33,063$     5.00%

Actual Adequacy Purposes

Minimum Capital
Required - For Capital

Required to be
Considered Well

Capitalized

Minimum Capital
Required - With Capital

Conservation Buffer

 
 
As of December 31, 2024, capital levels at the Company exceeds all capital adequacy requirements 
under the Basel III Capital Rules.  Based on the ratios presented above, capital levels as of December 
31, 2024, at the Company exceed the minimum levels necessary to be considered “well capitalized.” 
 
 

11. Restrictions on Dividends 
 
TXN Bank, as a State Member Bank, was subject to the dividend restrictions set forth by the Federal 
Reserve Bank.  Under such restrictions, TXN Bank could not, without the prior approval of the Federal 
Reserve Bank, declare dividends in excess of the sum of the current year’s net income plus the 
retained net income (as defined in the regulations) from the prior two years.  
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12. Revenue From Contracts With Customers 
 
All of the Company’s revenue from contracts with customers in the scope of ASC 606 is recognized 
within Non-Interest Income.  The following table presents the Company’s sources of Non-Interest 
Income for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023.  Items outside the scope of ASC 606 are 
noted as such.  A description of the Company’s revenue streams accounted for under ASC 606 
follows: 

2024 2023

Service charges on deposit accounts 1,399$            1,316$            
ATM and debit card service charges 1,723 1,587
Service fees 120                 125                 
Investment brokerage fees 198                 129                 
Gain (loss) on sale of available-for-sale securities* -                 19                  
Gain on sale of assets -                 112                 
Capital stock dividend* 193                 136                 
Earnings on cash surrender value* 458                 397                 
Other 269                 456                 

Total non-interest income 4,360$            4,277$            

* - Not within scope of ASC 606  
 
Service Charges on Deposit Accounts 
 
The Company earns fees from its deposit customers for transaction-based, account maintenance, 
and overdraft services. Transaction-based fees, which include services such as, stop payment 
charges, statement rendering, NSF and returned check charges are recognized at the time the 
transaction is executed as that is the point in time the Company fulfills the customer’s request. 
Account maintenance fees, which relate primarily to monthly maintenance, are earned over the 
course of a month, representing the period over which the Company satisfies the performance 
obligation.  Overdraft fees are recognized at the point in time that the overdraft occurs. Service 
charges on deposits are withdrawn from the customer’s account balance monthly or quarterly. 
 
ATM and Debit Card Service Charges 
 
The Company earns interchange fees from debit and credit cardholder transactions. Interchange fees 
from cardholder transactions represent a percentage of the underlying transaction value and are 
recognized daily, concurrently with the transaction processing services provided to the cardholder. 
The Company earns fees from the use of the Company’s ATM’s by non-customers and from 
replacement card fees.  Additionally, the category includes credit card income which is related to 
transaction-based fees earned by the Company to process the credit card transactions at a 
customer’s business, charged on a monthly basis. 
 
Service Fees 
 
The Company earns fees from its deposit and non-deposit customers for service-based fees.  Service 
based fees such as cashier’s checks, wire transfers, check cashing, safe deposit boxes, and check 
orders are recognized at the time the transaction is executed as that is the point in time the Company 
fulfills the customer’s request. 
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12. Revenue From Contracts With Customers – continued 
 
Investment Brokerage Fees 
 
The Company earns fees from investment brokerage services provided to its customers by a third-
party service provider.  The Company receives commissions from the third-party service providers 
on a monthly basis based upon customer activity for the month.  The fees are recognized monthly. 
Because the Company (i) acts as an agent in arranging the relationship between the customer and 
the third-party service provider and (ii) does not control the services rendered to the customers, 
investment brokerage fees are presented net of related costs. 
 
Other 
 
This category includes immaterial balances that are recognized as point in time transactions. 
 
Gain on Sale of Other Real Estate 
 
The Company records a gain or loss from the sale of Other Real Estate Owned (“OREO”) when 
control of the property transfers to the buyer, which generally occurs at the time of an executed deed. 
When the Company finances the sale of OREO to the buyer, the Company assesses whether the 
buyer is committed to perform their obligations under the contract and whether collectability of the 
transaction price is probable.  Once these criteria are met, the OREO asset is derecognized and the 
gain or loss on sale is recorded upon the transfer of control of the property to the buyer. In determining 
the gain or loss on the sale, the Company adjusts the transaction price and related gain (loss) on 
sale if a significant financial component is present. 
 
Gain on Sale of Assets 
 
The Company recognizes gains associated with the sale of assets at the time title is transferred to 
the purchaser. 
 
 

13. Fair Value Disclosures 
 
The authoritative guidance on fair value measurements defines fair value as the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants.  A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability occurs in the principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, 
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The price in the principal (or most 
advantageous) market used to measure the fair value of the asset or liability shall not be adjusted for 
transaction costs.  An orderly transaction is a transaction that assumes exposure to the market for a 
period prior to the measurement date to allow for marketing activities that are usual and customary 
for transactions involving such assets and liabilities; it is not a forced transaction.  Market participants 
are buyers and sellers in the principal market that are (i) independent, (ii) knowledgeable, (iii) able to 
transact and (iv) willing to transact. 
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13. Fair Value Disclosures – continued 
 
The authoritative guidance on fair value measurements requires the use of valuation techniques that 
are consistent with the market approach, the income approach and/or the cost approach.  The market 
approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving 
identical or comparable assets and liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques to 
convert future amounts, such as cash flows or earnings, to a single present amount on a discounted 
basis.  The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the 
service capacity of an asset (replacement costs). Valuation techniques should be consistently 
applied. Inputs to valuation techniques refer to the assumptions that market participants would use 
in pricing the asset or liability.  Inputs may be observable, meaning those that reflect the assumptions 
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data 
obtained from independent sources, or unobservable, meaning those that reflect the reporting entity’s 
own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability 
developed based on the best information available in the circumstances. 
 
In that regard, the guidance establishes a fair value hierarchy for valuation inputs that gives the 
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest 
priority to unobservable inputs. 
 
The fair value hierarchy is as follows: 
 

Level 1 Inputs – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the reporting entity can access at the measurement date. 
 
Level 2 Inputs – Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.  These include quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities 
in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the 
asset or liability (for example, interest rates, volatilities, prepayment speeds, loss severities, 
credit risks and default rates) or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by 
observable market data by correlation or other means. 
 
Level 3 Inputs – Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity’s own assumptions 
that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities. 

 
In general, fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available.  If such quoted market 
prices are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed models that primarily use, as 
inputs, observable market-based parameters.  Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that 
financial instruments are recorded at fair value. While management believes the Company’s 
valuation methodologies are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of 
different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments 
could result in a different estimate of fair value at the reporting date. 
 
A description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at fair value, 
as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy, is set 
forth below.  There have been no changes in the methodologies used at December 31, 2024. 
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13. Fair Value Disclosures – continued 
 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring basis 
include the following: 
 

Securities Available-for-Sale – Securities classified as available-for-sale are reported at fair 
value utilizing Level 2 inputs.  For these securities, the Company obtains fair value 
measurements from an independent pricing service. The fair value measurements consider 
observable data that may include dealer quotes, market spreads, cash flows, the U.S. Treasury 
yield curve, live trading levels, trade execution data, market consensus prepayment speeds, 
credit information and the bond’s terms and conditions, among other things. 
 
Other Real Estate – Certain foreclosed properties, upon initial recognition and subsequent 
remeasurement were valued and reported at fair value through charge-offs to the allowance for 
loan losses and write-downs included in current period earnings.  The fair value of such other 
real estate owned, upon initial recognition and subsequent remeasurement, is estimated utilizing 
Level 3 inputs.  In some cases, the properties for which appraised values have been obtained 
are located in areas where comparable sales data is limited, outdated, or unavailable.  Fair value 
estimates for real estate held for sale are obtained from independent appraisers.  See Note 5, 
for the activity that occurred in Other Real Estate for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 
2023. 

 
The following table summarizes financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within the fair value hierarchy utilized 
to measure fair value: 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair
Inputs Inputs Inputs Value

December 31, 2024
Securities available-for-sale -$               212,348$         -$               212,348$         

December 31, 2023

Securities available-for-sale -$               229,377$         -$               229,377$          
 
 
 
Certain financial assets are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis; that is, the instruments 
are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain 
circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment).  As of December 31 2024 and 
2023, there were no financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. 
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13. Fair Value Disclosures – continued 
 
Non-Financial Assets and Non-Financial Liabilities 
 
The following table summarizes non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities measured at fair 
value on a recurring and non-recurring basis, segregated by the level of the valuation inputs within 
the fair value hierarchy utilized to measure fair value: 
 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Fair
Inputs Inputs Inputs Value

December 31, 2024

Other real estate -$                -$                920$               920$               

December 31, 2023

Other real estate -$                -$                800$               800$                
 
 

 
 

14. Subsequent Events 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through April 16, 2025, 
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 
 
Change in Tax Status:  Effective January 1, 2025, the Company revoked its S-Corporation election 
and will be taxed as a C-Corporation for federal income tax purposes going forward. As this change 
occurred after year-end, the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 
continue to reflect the Company's status as an S-Corporation. 
 
 
 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 



TXN TXN Consolidated
Bancshares, Inc. Bank Eliminations Balance

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and due from banks 164$              12,377$         (164)$            12,377$         
Interest-bearing deposits in other financial institutions - 7,679 - 7,679 

Total cash and cash equivalents 164 20,056           (164) 20,056 

Securities available-for-sale, at estimated market value - 212,348 - 212,348 
Securities held-to-maturity, at cost - 11,120 - 11,120 

Loans, net - 309,794 - 309,794 

Investment in subsidiary 32,808           - (32,808) - 
Premises and equipment, net - 29,646 - 29,646 
Accrued interest receivable - 3,920 - 3,920 
Other real estate owned, net - 920 - 920 
Cash surrender value of life insurance - 16,194 - 16,194 
Goodwill - 120 - 120 
Core deposit intangible - 419 - 419 
Restricted stock - 3,223 - 3,223 
Other assets - 3,693 - 3,693 

Total assets 32,972$         611,453$        (32,972)$       611,453$        

Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Deposits:

Non-interest bearing -$  150,559$        (164)$            150,395$        
Interest bearing - 409,778 - 409,778 

Total deposits - 560,337 (164) 560,173 

Note payable 5,450             - - 5,450 
Other borrowings, net - 17,144 - 17,144 
Accrued interest payable - 296 - 296 
Other liabilities - 868 - 868 

Total liabilities 5,450             578,645         (164) 583,931 

Shareholders' Equity
Common stock 1,351             2,000 (2,000)           1,351             

   Additional paid-in capital 22,190           32,120 (32,120)         22,190           
Treasury stock (at cost) (3,890)            - - (3,890)            
Retained earnings 37,940           28,757 (28,757)         37,940           
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (30,069)          (30,069)          30,069          (30,069)          

Total shareholders' equity 27,522           32,808           (32,808)         27,522           

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 32,972$         611,453$        (32,972)$       611,453$        

TXN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET (in thousands)

December 31, 2024



TXN TXN Consolidated
Bancshares, Inc. Bank Eliminations Income

Interest Income
Loans, including fees -$  21,213$         -$  21,213$         
Investment securities:

Taxable - 2,614 - 2,614 
Tax-exempt - 2,383 - 2,383 

Other - 2,657 - 2,657 
Total interest income - 28,867 - 28,867 

Interest Expense
Deposits - 11,228 - 11,228 
Borrowings 463 2,583             - 3,046 

Total interest expense 463 13,811           - 14,274 

Net interest income (463) 15,056 - 14,593 

Provision for credit losses - loans - 223 - 223 
Provision for credit losses - unfunded commitments - (84) - (84) 

Total provision for credit losses - 139 - 139 

Net interest income after provision for credit losses (463) 14,917 - 14,454 

Non-Interest Income
Dividends from subsidiaries 2,650 - (2,650) - 
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries 973 - (973) - 
Service charges on deposit accounts - 1,399 - 1,399 
ATM and debit card service charges - 1,723 - 1,723 
Service fees - 120 - 120 
Investment brokerage fees - 198 - 198 
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities - - - -
Gain on sale of other real estate - - - -
Gain on sale of assets - - - -
Capital stock dividend - 193 - 193 
Earnings on cash surrender value insurance - 458 - 458 
Other - 269 - 269 

Total non-interest income 3,623             4,360             (3,623)            4,360             

Non-interest Expense
Salaries, wages and benefits - 8,089 - 8,089 
Occupancy and equipment - 2,570 - 2,570 
Professional services - 1,244 - 1,244 
Data and item processing - 1,754 - 1,754 
Loss on sale of available-for-sale securities - - - -
Loss and/or write down on sale of other real estate - - - -
Loss on sale of assets - 145 - 145 
Core deposit intangible amortization - 67 - 67 
Other 34 1,750 - 1,784 

Total non-interest expense 34 15,619           - 15,653 

Income before income taxes 3,126             3,658             (3,623)            3,161             

State income tax expense - 35 - 35 

Net income 3,126$           3,623$           (3,623)$          3,126$           

TXN BANCSHARES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF INCOME (in thousands)

December 31, 2024
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������ �����	���	��������������������� ���������� !��!"��� #����$�%&�������&�$��'!����(������
�) �%*$�+,�-.���� #����$�%&�������&�$��//0�1���� )������)���)�,��,���0-0*23	����4%�� 567869:�;<=9>6?@A@BAC?CD ?@A@BAC?CE BCA@BAC?CE BCA@BAC?C@ BCA@BAC?CC 57FG7�H6=7�IJK�$��������$L������%$�M%�$� NOPQR NOSTN NONSN NOUPQ POVTW RXVV�$�%&����%&�M������	$�$�	$1 V V V V S YZ[����\/.\�&4� PU PN PU P] PQ P̂XPP��.��	&���L���\���$�
	� SV SV SS SW SU P̂XWP�����$�%&��%$�M%�$��_�M������̀�.a NONVR NOSQN NONWR NOURS POVQR NXQT� � � � � � �b��������_��1�$�+�̀.\�3�-��a SP SN SN PN UP R̂XR]-%��1�1�����c�L����*�	�	�� NNU N]W NPU NTT RTT ÛXUW��.��	&���L���\���$�
	� SUR SUN SNQ SNQ WVP VX]S�33�!�(������*�	�	�� RTV RTV RTV RTS TNN VXVV����\/.\�&4�����*�	�	����$�%&� RVS NQT NQQ NQ] ]RR VXNV�$d���&�$���$��������$�%&��̀�.a SOUTU SOPVW SOUQ] SOP]U SO]TS ŜXUR� � � � � � ��$�������%$��*����%&���$c� SSV RRS PNT UWR SSR T̂UXUR�$��%$���L��*$L���%3L�_�����3�� V V V V V YZ[���L	$1����%*$���$�%&� YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[!�(����$��������$�%&� UW UV RQ RW PN RXR]� � � � � � ����%��3��$��������$�%&��̀�.a ]OVUS ]OWTQ ]OPNS ]OWWW ROVUT ÛXNU� � � � � � ��$��%$���4%�	���	$��%��	1$�!

 YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[�$�������%$��%&���	����4%�	�� WORSP WOTSN WOR]V WO]ST SOVTP ]̂XSP�$��%$���L��*$L��0*��(�_���4%� V V V V WU YZ[�$�����L�M	�2�_�!�(��%��%e	$1� YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[�$��%$��*2��%����_���2�$�*��� YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[ YZ[!�(����$�������.\4�$�� SVR RQW PN] NVR U T̂PXRT� � � � � � ����%��3��$�������.\4�$�� WO]WV UONV] UOSW] UOWWP SOSSV ŴWXPP� � � � � � ��������$��������$�%&��̀�.a POUSS UO]TW POUWP UOQQT POQWT SPXVV�%$/	$��������$�%&� ]QW QQ] SOSUR SOVTQ WO]TU ŴVXNR���Lf*���L�!4����	$1��$�%&��̀�.a NOSVU PO]]Q NOPRV NOVT] ]O]SS RX]Q� � � � � � ��%$/�$�������.\4�$�� POSTW UOQPR UOT]P UO]SP NO]R] NXQT��0��/0�%d	�	%$�������d�$*��̀�.a QWS TUU SONTR SOU]U SOQPP SVXRU0�%d	�	%$,����L	��M%���� WWN ]U SPR PR SUQ WVTXWW0�%d	�	%$,����L	��M%�����!�(��������� V RR ŜNV QU YZ[ ŜVVXVV��0����\�!4����	$1��$�%&��̀�.a RQR RQP SONQV SOWUP SOTVN VXUR� � � � � � ����3	g�L�h�M� 3L/�%/-��*�	�+���� V V V V V YZ[���3	g�L�h�M��d�	3/
%����3����� V V V V V YZ[b$���3	g�L�h�M�.i*	�+����*�	�	�� V V V V V YZ[��0����\�����!4����	$1��$��̀�.a RQR RQP SONQV SOWUP SOTVN VXUR� � � � � � ��443	��23���$�%&����\�� PUV V V V V YZ[�*���$����\�.i*	d��Lf*��&�$� SPR SPR S]S S]S WS] VXUR!�(�����\�.i*	d��Lf*��&�$�� V V V V V YZ[���443	��23���$�%&����\���̀�.a N]R SPR S]S S]S WS] WQNXNN� � � � � � �������!4����	$1��$�%&� SWV NPT SOPSQ SOVRU SONTT ]̂TXSV� � � � � � ������	��%$�	$*�L���.\���%�L	$��+����&� V V V V V YZ[�����$���%$�%$��%33	$1�-	$%�	�+��$������� V V V V V YZ[�������$�%&� SWV NPT SOPSQ SOVRU SONTT ]̂TXSV
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������ �����	���	��������������������� ���������� !��!"��� �#$	$��������$�#%���$&�'()�$���!����*������
�+ �#,$�-.�/'���� �#$	$��������$�#%���$&�'()�$���001�2��� +������+���+�.��.���1/1,34	����)#�� 567687959: 567687959; 897687959; 8976879596 89768795991'��'���!���<'��='����'��. >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF��1���#$$�4�'()�$�� GHIG GHJK DD GHJL GHIJ JM GHGM GHII NJ GHNI GHIN JG GHJL GHIL IL��!��,)�$�-�'()�$�� LHIL LHND MK LHJO LHNK MI LHJP LHNK MO LHNI LHNK IO LHNP LHNK KN��!�*���!)���'()�Q�$�4��$��$2	34��R LHOP LHOJ KG LHKK LHOD JK LHOI LHOP IK LHON LHOO ID GHGO LHOJ PJ�����#��4�!S��*��&�'()�$�� NHKL NHJD KP NHJJ NHID IJ NHJG NHIP JP NHNL NHIO JI NHOK NHIL OI� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��!�0���'�'���'�1'��'�.��1���#$$�4�'()�$�� NTNKN NTNLJ OTPOK MTLGM MTNJG��!��,)�$�-�'()�$�� KII KJI NTKDO GTDOD GTMLJ��=##&U	44��%)�	�%�$� L L L L L��!�*����$��$2	34���%#��	V GO GO KO KO KO��!�*���!)���'()�Q	$�4��$��$2	34��R GTNDP GTLPN ITPDJ ITKNK OTJJI�����#$0�$�������'()�$�� ITGMN JTPIK GDTKDJ GITNMK GOTIJD� � � � � �1'��'���!���<'��='����'��. >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF���	&,�	��-����	S	�	�� LHLL LHLG MN LHLL LHLG OP LHLL LHLG OM LHLL LHLG OO LHLL LHLG OK����)#�	�����S	����*��2�� LHGM LHGL ML LHGP LHGG MJ LHNG LHGG MI LHNL LHGG MJ LHNL LHGG MN�����&	$2"�<�$����)"����,��V��$� @W? LHLL @W? @W? LHLG @W? @W? LHLL @W? @W? LHLL @W? @W? LHLL @W?���$S���$X	$2"��&S	�#�-��$� LHLJ LHLG MN LHLJ LHLG MJ LHLJ LHLG MJ LHLN LHLG MN LHLN LHLG OP���$�,��$����#%%�Y����� LHLL LHLL KD LHLL LHLL KM LHLL LHLL KG LHLL LHLL DP LHLL LHLL DM���������S	�	$2����� LHLL LHLG KD LHLL LHLG KL LHLL LHLG DM LHLL LHLG DP LHLL LHLN DP��Z#�$�Y�Z���������=�	$��Z#�� LHLL LHLG DO LHLL LHLN DI LHLL LHLN DL LHLL LHLN IP LHLL LHLI IO��!�*�������=�	$��Z#�� [LHGI LHLL L LHLL LHLL MG LHLL LHLL KN LHLN LHLL MP LHNP LHLL PM��!�*����#$0	$��������$�#%� LHIJ LHNG PN LHJO LHNJ MJ LHJM LHNI MN LHIL LHNK OP LHJI LHND OI�����#$��$��������$�#%� LHIP LHIJ KJ LHDP LHIP KM LHKN LHDN KK LHKI LHDD KO LHMD LHDK MG� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��!�0���'�'������!/'.���	&,�	��-����	S	�	�� L L L L L����)#�	�����S	����*��2�� NMJ JNO GTJPP GTJGK GTNIP�����&	$2"�<�$����)"����,��V��$� @W? @W? @W? @W? @W?���$S���$X	$2"��&S	�#�-��$� II II GPM GNP GGG���$�,��$����#%%�Y����� L L L L L���������S	�	$2����� L L L L L��Z#�$�Y�Z���������=�	$��Z#�� L L L L L��!�*�������=�	$��Z#�� [NNG L L GGN GTMDI��!�*����#$0�$��������$�#%� KMK KNK NTDOL NTDKD NTGDK�����#$��$��������$�#%� OPN PPO ITGKO ITGNN DTJOL� � � � � �!� '�����!/'�Y�'�1'��'�����!�. >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF��!S��*��&�Z�����#$0	$���$� NHGG GHPL KP GHOI GHPJ JD GHOL GHPI NP GHDO GHMP NI GHPG GHML DM��'

	�	�$�-����	# MGHPD KGHOK PJ MNHDM KKHOO MD OOHMP KDHNP MN OGHKN KJHML ON KMHOK KGHKI OJ���S2�1���$4�'()�1���'%)4�Q\+++R POHNP PMHNO DJ PGHOP PPHDG IG MKHOL GLLHLO NM MGHMN PKHGN NK MGHDL PNHLP JI���������1���'%)4#-���Q\/	44	#$R KHKK OHKG IJ KHPO OHNK DN KHKD OHJN ID KHIO OHGO II KHGD KHPL IJ���#%���	����$X	$2�!

	����Q
R O O O M P���#��	2$����$�*���Q
R L L L L L���������1����#%���	��!

	�� MMTDLJ PDTKLN MOTJPO OPTNDK KMTPOP
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������ �����	���	��������������������� ���������� !��!"��� ������#	�$%���&%��'&%	&(��)���!����*������
�+ �)'&�,-�./���� ������#	�$%���&%��'&%	&(��)���001�(���� +������+���+�-��-���1.1'2$	����3)�� 4565768489 456576848: 786576848: 7865768485 7865768488#�/;��!��!���!���!�- <=>? @A�B @CD <=>? @A�B @CD <=>? @A�B @CD <=>? @A�B @CD <=>? @A�B @CD���)��$�;)�&�E�;������F�/G HIJJ KILB HB HIJM KIMM NM HIJJ KILB HL KIBM BINM NM BIKO LIPH NK����;)�&��	&��)Q���	��!

	��� KIPN KILL HB HIJR KIMR NM KIPN KILL HL KIBR BINR NM BIKR LIPK NK���������$�/����� KIHB KIMO HL KILP BIPJ HH KIKL KIRM HO KIML BIBO NO BIHP LINR PO�����������'��%�2,��0����Q����	�1�)3 KIML KIOJ LN BIPL BIPN BJ KIRJ KIMM LK BIHO BIKL BB KIHK LIPM PL���������$$�!�*���;)�&���������$�/����� HIJR KIMK HP KINJ BIPR NL KIPO KIRO NM KIBR BIBM NK BIOO LINR NJ�������)QQ���	�$�E��&%'���	�$ NIJH HIMN HP NIRB HIMP HN NIJR HIBO KP KILL KIHP LR BINH BIKO KB�������&%	S	%'�$ NIKH NIRJ KH NIRL HIBP KH NIMB HINB KM HILM HIRJ KR KIBP KIOM KR�����������%	�����% >T= PIKR >T= >T= PINK >T= >T= PIBK >T= >T= PILB >T= >T= NIHH >T=�������(�	�'$�'��$ NIMB HIKH HO NINM HIKN NO NINK HINL NM HIPL HIJB HH BIKP BIOB KP����;)�&��	&��)��	(&�!

	��� >T= JIJJ >T= >T= KIOM >T= >T= KILO >T= >T= BILJ >T= >T= BIMO >T=���)��$��&S���Q�&�����'�	�	���F�/G MIMR MINL ML MIRR MIHR MO MIRH MINM MO MIRO MIBL MP MIJO MIJK BJ���)��$��&S���Q�&�����'�	�	���F�))UG RIPP MIKP RH RIPR MIBN RP RIPO MIKN RH RIPJ MILR MO RIHP RIPO LJ����V��������E��(�&�,�F/W�$�.��G RIKO MILM MK RIHB MIOL OL MIRL MILP LL MIML MIML BK MIJR RIKL HO����.)��(�(�����U�%����'�	�	�� MIJP MIPR MO RIPN MIHR MH RIPH MINN MM RIPH MIBM OR RIHH RIPR LO�����$$�!�*������'�	�	�� RIPO MIBN MR RINK MIKB RB RINP MIKK RK RINO MIBK RL RINR MIOJ RP���&������0����	&(���&U���$�&��� LILR OIPK NM BIKM LIKK PR BIOP LIHK NN BIML LIBJ NO RIMM RIOM LR����%���$��'&%���)$%�E�����$�� >T= LIJR >T= >T= BIJJ >T= >T= LINL >T= >T= LIHJ >T= JIRN RILB RR���)��$��&�����������	&(���3)�	�� MIBJ MIBJ BR MINM MIBL KB MIHH MIKK BK MIMK RINP HR JIBM JIBR BL�������&����	)&����)'&�� MIOL RIRB NK JIRB RIMR P JIRP RIMK RR JIJP JIPH B JIRB JIOR OM����!�*�����S	&(����3)�	�� JIRK RIBB R RINH RIHK BH RIPM RIHH BN RIKO RION KM JILB JION KK�����	Q����3)�	�� OIPK OIPO LH LIOP OIPN HK LIOR LIRK BH OIKJ OIJR NO JINL JINN LK�����)��	(&�!

	�����3)�	�� >T= JIJJ >T= >T= JIJJ >T= >T= JIOL >T= >T= JIMM >T= >T= JIRN >T=� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �������%���$��'&%��1'��*���%�E���3)� >T= MIBR >T= >T= OIJK >T= >T= OIRP >T= >T= OIOL >T= >T= RIOL >T=����!�*����)��)X�%�.)&�, >T= LIJP >T= >T= LILO >T= >T= LILR >T= >T= LIOK >T= >T= MIRP >T=�����'2)�%��)����E���2�&�'��� >T= JIJJ >T= >T= LIHK >T= >T= LIHN >T= >T= JIJJ >T= >T= JIJJ >T=����!�*����&�������/W3�&�� OIKB OIHN OL LIBH LILR LN LIKJ LIBL LB LIHO LIOO BK JINJ MIRH RM�����$$��&������0����	&(��'&%� MIBO MIBK LP OIJB MIKB HJ OIJJ MIHK KM MILO MIJR HO JIBO JIBK BJ� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �����.�Q)-��&�������)&��	Q����3�!S����&��;	Q	� LIRO LIRR LL LIRN LIMR LR LIKR LIMP KN OIHN OIMP HO JIPH JIPH BR� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �1/��/���!���Y/��Z/����/��- � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ������)��$�;)�&�E�;����� LPIJJ KHILO RJ LOIHB KKIBN N LLINP KKIPR P LBIBM KBIKH RR LOIPL KRIRL RO������;)�&��	&��)Q���	��!

	��� LPIJJ KHIOH RJ LOIHB KKIOO N LLINP KKIHM P LBIBM KBIOP RR LOIPM KJIPB RO�����������$�/����� OHIKB BMIHL RN OMIMJ BRION RM OOINL BRIBP RL OOIMK BJIBR RB MPIBH LKIBH RL�������������'��%�2,��0����Q����	%�1�)3 RMIPK RNIRO OK RRIKO RKIKH OL RRINP RKIPJ OL RRILJ RKIRJ OB PILL RLIRL OM�����������$$�!�*���;)�&���������$�/����� MLIKN OOIRH MB MJIBK OOIOB RK MRIPB OOIOJ RN MRINK OOIJK MJ MJIRO ORIML RN���������)QQ���	�$�E��&%'���	�$ BIJJ KIHL ON BIOL HIBB OH LINO HIBN OO KIBJ HILH LN KIHN HIOJ BM���������&%	S	%'�$ RILL RIHR BL RIOB RIHO BL RION RIHB BL RIOM RIHM BO RILP RIBK KR�������������%	�����% JIJJ JIJR NK JIJJ JIJR NO JIJJ JIJR NM JIJJ JIJR NR JIJJ JIJR NJ���������(�	�'$�'��$ OIPL MIHN HJ LIBJ RIPB HN LIJO MIMR HB LIRM RIPP HH LIJB RIPJ HH������;)�&��	&��)��	(&�!

	��� >T= JIJJ >T= >T= JINP >T= >T= JIPR >T= >T= RIJJ >T= >T= JIKP >T=�����)��$��&S���Q�&�����'�	�	�� OPIJO MRILJ NN OPIMK MMILN NB ONIOJ MRIPN NL LOIBN MLIJR NH LNIRB MLIBH PR������V��������E��(�&�,�F/W�$�.��G JIBL LIHH RP JIBR BIRP RN JIBP LINB RP JIKJ BIHK RH JIBN BIBN RP������.)��(�(�����U�%����'�	�	�� RKIBR KIHJ NK RHIRJ KIHL NH RKION KIHR NK RPIOB KIPK NP MJIHL HIMB PJ�������$$�!�*������'�	�	�� MRIPN HIJJ PR MRIKK HILR PR MRIOO HIOP PR MOIKO HIPO PR MKINO NIMO PO�����&������0����	&(���&U���$�&��� RIBB BILK ML KIPK LIPL HJ HIMH BIRJ HM RIHK LILR OM MIMK HIMO MO������%���$��'&%���)$%�E�����$�� JIJJ JIBM BJ JIJJ JILH LP JIJJ JIBJ LB JIJJ JILL LL JIJP JIKL BB�����)��$��&�����������	&(���3)�	�� KBIJH KHIRR ON BNIPB KKIJM MJ BPINJ KKILB MR KJIMH KBIRH MP KRIHJ KBIMO OK���������&����	)&����)'&�� MPIKO RBIOK PR JILJ RBIJM R JIPP RLINM M JIOB RBIJK R MIMR RBIKL K������!�*�����S	&(����3)�	�� RMIOR MOIPH N OBINK MBIRN NB OKINM MLIHR NH LJILK MHILB NH LHIKM ORIBJ NH�������	Q����3)�	�� MOIRM MBINO OP MMIKN MOIOB LP MRIPP MLIBB LM RPILK MJIRB BR RRINH RBIKO OK�������)��	(&�!

	�����3)�	�� >T= JIJJ >T= >T= JIJM >T= >T= JIJM >T= >T= JIJO >T= >T= JIJM >T=� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
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)�.���Q	$0 =D< FGLJ =D< =D< FGLM =D< =D< KGII =D< =D< FGFE =D< =D< FGMJ =D<�����$�������������)$������ =D< MGFJ =D< =D< FGSK =D< =D< FGKK =D< =D< FGMA =D< =D< FGAJ =D<����!�'������	#��	#���)$������ =D< JGSI =D< =D< JGMH =D< =D< JGMS =D< =D< JGAJ =D< =D< JGKF =D<�������)��	0$�-N�'�$0���)$������ =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D<������-O*	�&"��)::�P�!�'��)$������ =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D<���)$.���Q�Q =D< AGKJ =D< =D< KHGJE =D< =D< KIGSM =D< =D< KLGHJ =D< =D< FJGKL =D<�����$�������������)$������ =D< HGAL =D< =D< FFGFJ =D< =D< FFGML =D< =D< KIGFL =D< =D< FFGMI =D<����!�'������	#��	#���)$������ =D< JGJJ =D< =D< FGML =D< =D< FGSK =D< =D< FGML =D< =D< FGLJ =D<�������)��	0$�-N�'�$0���)$������ =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D<������-O*	�&"��)::�P�!�'��)$������ =D< JGJJ =D< =D< KGMF =D< =D< KGLM =D< =D< KGMM =D< =D< KGFE =D<����,�:)+�,��U�Q.�).,��U�� =D< HMGAM =D< =D< SMGLF =D< =D< LMGHS =D< =D< SHGJM =D< =D< KHGEE =D<� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ������	#��	#���)$�������V������
W =D< EHGJJ =D< =D< LFGIS =D< =D< KIGLE =D< =D< FJGSK =D< =D< FLGFK =D<����!$��X����)��Y��� =D< FSGIJ =D< =D< KHGEK =D< =D< IGAE =D< =D< SGSH =D< =D< KJGFE =D<����!#�����X�����)���X���� =D< MHGIJ =D< =D< KSGKH =D< =D< KJGES =D< =D< KKGFA =D< =D< SGKJ =D<����!#�����X���� =D< KFGLJ =D< =D< HGFI =D< =D< AGEA =D< =D< IGAL =D< =D< KJGLH =D<� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ���Z�)�����0��	#����	��[�%*� =D< KGKJ =D< =D< JGFA =D< =D< JGFA =D< =D< JGML =D< =D< JGSS =D<��Z�)���/)�	�	#����	��[�%*� =D< KGHM =D< =D< KGHJ =D< =D< KGIJ =D< =D< KGSA =D< =D< FGKE =D<� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��&��	�������2	��%+ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �����Z�)�����0��	#����	��[�%*��VNW =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D<����Z�)���/)�	�	#����	��[�%*��VNW =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D<������ �%Q.
)�.���Q	$0�VNW JGJJ JGJK HS JGJJ JGJK HE JGJJ JGJJ HE JGJJ JGJK HE JGJJ JGJK HE�������)$.���Q�Q�VNW JGJJ JGJK EI JGJJ JGJM EL JGJJ JGJM EA JGJJ JGJF EL JGJJ JGJK ES�������)$.���Q�Q�,��U�Q.�).,U�VNW =D< JGJF =D< =D< JGJI =D< =D< JGJA =D< =D< JGJS =D< =D< JGJL =D<���*���$�����Q	��-N2)�*���VNW =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< JGJJ JGJJ HK JGJJ JGJJ HF JGJJ JGJJ HM�����Q	��Y)�����)$����	#��	#�� =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJL =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJM =D<� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �/�����*�����	#��	#���$���*:�$��+ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �������	��[�%*������	�Q���������� =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJJ =D<� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �!�'������	)�+ � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����*�����Q	��-N2)�*����	�U�T����� =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGJF =D< JGJJ JGJJ HK JGJJ JGJJ HF JGJJ JGJJ HM�����Q	��Y)�����)$����	#��	#�������%%)R =D< JGJJ =D< =D< JGAK =D< =D< \JGJF =D< =D< JGJS =D< =D< JGAF =D<
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������ �����	���	��������������������� ���������� !��!"��� ��#�$����%����&!����%������
�' �()$�*+�,-���� ��#�$����%����.����$��/���(01(�	�	($22.�/��3 '������'���'�+��+���.,.)4#	����1(�� 567687959: 567687959; 897687959; 8976879596 8976879599.����$��(
��<���/�������� =>?@ AB�C ADE =>?@ AB�C ADE =>?@ AB�C ADE =>?@ AB�C ADE =>?@ AB�C ADE��F(�$�� �� GHGG GHGI JI GHGG GHGI KJ GHGG GHGL KM GHGG GHGL CN GHGG GHGC CO��F(�$�� �� CMHLK KJHNP MI OCHJL KKHPL N OJHMN KJHMP MG OPHIN KCHPO ML OCHOK KMHOO MC����F���+���F�($�F�QF� GHKP GHPL IN GHKI GHPO IG GHKI GHPO IG GHKP GHPO IJ GHKC GHPI IK����������F(�$��Q�F����� CGHKP KJHIG MI OCHMM KKHMJ N OKHCK KKHCL MG OJHKM KCHIK MI OOHPM KGHNP MO� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����$������2����	$/���$R���#�$��� MHIK CHCG II PHIC CHGO JK KHNO CHMM JG IHML OHCP LK MHKG JHLO MJ����S���#��)$S���(#S�Q�����#�� GHGG GHON CC GHGG GHOK CI GHGG GHOP OP GHGG GHOG OP GHGG GHCN OK�����S	$/����()$�������� GHGG GHGM NJ GHGG GHGM NP GHGG GHGM NP GHGG GHGM NP GHGG GHGI NJ�� �#S2�(2,��)�	�*����)�	�	�� MHPN GHPJ PL MHJP MHLJ JN MHJK MHIP JN MHNG MHOI JN MHCK MHMO JP���� �,����)�	�	����##(T�$�� GHGG GHGG NI GHGG GHGG NI GHGG GHGG NM GHGG GHGG NL ?U> GHGG ?U>���<�	#�4#�2
(�2��#�����)�	�	�� LOHIL MJHGC PJ LOHCL MPHIL PK LOHGJ MPHGL PK LPHJC MNHLP PN OLHPM IGHNL NM��,��R���4#��-V)	�*���������W GHGG GHGG PM GHGG GHGG PM GHGG GHGG PG GHGG GHGG PG GHGG GHGG PM� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ������(��#�-��$	$/������� PPHGC NOHII G PNHKJ NOHGM I PNHLL NOHGM I NGHLN NLHPK O NMHJN NOHGM ML� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����($	$�����%�Q��)����(0���$R� IHIN MHLG NM MHKO MHIJ JL MHJN MHIN JN MHPK MHLP JP IHCJ MHON PP��.��0	���"��	X�������Q���1�F����� OHPG MHLO NP OHOK MHOI NP OHCP MHOI NP LHCC MHOL NK IHMM MHOG PG��!�%������#�-������!T$�S GHML GHGI NI GHMI GHGM NI GHML GHGI NI GHGL GHGM JN GHGM GHGI KG���	��Q��$S	���$<��-�W�$�)��� GHGG GHGM NK GHGG GHGM NJ GHGG GHGM NJ GHGG GHGM NJ GHGG GHGM NJ���$<�	$�Y$�($�(#	S���S��)4� GHGG GHGG NO GHGG GHGG NM GHGG GHGG NM GHGG GHGG NM GHGG GHGG NG��!�%��������� OHJL IHNO PP OHMM LHGN JC OHMK LHGN JJ OHMJ LHML JK LHCI IHPK KN�����(��#��($2-��$	$/������� MMHNC CHJN NN MGHLL CHNN NJ MGHKJ CHNN NJ NHKM KHMO NC PHIM CHNN PK�������(��#������� MGGHGG MGGHGG NI MGGHGG MGGHGG NI MGGHGG MGGHGG NM MGGHGG MGGHGG NL MGGHGG MGGHGG NN� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ������$S4*�F�������(
����S	� GHML GHIG CG GHMC GHIG CO GHMO GHIG CI GHMC GHIG CM GHMO GHIG ON� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �F	�4	#	�	�� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �����0�$S���1(�	�� IOHCP IIHIN KG IOHLL IMHNC KI ILHJL IMHPC CN IPHGI ILHML KP LGHCJ IOHOI JM���##��!Z�Q��������()$�� MKHKK MGHCO JI GHOG MGHCM ML MHMK MGHIL MK GHLC MGHNJ MI GHOI MMHKL MG��,($�*�,��R�����1(�	�����()$�� MJHMM MLHLJ KJ LGHGG MOHIL NM INHIJ MOHGM NM LLHNP MOHJL NO OGHOC MKHCG NC��!�%�����<	$/����1(�	�� NHPJ MGHGK CK JHMP MGHLC LK NHOM NHNK CM PHJL MMHNK LP MGHLG MOHGJ OG���	0����1�����(����#(T��$�)��$���F	0	� MCHOJ MJHLP OG MLHOC MKHIJ LP MOHGJ MKHNO LJ MMHNL MOHLI OM PHPI MMHJP LC��F���+��)##*��$�)��S���(R���S���1(�	�� GHGG MHIL CI GHGG MHPC CI GHGG MHNL OK GHGG MHCI CM GHGG GHJJ CN�����(�����1(�	�� PLHKP JCHPO PI JCHLJ JCHPC OI JJHKC JCHLC CK PLHGG JPHIM KP NGHCJ PIHKL NL���)##*��$�)��S���(R���S���1(�	�� GHGG MHIL CI GHGG MHPC CI GHGG MHNL OK GHGG MHCI CM GHGG GHJJ CN���	0����1���4(<���$�)��$���F	0	� PHCI PHMN CO MGHPL KHKN PI PHPJ JHIC KP PHIO CHCO JJ LHJO LHPG CJ����1(�	���	$��(��	/$�!

	��� ?U> GHGG ?U> ?U> GHGI ?U> ?U> GHGI ?U> ?U> GHGL ?U> ?U> GHGI ?U>�����(��#���1(�	�� NIHIM PKHIJ NO PKHMN PCHCO ON PKHCM PCHKO CI NMHIO PKHLI PK NOHLM PPHGG NJ� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �����S���#��)$S��.)��%�Q���1(� GHGG GHLO JO GHGG GHIJ JM GHGG GHIC KK GHGG GHLO CN GHMI GHLO KP���(��#���S� (0��F(�$��(��(T	$/� GHLO IHIG OI GHLK IHLP LN GHLC IHOG LO MHLJ IHOM OC GHOI MHLN OL���(��#�!�%����(��(T	$/� MHII GHGI NK PHGK GHKP NJ JHOO GHON NP IHCN GHLP NG GHGG GHGI PI����,�0(+��%���������(����)$S	$/ NHCJ MGHMK OP MPHJJ MGHIK PN MKHIM MGHCN PI MGHPK PHKL KP IHPN CHMN LG� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����)4(�S	$���S��(����Q���4�$�)��� GHGG GHGC NN GHGG GHGM NN GHGG GHGM NN GHGG GHGM NN GHGG GHGM NN��!�%���F	�4	#	�	�� GHMJ GHKC I GHLM GHJL MM GHLP GHJC MO GHIJ GHKJ MM GHIL GHCO MP�����(��#�F	�4	#	�	���[�$�#�,(��/\ NLHNO NGHOM NM NOHNI NGHPN NO NOHKN NGHJL NO NCHOJ NMHIC NC NCHGP NMHMK NK� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����(��#���$R���1	��#�Q�,	$��$� KHGK NHCN P CHGP NHMM C CHLM NHIJ C OHCL PHJC O OHNI PHPO L�����(��#�F	�4	#	�	���Q���1	��# MGGHGG MGGHGG NN MGGHGG MGGHGG NN MGGHGG MGGHGG NN MGGHGG MGGHGG NN MGGHGG MGGHGG NN� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ���,�0(+��##���(R���S���1(�	�� GHGG MHKP OJ GHGG IHLG OC GHGG IHOI OG GHGG MHNG OC GHGG MHGM CC�����$�)��S���(R���S���1(�	�� GHGG MHIL CI GHGG MHPC CI GHGG MHNL OK GHGG MHCI CM GHGG GHJJ CN� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
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������ �����	���	��������������������� ���������� !��!"��� �##$%�&���'�($�&�)	*+�!����,������
�- �$.&�/0�)1���� �&�#/�	��$
�($�&��##$%�&����&2�($�&�)	*++3�4��� -������-���-�0��0���3)3.5#	����6$�� 7898:9;7;< 7898:9;7;= :;98:9;7;= :;98:9;7;8 :;98:9;7;;�&�#/�	�����	$� >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF >?@A BC�D BEF��($���3�$G	�	$&��$��G���4�������� HIJK HIHL MN HIHK HIHL DJ HIHO HIHM OP HIHP HIHP LJ HIHQ HIHP LP�����$G��	����$�3�	$�����2	��($�� MOIPH OHIDN ML NKILO KLIQL KQ KJIMP PMIPP DN KHIHH JNHINL KJ KHIMO JHOIQN KO� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �������($����$��G���4���$��#�(�'(� HIHJ HIHO DO HIJO HIHN MM HIHP HIHL LP HIJH HIHK MH HIHP HIHN MH��R�$���($����$��G���4���$��#�(�'(� HIJJ HIHD MJ HIJL HIHK MP HIJN HIHQ PN HIJK HIHP MH HIJH HIHD PP�����$G��	����$��G���4���$��#�(�'(� HIJH HIHN QN HIHO HIHN PP HIHL HIHN MJ HIHK HIHO PK HIHO HIHO LK� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �����(�$&�(�'(�� ����$�(�'(�� �� JIOD JINL LO JIOL JINM LK JIOH JINL LH JIOD JINM LN JIKD JIOJ LQ����(�$&�(�'(�� ����$��$��#�(�'(� JIOD JINL LK JIOL JINM LK JIOH JIND LH JIOD JINM LN JIKD JIOJ PH����(�$&�(�'(�� ����$�����($�����S�T JPMIMM JHOIJO MH JHIPJ JHNIKP NO NHIDM LDIQD KO JOIMP MHILP OJ NJIHL JNNIOM OD����(�$&�(�'(�� ����$��$&����.�#�(�'(��S�T NIPK JHIPL KO DIPD JJIHM DK NIPK QINM KN MILO JNIJK LN NINH JOIDK ND� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ���1��&	&4���$G���4��$
�����($�����S�T JNQIJP JPQIJN LD LILJ JDDINN JO JQIKN JHPIOQ OO JLILD JOJIHP NL OLIKM NNLIQL OP� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �����($�����5/��/6��$
�(�'(� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ������#�1������($�&� HIHH HIHH ML HIHH HIHH MP HIHH HIHJ LQ HIHH HIHH PJ HIHH HIHH PK�����$&���.��	$&�'�(�&2���G�#$6U�&� HIHH HIHO QP HIHH VHIHJ QM HIHH HIHH QO HIHH HIHH QO HIHH VHIHO QD�������+����U	#/��$&���.��	$& HIHH HIHK QP HIHH VHIHN QM HIHH VHIHO QL HIHH HIHN QL HIHH VHIHJ QP������!�,����$&���.��	$&�'�(�&2 HIHH HIHD QM HIHH VHIHN QQ HIHH VHIHJ QD HIHH VHIHN QL HIHH VHIHO QL�������.��2�5/����U#�&2 HIHH HIHH QQ HIHH HIHH QM HIHH HIHH QP HIHH HIHJ QL HIHH HIHH QL�����+����U	#/����	2�&�	�#�($�&� HIHH HIHH MQ HIHH HIHH QJ HIHH HIHH PP HIHH HIHH PQ HIHH VHIHJ PQ������ $U��1W.	�/�($�&� @X? VHIJM @X? @X? VHIJD @X? @X? VHIHN @X? @X? HIHH @X? @X? VHIHO @X?�������+����U	#/�����(	�&�($�&� HIHH HIHH QJ HIHH HIHH QO HIHH HIHH PQ HIHH HIHH MO HIHH HIHH MN�������+����U	#/�Y��(	�&�($�&� HIHH VHIHP QM HIHH VHIHQ QM HIHH VHIHQ QD HIHH VHIJO QL HIHH VHIND QL����).#�	
�U	#/�($�&� HIHH HIJM QM HIHH HIHN QQ HIHH HIHM QM HIHH HIHQ QQ HIHH VHIHJ QQ�����$&+���U��$&+���	2�&�	�#�)�4 HIHH HIHH QK HIHH VHIHJ QD HIHH HIHH MD HIHH HIHH MM HIHH HIHH MM������!%&���!��.6	�2��$&
��U��$&���	2�&�	�# HIHH VHIHJ QL HIHH VHIHJ QP HIHH HIHH QH HIHH HIHH QJ HIHH HIHH QJ������!�,����$&
��U��$&���	2�&�	�# HIHH HIHK QP HIHH HIHH QM HIHH HIHH QO HIHH VHIHJ QD HIHH VHIHN QD�����1�($�&��	&��$��	4&�!

	��� @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHH @X?� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����4�	�.#�.��#�($�&� HIHH VHIHN QD HIHH VHIHN QM HIHO HIHH QK HIHH HIHH QO HIHH HIHH QN���$UU���	�#��&2��&2.���	�#�($�&� HIHH HIHL PD HIHK HIHO MN VHIHM HIJM P HINJ HIJJ PP VHIHN HIHK ND��($�&���$��&2	G	2.�#� HINL HIOJ LL OIQK HION QL NIOL HIKJ QO NIOQ HIOO QD NIJM HIND QL�������2	�����2�3#�&� @X? JIQH @X? @X? HILO @X? @X? HIQL @X? @X? JIHD @X? @X? HIDM @X?�����.�$�($�&� VNIDH HIJN H HIHH HIJH PL HIKM HIJK MK VHIJQ HIJN K HIKL HIHL QH���$&+��6$�	�$�/"�!�,���'�).&	�($�&� HIHH HIOD MH HIHH HINL MH HIHH HILH PJ HIHH HIKJ PK HIHH HIKL PO��($�&���$��$��	4&�R$G��&U�&�� @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHH @X?��(������	&�&�	&4 @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHN @X? @X? HIHJ @X? HIHH HIHN QJ HIHH HIHH QK����(�������$��&2	G	2.�#� @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHH @X? @X? HIHD @X? @X? HIHH @X?�����##�!�,���(����� @X? HIHH @X? @X? VHIDQ @X? @X? HIMQ @X? @X? HIHK @X? @X? HIHH @X?� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��.66#�U�&��#0 � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ���($�&���$��	&�&����$UU#����#�1����� HIHH HIHH QM HIHH VHIHP QM HIHH VHIHK QM HIHH VHIHO QM HIHH VHIHL QQ� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��,�&4�0���(�$&�(�'(�� ���SZ---T � � � � ���4	&&	&4���#�&�� K[HPK K[HKQ K[HKQ K[JNM O[OLMR�$������2	��($���� MO JJQ OLM KHL NMD��)�U$0�($�&�� ���\�	��+2$%& H H H H H���$G��	�� PP ND JPH JJK MQ���������2	��($���� L QK JQM NQN JQL� � � � � �3�$G	�	$&0����2	��($���� NND PO NNO KLO DDL!�,����2].��U�&�� H H H VNDH KHH����(�$&�(�'(�� �� K[NQO K[HNM K[HPK K[HKQ K[JNM
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�T	#0 SLSS SLSS NM SLSS SLSS NN SLSS SLSS NM SLSS SLSS NN SLSS SLSS NN�����$&+���T��$&+���	3�&�	�# SLSS SLSS MK SLSS SLSS MK SLSS SLSS MS SLSS SLSS MS SLSS SLSS JK�����$��	5&�!
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	���:#�$��;�:����� OIOO OIOO MM OIOO OION MM OIOO OION MM OIOO OION MM OIOO OIOJ MM� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��#QQ���	�-����-�,������:#�$�������<�#
�	�������2	��-�/-(����:�#$�:�;:�� �� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����#$.#T$���!����#QQ���	�-����-�,����� NCNINH NGJIJH KH NNCIHO NLOIFC FJ NKMIFM NLOIGJ KF NJJILC NLOIJH FF NOLIFF NLOIMH JM����+�Q#*��!!���,��.W����V�#T�&����� FMILM KJIGL CK NJCILF CFIJL HM JONILH KKIMK MC NJJIOC CFICG HH NNNIML CFIJH HK���#��-��#QQ���	�-����-�,����� JOCING JFMIJF KF NGHILK JCFIMK JL JOFINC JCFIKJ FL NLLIJJ JCFILJ FO NGJICO JCGIOO JG� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��#QQ���	�-����-�,������:#�$�������<�#
�#��-�:�;:�* � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����#$���(��	#$�;���P�-#2Q�$� NOILG LIHM GH NJIHG LIMO LM NOIHO LIHC LN NKIKN LIMH HK NCIJK HIJN HK���#$.#T$���!����#QQ���	�-����-�,����� FNIKC JLILM GJ JCICL JHIHJ KN FNIGN JHIHN CH JGIGL JHILF KC JKINK JMING FL���#��-��#QQ���	�-����-�,����� KJIGL KNINJ CJ FLIJG KFIOM FL KJIMM KJIHG KM FHICN KJIMC KN FGICK KFIHC FK
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��F���3��������, � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ������#��������#�$%��G�.H IJKL CJMM NK IJKN CJOL NC IJIP CJKP NM IJKP CJOK MN KJPO IJMO MK����&��#�������.Q5�#�� NJRS NJLO II MJOP NJLP RI NJLL NJSC IR NJSC NJPI RI OJRL OJRK CS�����������#��������#�$%��G�.H MJRL KJIN NO MJMI KJMN P MJCS KJIM NM MJIM KJMS NN KJOM KJCC NS����T��$#	#��������#�$%� OJIS OJIK RK OJCS OJIS RL OJRL OJCI PK OJRR OJCK RS NJPN OJCI SI����&��$#	#�������.Q5�#�� MJRO MJKC RS MJKK MJIC IK MJKK MJCR KL MJMC MJCN KI KJCK MJCO SN������2��&2�$F	�	$#�������F�#*��G�.H OJCP NJCO R OJIS NJML NN OJSC NJII MI OJLK NJKI MK NJNS NJRM MI����&�2�$F	�	$#,����1	��U$���� OJNI OJOR LM OJOI OJOR CN OJOS OJOS RN OJOK OJOS IM OJOS OJOS RN����&�2�$F	�	$#,����1	��U$���!�(������� OJOO OJOO PS OJOI OJOO SI VOJOS OJOO N OJOR OJOO SM ?W> OJOO ?W>������2����Q�!5����	#3��#�$%��G�.H OJIK NJIM R OJIN NJMO NO OJSC NJKK ML OJPC NJMK MI NJNN NJCK MC����T����/	0�1�X�	#��U$�������� OJOO OJOO SI OJOO OJOO SI OJOO OJOO SK OJOO VOJON SI OJOO VOJOS SR����T�Y#���/	0�1�X�	#����U$�����.Z*	�+���� OJOO OJOO SK OJOO OJOO LL OJOO OJOO LP OJOO OJOO LI OJOO OJOO LL����2����Q�����!5����	#3��#�$%��G�.H OJIK NJIN R OJIN NJNS NO OJSC NJKM MS OJPC NJMO MR NJNN NJIL MP����������!5����	#3��#�$%� OJOP NJMO N OJKM NJOO NO OJLC NJNM KK OJRI NJON ML OJSP NJMC KN���������#������	4�-	#��#�� OJOO OJOO SS OJOO OJOO SS OJOO OJOO SS OJOO OJOO SS OJOO OJOO SS���������#�$%���1[*���1��*4�� OJOP NJNO N OJKM OJSK NO OJPC NJOK MS OJCS OJSI MR OJLP NJNR ML�����������#�$%� OJOP NJMO N OJKM NJOO NO OJLC NJNM KK OJRI NJON ML OJSP NJMC KN� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �-��3	#��#�/+�	�, � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����#���#��G�.H��$��F3�.��#������� IJLP CJIK MM IJPP CJMS MP IJSM CJRO MN IJLK CJMK KK KJSP IJKP KO���#��.Q5�#����$��F3�.��#������� NJLL NJLL CM MJMS NJSI PN MJOP MJOK CI MJNR NJLN PN OJPK OJRC RN�������#���#�&�.��$��F3�.��#������� MJSL KJCC NL MJIP KJKI NN MJLR KJCP NP MJRL KJIM NR KJMI KJPO MI� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �U$�#�\�U������#�/+�	�, � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �������U$����$��F���3���$��/�U�\U� OJON OJOK CK OJNK OJOM LL OJOI OJOS RO OJNN OJOR PL OJOL OJOI LO��.��#	#3���$F���3��$
�����U$���G�H NMSJNP NMJRM PR RJRN NJPM II COJIL KRJKP PO NKJRS NRJIR CN KMJCL VNJNN CL����U�$#�U�\U�� ����$�����U$�����G�H NPLJLL VNJCO LR NOJPN VSJIR CN KMJLC NRJSK PN NMJCO NJPC CI NSJIP VKJPN RO� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ���5	��/	0��	$# � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ������(��	F	1�#1���$������#�$%� IMCJOO KIJNI SL NMPJPI KKJOM SM IOJCM IPJKM CM CLJLO IPJSK RI PCJCP INJMO PC������	#�.��#���$��F3��$��/�.Z*	�+ VIJNL PJCL P VNJLI RJKP NO SJML CJNM PN RJKM IJKM CR RJPS PJPN IN� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �]	�/1�$#�$���$���$
, � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����$��/�U$�#�\�U������G�.H PJOO RJIC PC PJOM RJMM LM PJNN RJRO PI PJNP RJNC LP CJLL CJML LM����U$�#��	#��$%���	��!

	��� RJSL RJII PC PJON RJMN LM PJOS RJCS PI PJNC RJNI LP CJLP CJMP LM���������/�.����� RJPC RJMK PI RJIS CJSO PP RJLI RJMS PC RJSC CJLK LS CJPM CJOL LK�����������*��1�4+��&����%����	�2�$5 RJMI RJKO IL CJSI CJSL CO RJMI RJKP IR PJOC CJSC LK CJIM CJNP RI���������//�!�(���U$�#���������/�.����� PJON RJMR PS RJLO CJSN LI PJNC RJKN LN RJSO CJLK LR CJLP CJOL LI�������$%%���	�/�\��#1*���	�/ LJOP PJML PS LJNC PJMS PL LJNO PJRK PO RJSI PJMN II RJNR RJOM RO�������#1	F	1*�/ LJRP LJNO RP LJNI PJCS RP LJCK LJOK RI LJON PJIS RC PJMS RJCL RS�����������1	�����1 ?W> SJRN ?W> ?W> SJLR ?W> ?W> SJCR ?W> ?W> SJLL ?W> ?W> LJSI ?W>�������3�	�*/�*��/ LJMC RJRL PC LJLM RJCI LC LJPK RJPL LM LJCN RJIL LN CJLO CJIM CN����U$�#��	#��$��	3#�!

	��� ?W> OJOO ?W> ?W> RJKM ?W> ?W> RJKL ?W> ?W> CJSR ?W> ?W> CJIC ?W>���$��/��#F���%�#�����*�	�	���G�.H MJMN MJLI MI MJNN MJPN MK MJMO MJSO MN MJNR MJRR ML MJMI MJKI IP���$��/��#F���%�#�����*�	�	���G�$$̂H NJSS MJRS NP NJSN MJCL NS NJSC MJPR NR NJSK MJCM MM NJSS MJMO KP����Y��������\��3�#�+�G.Q�/�-��H NJRK MJIM MR NJPC MJKI KI NJPC MJCN KO KJML MJKI PS MJII NJSI PC����-$��3�3�����̂�1����*�	�	�� MJOS MJSN MK NJSL MJPN MP MJOK MJSR MK NJSL MJRI MS MJOK MJMC II�����//�!�(������*�	�	�� NJSK MJCL MN NJLR MJRC NC NJSO MJPO NR NJLI MJRK NI NJSI MJIC MM���#������&����	#3���#̂���/�#��� IJIN KJSR LM CJRM IJRR SN IJSO IJCM PN CJRS IJLR LO IJOR KJKI LC����1���/��*#1���$/1�\�����/�� ?W> IJON ?W> ?W> CJOO ?W> ?W> IJIR ?W> ?W> IJSC ?W> ?W> KJML ?W>� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � ����$��/��#�����������	#3���5$�	�� MJCO MJCO CN MJLM MJCI RC MJRM MJRS IP MJPR MJKP RS NJNM OJLC PM�������#����	$#����$*#�� MJKI NJNC LR OJNC NJMN S OJMK NJMM NM OJOO NJNP O OJNR OJCM MI����!�(�����F	#3����5$�	�� OJNR NJCC N NJLP NJPR CP NJLR NJPI CR NJLI NJRP CS NJOK OJPO PI
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Bank Name:
Historical Information
(to be completed by the bank and provided to district)

ECR Explanatory
Rate Notes, if applicable

Month %
March-25 Not Applicable to this Bid

February-25 Not Applicable to this Bid
January-25 Not Applicable to this Bid

December-24 Not Applicable to this Bid
November-24 Not Applicable to this Bid

October-24 Not Applicable to this Bid
September-24 Not Applicable to this Bid

August-24 Not Applicable to this Bid
July-24 Not Applicable to this Bid

June-24 Not Applicable to this Bid
May-24 Not Applicable to this Bid
April-24 Not Applicable to this Bid

Interest Bearing Explanatory
Public Funds Accounts Notes, if applicable

Month %
March-25 2.83% EFFR minus 150 basis points

February-25 2.83% EFFR minus 150 basis points
January-25 2.83% EFFR minus 150 basis points

December-24 2.83% EFFR minus 150 basis points
November-24 3.08% EFFR minus 150 basis points

October-24 3.33% EFFR minus 150 basis points
September-24 3.33% EFFR minus 150 basis points

August-24 3.83% EFFR minus 150 basis points
July-24 3.83% EFFR minus 150 basis points

June-24 3.83% EFFR minus 150 basis points
May-24 3.83% EFFR minus 150 basis points
April-24 3.83% EFFR minus 150 basis points

 ATTACHMENT A - BANK HISTORICAL INFORMATION

TXN Bank



 ATTACHMENT A  

    Uvalde Consolidated ISD

     Provide a price schedule for all services and include any one-time charges or set-up fees.

 

Est. Unit Bank Explanatory

Service Unit Basis Vol. Charge Notes, if applicable

Account Deposit Services  

Master Account Maintenance Fee Per account N/C N/C - No Charge

Subsidiary Account Maintenance Per account N/C

Money Market Account Maintenance Fee Per account N/C

Interest Bearing Accounts Maintenance Fee Per account N/C

ZBA Accounts Maintenance Fee Master Per account N/C

ZBA Accounts Maintenance Subsidiary Per account N/C

ZBA Account Transfers Per item N/C

 

Investment Sweep - master account Per account/mo N/C

Investment Sweep - Subsidiary accounts Per account/mo N/C

Debits Posted Per item N/C

Credits Posted Per item N/C

 Per item 

Automated Services - Balance & Detail  

If Services are Bundled:

Bundled Balance & Activity Reporting Per month N/C

     Monthly Maintenance Per month/account N/C

     Detail Item Fees Per item N/C

If services are Un-Bundled (by Module)

Balance Reporting Module Maintenance Per account N/C

    Daily Balance Reporting Per account N/C

    Previous day Reporting Per account N/C

    Previous Day Dr/Cr Items Per item N/C

ACH Module Maintenance Per account/overall N/C

     ACH Detail Per item N/C

Reconciliation Module Maintenance Per account/overall N/C

     Recon detail Per item N/C

Stop Pay Module Maintenance Per account/overall N/C

     Stop pay item Per item N/C

 Wire and Internal Transfer Module Maintenance Per account/overall N/C

       Addenda reporting Per item N/C

Positive Pay Module Per account/mo N/C

    PP Detail Per item N/C

Detail Transactions - All modules Per item N/C

Deposits  

Commercial Account Maintenance Per account N/C

     Banking Center Deposits Per item N/C

     Night Drop Deposit Per item N/C

Items Deposited  

   Items deposited Per deposit N/C

   On-us Items Per item N/C

   Local items Per item N/C

   Local Fed/RCPC Clearing Per item N/C

   City Items  (in state) Per Item N/C

   Other State Items Per item N/C

   11th Fed Country Items Per item N/C

   Other 11th Fed RCPC Items Per item N/C

   Transit Item Clearing Per item N/C

  

Encoding Charge Per item N/C

Cash Vault  

Cash Vault Base Fee Processing Fee Per item N/C

       Standard Deposit Vault Per deposit N/C

       Standard Deposit Note Vault Per deposit N/C

Currency Deposits

      Cash deposited  Per $$ N/C

       Strapped currency furnished  N/C

       Currency Wraps Shipped Per strap N/C

Coin Deposits



 ATTACHMENT A  

    Uvalde Consolidated ISD

     Provide a price schedule for all services and include any one-time charges or set-up fees.

 

Est. Unit Bank Explanatory

Service Unit Basis Vol. Charge Notes, if applicable

       Full bag - loose coin N/C

       Partial bag of loose coin N/C

       Rolled Coin Furnished Per roll N/C

       Minimum Change Order N/C

Branch Order Processing Per Order N/C

Branch Per Deposit Per Deposit N/C

Branch Coin Shipped Per Shipment N/C

 

Change Order Per item N/C

Deposit Corrections Per item N/C

Return Item - Per item Per item N/C

Return Items Return and Reclear Per item N/C

Charge-backs Per item N/C

Return Check Notice   Fax Per item N/C

Return Check Notice  Internet Per item N/C

ACH Processing  

Service Monthly Maintenance (Base) Fee Per month/account N/C

ACH Transactions Originated Per item N/C

Debits originated Per item N/C

Credits Originated Per item N/C

Electronic Credit Received/Posted Per Item N/C

Electronic Debit Recived/Posted Per item N/C

  

Electronic Originated Addenda Per item N/C

ACH Return Items Per item N/C

Return Notification Per Item N/C

Deletions or Reversal Charges Per item N/C

Transmission Per file N/C

Fraud Filter - Review - Base Fee Per month N/C

Fraud Filter - Review - Per Item Per item N/A

Reports - by Fax Per item N/A

Positive Pay  

Service Monthly Maintenance (Base) Fee* Per account or mo N/C

Positive Pay Item Per item N/C

Per item charge with Partial Recon Per item N/C

Per item charge with Full Recon Per item N/C

Per item without recon services N/C

Transmission - File Transmission Per item N/C

Imaging  

Imaging Maintenance Per month N/C

CD Rom Service - Per Item Per item N/C

CD Rom Service - Per Disk Per item N/C

Reconciliation  

ACH Monthly Maintenance Per Month N/C

Partial Recon Monthly Maintenance Per Month N/C

      Partial reconciliation - detail Per item N/C

Full recon monthly maintenance Per month N/C

      Full recon detail Per item N/C

Deposit Reconciliation - Mo Maintenance Per Month N/C

      Deposit Recon - per detail Per item N/C

Transmissions Per Transmission N/C

   Transmission Detail Per item N/C



 ATTACHMENT A  

    Uvalde Consolidated ISD

     Provide a price schedule for all services and include any one-time charges or set-up fees.

 

Est. Unit Bank Explanatory

Service Unit Basis Vol. Charge Notes, if applicable

Safekeeping  

Service Monthly Maintenance Custody Per month N/C

Clearing Fees  N/C

Securities Received/ Delivered - DVP Per item N/C  

Safekeeping Fees Per item N/C

Custody per Cusip/Holding Per cusip N/C

Income Collection to DDA Per item N/C

Stop Pays

Stop Pays (automated) Per item N/C

Wire Transfers

Service Monthly Maintenance* Per month N/C

Incoming - domestic Straight Per item N/C

Outgoing - repetitive - automated,domestic Per item $25

Outgoing - non-repetitive - automated,domestic Per item $25

Book Transfer Internet Initiated Per item N/C

Wire Advices Faxed/Mailed Per item N/C

OPTIONAL SERVICES REQUESTED

Remote capture of checks

One-time set-up or training fees One time N/C

Monthly maintenance Per month/card N/C

Capture and transmission fee from provider Per item N/C

On-us Item Per item N/C

Local Item Per item N/C

Transit Item Per item N/C

RCK Services

RCK Maintenance Per account/mo N/A

RCK Detail Per items N/A

Pay/Debit Cards   

Service Monthly Maintenance Per month N/C

Processing and servicing Per card N/C

Implementation fee One time N/C

Initial system design and development One time N/C

Enrollment Per card N/C

Corrections Per item N/C

Employee Charges

  ATM Cash Withdrawal - On-us Per item N/C

  ATM Cash Withdrawal - non-bank Per item N/C

  Cash Advance OTC Per item N/C

  ATM Balance Inquiry Per item N/C

  Overdraft Fee Per item $30

  Lost/stolen replacement fee Per card N/C

  Standard reporting Per item N/C

Purchasing Cards

Service Monthly Maintenance Per month N/A We do not offer purchasing cards

Card Issuance Fee Per card N/A

Transaction Fee Per item N/A

License Fee Per month N/A

Rebate on amt purchased <$1mm N/A

Merchant Card Services  

Fees N/A Rates and Fee's Determined by 

One-time set up fee N/A Fitech, the Banks Merchant 

Application fees:  First location N/A Service Partner. Rates are 

                             Locations 2-5 N/A determined by transaction volume. 

                              Locations >5 N/A

Annual fee / Monthly Maintenance fee Per month/location N/A Fitech uses an interchange plus 

Monthly Statement Fee Per month N/A rate model. (interchange rate + 



 ATTACHMENT A  

    Uvalde Consolidated ISD

     Provide a price schedule for all services and include any one-time charges or set-up fees.

 

Est. Unit Bank Explanatory

Service Unit Basis Vol. Charge Notes, if applicable

Supply fee Per month N/A 25 bps + 10 cents per card 

Minimum processing fee N/A transaction

Internet Set-up fee Per location N/A

Credit Card Processing fees Per item N/A

VISA CPS-2      Interchange % N/A

                        Assocation % N/A

                        Visa fee $ N/A

                         Bank fee $ N/A

MC Merit III        Interchange % N/A

                        Assocation % N/A

                        MC fee $ N/A

                         Bank fee $ N/A

Visa Check Card    Interchange  (Signature) % N/A

                        Assocation % N/A

                        Visa fee $ N/A

                         Bank fee $ N/A

MC Debit Card    Interchange  (Signature) % N/A

                        Assocation % N/A

                        MC fee $ N/A

                         Bank fee $ N/A

Debit Card Processing  MC/Visa N/A

Authorization Fees N/A

Voice authorizations N/A

Address verification N/A

Terminal Authorizations N/A

MC Electronic authorization N/A

Discover Electronic authorization N/A

AmEx Electronic authorization N/A

Processing Fees N/A

Chargeback processing N/A

Batch settlement fee N/A

Transmission Fee Per item N/A

Transmission - Item Per item N/A



ATTACHMENT A
 Fee Schedule 

Item Description 
Account Transaction Fees 

Maintenance Fee 

Per Deposit 

Per Deposit Item 

Transit Check Deposit 

Per Debit (ACH/CHK) 

Checks Written 

Return Items 

NSF 

Stop Pay 

Wire Outgoing International 

Wire Outgoing Domestic 

Account Reconciliation 

Cashier’s Checks 

Research 

Incoming Collection 

Outgoing Collection Charge 

Backs 

Remote Capture 

Positive Pay 

Forms 

Checks 

Deposit Slips 

Transfer Forms 

Frequency 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Per Item 

Published Fee 

$15.00 

$0.15 

$0.15 

$0.15 

$0.15 

$0.15 

$10.00 

$30.00 

$30.00 

$75.00 

$20.00 

$25.00/hour 

$5.00/each 

$25.00/hour 

$10.00 

$20.00 

$10.00 

$25.00/Scanner 

$10.00 

At Bank Cost 

At Bank Cost 

At Bank Cost 

Uvalde ISD 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 

N/C 



Attachment B 
 CD Rates ** 

Item Description 

CD – 3 months 

CD – 6 months 

CD - 7 months 

CD – 12 months 

CD – 24 months 

Published Int Rate/APY 

3.15% 

3.45% 

3.97% 

3.92% 

2.75% 

Uvalde ISD APY 

3.15% 

3.45% 

3.97% 

3.92% 

2.75% 

Minimum Balance 

$100,000.00 

$100,000.00 

$100,000.00 

$100,000.00 

$100,000.00 

**All CD Rates are subject to change daily.
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Proposal Form
for Depository Services   

by Uvalde Consolidated ISD Independent School District

Definitions and Instructions 
In this document, the terms “you” and “your” refer to the depository bank, and “we,” “our,” 
and “us” refer to the district named above. 

You must answer all questions in this form and provide it to us as your proposal. 

We have the right to reject any proposal. If any part of this proposal or any contract entered 
into between you and us is invalid, the remainder, at our option, remains in force and is not 
affected.  We have the right to use a sub-depository bank other than the primary bank and 
those deposits will be collateralized. 

Bank Compensation 
We may pay for your services by targeted balances or by fees and change the methodology 
when appropriate? Please detail any differences in related costs to us with either option.  

The question does not apply since the account we are offering will not be on account 
analysis. 

Compensation Based on a Targeted Balance 
We may choose to pay for your services by maintaining a targeted amount of our funds in the 
depository. We will maintain balances in the checking accounts to compensate you in full or 
in part for services provided. You must provide a monthly account analysis that reflects the 
earnings credited for these balances. 

You may invest any excess collected balance daily as directed by us in an overnight 
investment that we approve, an interest-bearing account, or a money market mutual fund 
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) which strives to maintain a 
$1 NAV. Please list below the overnight investment and any index upon which the rate will be 
based. 

The account will not need to be swept overnight since it will be earning a competitive rate 
already. 

The rate history at your bank for the months beginning 04/24 and ending 03/25 was: 

The rates on Public Fund accounts are the Effective Fed Funds Rate, (EFFR), minus 150 
basis points floating. The current rate would be EFFR of 4.33 - 1.50 = 2.83%, with a floor 
of .25%.  

*Please complete Attachment A, Bank Historical Information (tab).

Last Modified:  04/07/2025 
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If any of these rates is based on an index rate (such as the T-Bill auction rate), stipulate how 
you will use the index to calculate the rate. 

Effective Fed Funds Rate minus 150 basis points with a floor of 25 basis points. 

Compensation Based on Fees 
We may choose to pay for your services on a straight fee basis in which we will not maintain 
a targeted balance. You will assess fees, and we will pay them in accordance with your 
proposed fees as listed on Attachment A, Volumes for Pricing Transactions (Column E-Unit 
Bank Charge).  

I believe this question doesn’t apply to the account we are offering the School District.  

District Investments 
We reserve the right to purchase, sell, and invest our funds and funds under our control, 
including bond funds, as authorized by the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2256, Public 
Funds Investment Act, and in compliance with our investment policy, a copy of which is 
attached as Attachment C or it may be obtained at the District’s website at  (About 
Us>School Board>School Board Policy). 

We may choose to invest in time deposits at the depository. You will pay interest on our 
funds placed in time deposits with maturities we chose. The interest rate spread on the 
deposits should be indicated as above, below, or equal to the “asked” yield on the 
comparable maturity T-Bill of the proposed time deposit being purchased as reported in an 
independent, financial source. 

Single Maturity Time Deposits of more than $100,000: 

**Attached** 

Collateral 
Collateral Conditions 
You must provide collateral equal to 102 percent of all our time and demand deposits plus 
accrued interest minus applicable Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) coverage. 
Collateral will be pledged to us and held in an independent safekeeping institution by a 
custodian or permitted institution as specified by the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2257, 
Public Funds Collateral Act. You will be liable for monitoring and maintaining the collateral 
and the required margin at all times and will provide an original safekeeping notice and a 
monthly report of the collateral including at least the security description, par amount, cusip, 
and market value. 

You and we must execute a collateral agreement in accordance with the Financial Institutions 
Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act of 1989 (FIRREA). Provide a sample collateral 
agreement as Attachment D, Sample Collateral Agreement. 

We estimate our maximum anticipated collateral requirement to be $15,000,000. 
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If voluntary collateral pooling is legislated during the period of this contract, you and we may 
consider it and agree to use it under this contract. 

TXN Bank Pledges Securities equal to 110% of the uninsured amounts on deposit reported 
monthly.  

Eligible Collateral 
We will accept only approved securities as specified by the TEC, §45.201, as pledged 
collateral, voluntary pooled collateral (if available) or a Federal Home Loan Bank Letter of 
Credit in accordance with our investment policy  

[Alternatively, the district may require specific collateral in accordance with its investment 
policy. In that case, the district would refer to its investment policy and use the following 
paragraph instead: 

We will accept only the following as pledged collateral in accordance with our investment 
policy (see Attachment C, District Investment Policy – CDA-Other Revenues:  Investments 
LOCAL): 

The district lists items here. 

1. Obligations of, or guaranteed by, governmental entities as permitted by Government 
Code 2256.009. 

2. Certificates of deposit and share certificates as permitted by Government Code 
2256.010. 

3. Fully collateralized repurchase agreements permitted by Government Code 2256.011. 

4. A securities lending program as permitted by Government Code 2256.0115. 

5. Banker's acceptances as permitted by Government Code 2256.012. 

6. Commercial paper as permitted by Government Code 2256.013. 

7. No-load mutual funds, except for bond proceeds, and no-load money market mutual 
funds, as permitted by Government Code 2256.014. 

8. A guaranteed investment contract as an investment vehicle for bond proceeds, 
provided it meets the criteria and eligibility requirements established by Government 
Code 2256.015. 

9. Public funds investment pools as permitted by Government Code 2256.016. 

As a State Chartered financial institution, the bank meets all state requirements for the 
pledging of Securities on public funds. 
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Banking Services Fees 
 

Based on the services we require from you, complete the proposed fee schedule, Attachment 
A, Volumes for Pricing Transactions (Column E-Unit Bank Charge).  All fees which may be 
charged to supply the services must be included or will not be eligible under the contract.  We 
and you reserve the right to mutually agree upon any change of contract terms or pricing 
during the contract extension periods.  

    **Attached** 
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Depository Information  
Please answer the following questions about your depository bank. 

1. State the full name and address of the depository and any parent holding company. 
List all branch locations within our boundary.  

 
TXN Bank 
103 19th St. 
Hondo, Texas 78861 
 
TXN Bancshares 
103 19th St 
Hondo, Texas 78861 

2. Provide the annual audited financial statement for the most current fiscal year. This may 
be in printed form, but we prefer an electronic link to the website. Members of your 
holding companies must include corporate annual financial statements and your 
individual call report for the most recent operating quarter. Audited financial statements 
are required each year of the contract.  **Attached** 

3. State your rating from an independent depository rating agency or, if that rating is not 
available, the rating on your senior and subordinate debt. You must inform us of any 
change in this rating during the period of the contract within a reasonable period. 

    5 Star, Superior, by Bauer Financial. 

4. Contact Information 

To ensure smooth communication and continuation of services, you must assign a 
specific account executive and a backup to our account to coordinate services and help 
solve any problem encountered. 

a. Designate a depository officer as a primary contact with us. 

 Name:  Zachary Duron 

 Title:  Treasury Management Officer 

 Telephone: Office 830-426-3066 Cell 210-381-0512 

 Email: zduron@txn.bank 

      b.  Designate a depository representative as a backup contact with us. 

 Name:  Kaci Klaeger 

 Title: Operations Officer 

 Telephone: Office 830-426-3066 

 Email: kklaeger@txn.bank 

c. If the primary and backup contacts are not available, how do we contact someone in 
an emergency? After hours? 

 The primary contact assigned to this account is available via the cell phone listed 
above 24 hours a day. 
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d. Describe in detail how you handle problem resolution, customer service, day-to-day 
contact, and ongoing maintenance for governmental clients. Please be specific about 
exactly whom we will be calling and working with for the situations described above. 

We prioritize prompt and effective problem resolution to ensure minimal disruption to our 
governmental clients. Our approach includes: 

Investigation: We thoroughly investigate the issue to identify the root cause. 

Solution Offering: We propose a clear and actionable solution, ensuring it aligns with 
the client's needs. 

Feedback and Follow-Up: We seek feedback on the resolution process and follow up 
to ensure complete satisfaction. 

Our customer service is designed to be responsive, reliable, and supportive. Key elements 
include: 

After Hour Support: We offer after hour support through multiple channels (phone and 
email) to address any queries or concerns. 

Dedicated Account Managers: Each governmental client is assigned a dedicated 
account manager to provide personalized service and ensure continuity. 

Training and Resources: We provide comprehensive training and resources to help 
clients utilize our services effectively. 

We maintain regular and proactive communication with our clients to ensure smooth 
operations. This includes: 

Scheduled Check-Ins: Regularly scheduled check-ins to discuss ongoing needs and 
any potential issues. 

Real-Time Updates: Providing real-time updates on any changes or developments 
that may impact on the client's operations. 

Accessibility: Ensuring our team is easily accessible for any immediate concerns or 
questions 

Our ongoing maintenance services are designed to ensure the reliability and efficiency of our 
depository services. This includes: 

Regular Audits: Conducting regular audits to ensure compliance with all relevant 
regulations and standards. 

System Updates: Implementing system updates and enhancements to improve 
functionality and security. 

Preventive Maintenance: Performing preventive maintenance to avoid potential issues 
before they arise. 
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Zachary Duron and Kaci Klaeger will be the primary points of contact when calling about the 
situations described above. 

5. List references from at least three of your current, comparable governmental clients. 
Include the length of time under contract and a client contact, title, and telephone number.

1. Medina Regional Hospital-Since 1994.
Kevin Frosch-CFO-830-426-7898

2. Medina ISD-Since 2005.
Charles Orr-Business Manager-830-589-2855 Ext 103

3. City of Hondo-Since 2022.
Chris Hill-CFO-830-426-3380 Ext 1010

6. Based on the services we require, please provide a proposed timeline for implementing 
the contract; include the timeline activities and direct responsibilities of both our district 
and your depository bank during implementation.

7. Provide a copy of all agreements (including those not directly referenced in this proposal) 
that will be required under the contract.

8. If we award the contract to you, you must review our then-current district investment 
policy and certify in writing to that review in accordance with the Public Funds Investment 
Act verifying that you have sufficient controls in place to avoid transactions not authorized 
by the policy. We have attached our investment policy to this proposal notice as 
Attachment C or it may be obtained at the District’s website at 
(Board>Board Book, Policy, and Current Board Meeting Agenda>School Board Policy). I 
have reviewed the Investment Policy and can confirm that the controls are in place to 
avoid transactions not authorized by the policy.

9. We may conduct a preaward interview on-site at your deposition bank before awarding 

the contract. Please provide us with a contact name for arranging the preaward interview. 

Zachary Duron.

10. Are you offering any transition or retention incentive to us? If so, please describe it in 

detail.

Yes, exceptional customer service.
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Banking Services 
1. Consolidated Account Structure with Sweep Mechanism  

We are interested in earning at then-current interest rates available at all times. We want 
the option to use an automated, daily sweep to a money market mutual fund or 
depository alternative account (if competitive) to reach our full investment goal  

Our current account structure is listed as Attachment B, District’s Current Account 
Structure. We do not guarantee that we will maintain the balances or structure at these 
same levels. 

You must clearly describe your most cost-effective account structure (interest bearing 
accounts, zero balance accounts [ZBAs], or sweep, etc.).  

a. Fully describe the proposed account structure. Would a sweep be from a master 
account with ZBAs or directly swept from the individual accounts? Is interest 
distributed at the account level? 

b. State the average interest rate on the recommended alternative structure for the past 
12 months. 

c. If an SEC-registered money market fund is used for the sweep proposal, provide the 
full name and a copy of the prospectus.  It must strive to maintain a $1 NAV. 

d. Interest earned on interest bearing accounts must not be charged as an expense on 
the account analysis. Confirm acceptance of this condition. 

We may be required or may desire to open additional accounts, close accounts, or 
change account types during the contract period. If this occurs, the new accounts and 
services must be charged at the same contracted amount or, if unanticipated, at not more 
than published rates. 

The most cost-effective account is the Public Funds Account referenced on page 1 which 
I believe negates the need for sweep accounts, although they are available. 

2. Automated Cash Management Information  
We are interested in automated balance and detail information and online retention. 
Minimum automated services must include the following: 

 prior-day summary and detail balance reporting on all accounts yes 
 intraday detail and summary balances (on local main and payroll accounts) 
 initiation and monitoring of stop payments yes 
 positive pay exception transactions yes 
 initiation and monitoring of internal and wire transfers. yes 
 image access yes 
 controlled disbursement presentment totals [optional] 

a. Fully describe your online service. List the system capabilities (for example, 
balance reporting, wires, positive pay, stop payment, etc.). All of these services 
are accessible in our online Treasury Platform. (Single Sign On) Balance 
Reporting, downloading statements, transaction history (excel, qbo), check image 
viewer, account alerts, Stop Pay, Positive Pay, online Wire services, ACH 
Origination (manual or NACHA file upload), Remote Deposit Capture, internal 
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transfers, creating and maintenance of log ins, permissions for different account 
levels, and dual approval for transfers. 

b. What is your backup process to report balances and transactions in case the 
system is not available? If online banking is down, we have a automated 
TeleBank number you can call to get account balances and transactions. Or you 
can call a POC to retrieve balance and transaction history 

c. When is daily balance information available? Real time 
d. Submit samples of major screens available, or provide web link access to a 

demonstration module. Attached 
e. How is an individual security sign-on assigned, and who maintains the security 

module? How many levels of security are available? Each log in created has 
multifactor authentication. The bank can maintain the security module but can set 
up a user with access to those security permissions. With wire and ACH transfers, 
the users with access to those modules will be equipped with an MFA token that 
safe keeps your password. Dual approval is also required when submitting ACH’s 
or Wires.  

f. [Optional] With regard to controlled disbursements: N/A 

– What is the cutoff time for disbursements? 
– What Federal Reserve location do these accounts clear through? 
– How do we have access to this information? 

3. Deposit Services  
We require standard commercial deposit services for all accounts.  

We expect all deposited checks to clear based on your current published availability 
schedule, but please note any options for expedited availability in your proposal. For all 
cleared deposits you receive by your established deadline, you must process them for 
same-day ledger credit. If you fail to credit our accounts in a timely fashion, you must pay 
interest to us at the then-current effective federal funds rate.  

a. What is your daily cutoff time to ensure same-day ledger credit? ITM cutoff time is 
7:00PM, In branch 3:00PM, Remote Deposits 4:00PM. 

b. Describe how and when you send credit and debit advices to us. Yes, notifications 
can be sent when making deposits and/or bank transactions. They are sent when the 
teller is done with the deposit or transaction. 

c. What type of deposit bags do you use or require? Are these available from you? Yes, 
we can provide locked deposit bags. 

d. In what city does item processing occur? Hondo 

Remote Deposit 
We are interested in [] establishing or using remote check deposit for a few high-volume 
locations during the contract period. These deposits include both consumer and 
commercial checks.  

e. What are your current capabilities in remote check deposit? Describe how checks are 
processed and cleared. Please state the cutoff time for same-day ledger credit. 
Deposit Reports, Multiple Deposit Locations, Permissions for Users and no deposit 
limits. Once scanned in and the deposit is completed, the checks are transmitted to 
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the bank to be processed. If there are no exceptions the deposit is posted to the 
account. If there are any exceptions, the deposit will be reviewed for errors. Once 
approved it will be posted to the account. Our cutoff time for Remote Capture is 5:45 
PM. 

f. Give two comparable references with contact information. City of Hondo – Olivia 
Hancock Assistant Finance Director 830-426-3378 ext. 1015, West Medina Water 
Supply Sue Long Office Manager 830-363-7616 

g. Do you produce a daily balancing report? Provide a sample. Attached 
h. What scanner equipment is required to operate the system? Is this equipment 

available through your depository bank for purchase or lease? Please list the 
equipment required along with its cost. There are many compatible scanners. We use 
an Epson - TM-S1000 – Scanner for Windows OS and MicroElite for Mac Devices. 
Yes, the equipment is available for purchase or lease. There will be No charge for 
equipment rental. 

4. Standard Disbursing Services  
We are interested in standard disbursing services for designated accounts. 

a. Do you image all paid checks, deposit items and deposit slips? Yes 
b. Are check and deposit images available online? When? Do you provide a monthly 

compact disc (CD)? If not, are reports downloadable? Yes, they are available online, 
we do not provide a monthly CD, but the reports are downloadable and presented on 
monthly statements 

c. How long do you maintain check and deposit images online? Check and deposit slip 
images are available to view in transaction history for 1 year and 6 months. They are 
also available in the statements which can be downloaded from online banking 
indefinitely.  

d. Do you pay all our checks without charge upon presentation? If funds are available. 

5. Positive Pay 
We require positive pay services if available at the bank for designated accounts on 
which checks are written. The positive pay process should be fully automated and web 
based. We will transmit check information electronically to you on each check run and as 
we create checks manually.  

a. Describe the data transmission and transfer requirements for automated and manual 
checks. Your issued check list can be imported into our online Treasury Platform for 
the automated process and can be manually entered for individual checks. The 
requirement for the file is a tab delimited text file.  

b. Is input available online for manual checks? If it is not available online, how do we 
transmit information on individual manual checks to you?  Yes 

c. How can we change or delete check records, if necessary? In the online treasury 
platform 

d. How do you notify us of a positive pay exception? Positive Pay currently will not notify 
you if a check is in the exception list. During daily reconciliation you can check the 
exception list in online banking. 

e. When do you report exception information to us? When is the deadline for our 
exception elections? Are images of exceptions available? Updated between 6 and 8 
AM every day, the deadline to decide on the exception online is 10 AM. But you have 
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until 1:00PM of the same day to call in to the bank and make a decision. Yes, 
exception images are available. 

f. Are all checks, including those received by the tellers and vault, verified against the 
positive pay file before processing? How often do you update teller information? Yes 
the tellers list will update as you upload your issued checklist. 

g. Do you offer payee positive pay? No, an automated process currently, but we are 
evaluating potential vendors. 

h. Please provide a copy of your file layout format.  

6. Account Reconciliation  
We anticipate using partial or full reconciliation services on all accounts in concert with 
positive pay, depending on cost effectiveness.  

a. Describe the partial and full reconciliation processes. Bank does not perform 
reconciliation for customers. 

b. With what format(s) does your system interface? What record formats are required? 
How do you send reconciled data to us? When? N/A 

c.  Please provide references of customers who use the XX ledger system? N/A 
d. Specify all reporting alternatives. N/A 
e. Are reports available online? How long are reports maintained online? Provide a 

sample copy of reports. N/A 

7. Funds Transfer and Wire Services  
Incoming wire transfers must receive immediate same-day collected credit. Wire initiation 
should be available online. We require that wires be released the same business day if 
information is provided by the established deadline. 

a. Describe the process of online wire initiation. What backup process is available for the 
online process in case the system is unavailable? The process would be initiated 
through our treasury platform. A dual approval is required when sending wires or 
ACH’s through online banking. Our wire team will verify before releasing the wire. 
Backups would include sending wiring instructions via email or by completing the wire 
worksheet that is located on our website. 

b. Is any paper transaction required for transfers or wires as follow-up? We require 
signatures for transfers and wires done outside of the treasury platform. Back up 
methods will require a digital or wet signature. 

c. How and when will you notify us of incoming wires? Online? Email? By email and you 
will get a notice as the wire team processes the wire. 

d. Is future dating available for both repetitive and non repetitive wires and transfers? 
How far in advance? Yes, default is 6 months. 

e. What is the deadline for initiation: 
– by telephone? 
– online? 

Wire instructions must be received by 3:00 PM for the same day. (email, wire 
worksheet, treasury platform) 

f. Are templates and template storage available? Yes 
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8. Optical Imaging 
We desire optical images that are downloadable or on CD on all accounts. 

a. What items and reports are available online (checks, statements, deposit slips, 
deposited items, etc.)? How long are each available? Statements, transaction history, 
deposit slip and check images are all available. Statements are available indefinitely 
after enrolling in e-statements  

b. What items are captured on the monthly CD, if provided? N/A 
c. When do you make the monthly CD or imaged reports available? N/A 
d. When and for how long are statements and account analyses available online? After 

enrolling in e-statements statements will be available indefinitely. 

9. Automated Clearinghouse (ACH) Services  
We require ACH transactions for payable and receivable transactions. We require a pre-
notification (pre-note) on all new transactions.  

a. Describe the transmission alternatives for individual ACH transactions. Can we initiate 
individual ACH transactions online?  Yes, the transmission can be submitted manually 
by entering in account details or via NACHA File 

b. What filters and blocks are available on our accounts for ACH transactions? We use 
Stop Pay for ACH Blocks. Can block company ID’s and amounts. Which will be 
reviewed, and you would be notified. 

c. Are ACH addenda shown in their entirety online and in reports? Yes 
d. What is your policy on pre-notification? Is the pre-note charged as a standard ACH 

transaction? This would be at the discretion of the Originator, we do not require 
prenotes, but we do monitor return activity to make sure we are within the guidelines 
put forth by NACHA. This is not standard but the prenote can be set up in our ACH 
module in the Treasury Platform. 

e. What is the deadline for transmission (hour and day) for a payroll to credit employee 
accounts on a Friday? 1 day in advance. Thursday at 3:00PM would be the cutoff for 
an ACH to go out on Friday 

f. Is ACH positive pay available? No currently, but we are evaluating potential vendors. 

g. Does ACH debit the account on day of initiation or settlement? ACH originated debits 
will process the night before the settlement date. The debit might be pending the night 
before and posted the day of settlement. 

10. Safekeeping Services  
We may require you or another eligible offeror to provide book-entry safekeeping services 
for any securities we own. We will make all our investments and transmit instructions for 
clearing and safekeeping to you in writing or electronically.  

All securities must be cleared on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis. Ownership 
must be documented by original clearing confirmations, and safekeeping of receipts must 
be provided within one business day of the transaction. Funds for investments must be 
drawn from our designated demand deposit account. All principal and interest payments, 
coupon payments, and maturities must receive automated same-day collected credit on 
our designated account without requiring any additional action by us.  
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If you use a correspondent bank for safekeeping our securities, the transactions must be 
handled through your systems and must not require additional interaction by us with the 
correspondent bank. No delay in transactions, wires, or flow of funds is acceptable under 
a correspondent relationship. 

a. Are you a member of either the Federal Reserve or a Federal Home Loan Bank? If
not, name the correspondent depository you would use for clearing and safekeeping.
Describe any safekeeping arrangement proposed with a correspondent depository
including processing requirements by us.
TXN Bank is a member of the Federal Reserve Bank and offers safekeeping
arrangements through Frost Bank in San Antonio.  Frost Bank sets up a safekeeping
account for Public Fund clients of TXN Bank who purchase Treasuries.

b. Are security transactions available online for either originating or monitoring?

No, there is no online monitoring or origination, but a safekeeping statement will be
provided monthly.

c. What is the deadline for settlement instructions on a cash (same-day) settlement?
Would we incur any charge for late instructions?

11:00 AM is the deadline.

We may choose to purchase time deposits from you, but all time deposits will be 
competitively bid at the time of purchase.  

11.  Collateral Requirements 
You must meet all the requirements, including those beyond the Public Funds Collateral 
Act, as stated below. The proposal must state that you agree to the following terms and 
conditions:

• All collateral pledged to us must be held by a custodian or permitted institution as 
specified by the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2257, Public Funds Collateral Act 
and in compliance with our investment policy – CDA, which is provided as Attachment 
C or it may be obtained at the District’s website at  (About
Us>School Board>School Board Policy).

• We, you, and the safekeeping bank must execute a triparty safekeeping agreement 
for custody of pledged securities in full compliance with the FIRREA requiring a 
depository resolution. (Or completion of Circular 7 if a Federal Reserve bank is acting 
as custodian. Even if a Federal Reserve bank is used, you and we must still execute a 
depository agreement.)

• All time and demand deposits above FDIC coverage must be collateralized at a 
minimum of 102 percent of principal plus accrued interest at all times (110 percent on 
mortgage-backed securities).

• You are contractually liable for continuously monitoring and maintaining collateral at 
our required margin levels.

• The custodian must provide evidence of pledged collateral by sending original 
safekeeping receipts or a report directly to us within one business day of receipt.
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 We must receive a monthly report of collateral pledged including description, par, 
market value, and cusip, at a minimum.  

 We must grant substitution rights if you obtain our prior approval and if substituting 
securities are received before previously pledged securities are removed from 
safekeeping. 

Authorized collateral includes only approved securities as specified by the Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 2257, Public Funds Collateral Act and noted above.  

a. Do you propose any collateral charges? If so, under what conditions are they 
charged, and how is the charge applied?  
There is no charge for the pledging of securities. 
 

b. What is your deadline for requesting collateral in excess of existing requirements? 

The bank pledges securities covering 110% of uninsured deposits.  If additional is 
needed, the bank would be open to discussing the reason for and possibly 
accommodate the request. 

12. Account Analysis  
You should provide monthly account analysis reports for each account and on a 
consolidated account basis.  

a. When is the account analysis available each month?  
b. Is the account analysis available online? Is it imaged on electronic media monthly?  
c. Are paper statements also sent to us? If so, when?  
d. How long will it take you to correct any billing errors on the account analysis? 

The Public Funds accounts are not placed on analysis. 

13. Monthly Statements  
You must provide monthly account statements on all accounts with complete supporting 
documentation.  

a. State when monthly statements will be available each month online and on paper. 
When enrolled in e-statements they will be available for download on the 1st. Paper 
statements will be received within 3-10 days. 

b. Is the monthly statement available online? If so, when and for how long? Are the 
statements imaged and/or put on electronic media monthly? Indefinite after enrolling 
in e-statements. Statements are imaged but not put on electronic media. 

c. If imaged, are paper statements also sent to us? If so, when? Yes, they are printed on 
the last day of the month and sent out in the mail. 

14. Overdrafts  
a. Are all accounts aggregated for overdraft calculation purposes? No, it’s per account 

and we do not charge a continuous fee. A per item fee of $30 would be assessed. 
b. State the rate basis for intraday and interday overdrafts. N/A 
c. What is the policy for daylight overdrafts? N/A 
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15. Stop Payments  
We desire an automated stop payment process. 

a. What are the time period options available for stop payments? 6 months 
b. What are the options for extended stop payment periods? How are they extended? 

Stop payments can be extended in online banking. 
c. What is the cutoff hour for same-day action on stop payments? 3PM 
d. Can we initiate stop payment orders online? If so, do you require any paper follow-up 

document? If done through online banking, there is no paper follow up required. If 
done over the phone or in person we will have you sign or docusign a stop payment 
form. 

e. What information on current and expiring stop payments is available online? Can view 
all current and expired stop payments through the Treasury Platform 

16. Customer Service 
a. Do you offer customer services in languages other than English? Yes. 
b.   What languages are offered? Spanish. 

17. Service Enhancements 
Based on the information you provide in the proposal and your knowledge of the public 
sector, please describe any services or technological enhancements, not previously 
mentioned, that we should consider to manage our treasury operations more effectively. 

The service enhancements will come from working with a local community bank. 
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Optional Services 
1. Nonsufficient Funds (NSF) Checks Re-presented as ACH (Re-presented 

Check [RCK] Entry) 
We may want the option of the second presentment to be made by ACH to targeted dates 
for maximum collection potential. 

a. Are you currently using ACH for collection of NSF checks? How long have you been 
providing this service? Provide two comparable references with contact information. 
No 

b. How are the NSF and the later ACH transactions matched and reconciled? Does your 
system cross-reference the two transactions in any way? N/A 

c. Is the NSF information, image, or occurrence available online? When and how? For 
how long is it available online? N/A 

d. Can we specify any target pay day(s)? N/A 

2. Merchant Services.  
We are interested in possibly accepting credit card payments for various activities.] The 
service should include daily capture, transmission, and authorization of payments at point 
of sale and on the web. The service must include reporting by location. 

a. Do you currently offer merchant card processing services? How long has this service 
been available? What interface format(s) does your system supply? Yes, the service 
has been available for 5 years. 

b. How many institutions and end customers do you have? 20 customers enrolled 
currently. 

c. Describe the fee components of a merchant card processing relationship. Provide a 
list of all the fees to us. State the association fees, the discount rates, and your fee 
per transaction. Network access charges for major payment networks, PCI 
compliance fee, and per transactions fess they use an interchange + model. Which is 
the interchange fee + ~20bps and ~20 cents per transaction (Fitech’s Margin). 
Depending on the volume of sales that margin may increase or decrease. 

d. Do you have software that allows online payments to us through your portal? Fitech 
has Virtual Terminal Options, can send invoices via email text. Or incorporate 
payment links. 

e. Describe the reporting functions and data availability. Firstview is the portal Fitech 
uses for reporting and statements. 

f. Describe billing options. Refer to Fitech 
g. Describe the authorization method or process used. How are incorrect authorizations 

reversed? It can be voided before settlement. After settlement it would need to be 
refunded. 

h. Describe your debit card processing capabilities. Do you distinguish between debit 
and credit cards on your bank identification number (BIN)? Can you program a debit 
card to the lowest cost network? Yes, to all three. 

i. Describe your transmission process. Describe the monitoring and notification process 
if transmissions fail. Refer to Fitech 

j. Is data imaging available online? What is available online? When? For how long? 
Refer to Fitech 

k. Describe the dispute resolution process. Refer to Fitech 
l. Describe your security measures for Internet transactions and unauthorized use. 

Refer to Fitech 
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We have partnered with the merchant service provider Fitech/Deluxe and do not offer 
these services in-house. Some of these questions I will have to refer to Fitech for 
accuracy. 

3. Payroll Cards or Debit Cards 
We are exploring the use of stored-value cards (payroll cards or debit cards) as a payroll 
option for employees at a minimum. Cardholders should be able to use the cards as debit 
cards for purchases at point of sale as well as for cash withdrawals at financial institutions 
and automated teller machines.  

The purchasing ability of the cards must be limited to the stored value of the card. We 
may choose not to pay for access fees for the employees issued the stored-value cards. 

We will be responsible for any marketing of the program and have total discretion on the 
distribution of the cards. We will enroll the employees. You must provide cardholders with 
all processing and transaction information and reports. We expect the following services 
from you, at a minimum: 

 embossing, encoding, and distributing standard cards as directed by us 
 providing paper and electronic statements to cardholders  
 administering accounts, including maintenance of accounts, application of funds, 

authorization of transactions, and related tracking 
 customer service functions 

a. Do you currently provide this service? If so, how long has it been available?  
b. How many institutions and end customers use the service? Provide three 

comparable references for the service. 
c. Which program (authorization marks) does your program use? (Visa, MasterCard, 

etc.) 
d. Describe the enrollment process. Is enrollment batched and web-based? 
e. Describe the manner by which funds will be made available to the cardholders.  
f. What are the inactivity levels for the program? Do these generate additional fees? 

Describe any other potential fees. 
g. Are all funding transmissions by standard ACH? Describe the data transmission 

requirements and deadlines.  
We do not offer payroll cards 

4. Purchasing Cards 
We may consider a purchasing card program during the contract period. Cards would be 
assigned to our employees for defined use. 

a. What card platforms do you support (MasterCard, Visa)? Do you use a third-party 
processor? 

b. What, if any, information is available online? When? Describe data download and 
integration capabilities. Describe reporting capabilities. 

c. What client support is available? How is it provided?  
d. Describe the diverse parameters and restrictions available for the card control. 

How many access levels are available? 
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e. Discuss settlement and corporate liability terms. Include information on your
support for the program and your experience, settlement terms on payment,
security procedures, and license requirements. How will we receive billing?

f. Describe how cards are issued, deleted, or replaced. How do you handle lost or
stolen cards?

g. Provide three comparable references for the service.

We do not offer this service currently. 

5. Check Printing
a. Do you offer check printing services?  Describe? We have a partnership with

Deluxe for our check stock. 
b. What is the deadline for same-day and next day printing? No same day availability

but we do offer temporary checks or cashier’s checks. We can expedite for an 
additional fee. 

c. Where are checks printed and sent from? Deluxe. In-house for temporary and
cashier’s checks. 

6. Smart Safes

a. Do you offer smart safes? Describe.  N/A
b. From our deposit history is this cost effective?   N/A
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Schedules and Attachments 
We provide the following: 

• Copy of our audited financial statements – Exhibit C-3 for Fiscal Year End June 30, 
2024 (The entire Audit Report may be obtained at the District’s website at
www.ucisd.net (Required Postings>Financial Transparency Information>Annual 
Financial Statements – Audit Reports.)

• Attachment A, District Historical Information

• Attachment A, Volumes for Pricing Transactions (filled in with volumes)

• Attachment A, Bank Historical Information

• Attachment B, District’s Current Account Structure

• Attachment C, District Investment Policy or it may be obtained at the District’s website 
at www.ucisd.net ( (About Us>School Board>School Board Policy).

You must include the following information with the proposal: 

 copy of your audited financial statements [or link to website]

 corporate audited financial statements and the individual depository’s call report (for
members of your holding companies) [or link to website]

 Uniform Bank Performance Report reference

 Attachment A, Volumes for Pricing Transactions (filled in with rates)

 Sample Account Analysis Statement

 Attachment D, Sample Collateral Agreement

 any service agreements (including those not directly referenced in this proposal) that
must be executed under the contract (if applicable)

 screen shots of major pages within your automated cash management system, or
online web demo access (if available)

 sample daily balancing report for remote deposit (if applicable)

 sample account reconciliation reports (if applicable)
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Optional Acknowledgments 
You confirm that you will not charge interest earned on the account analysis. 

If awarded the contract, you must review our then-current district investment policy and 
certify in writing to that review in accordance with the Public Funds Investment Act verifying 
that you have sufficient controls in place to avoid transactions not authorized by the policy.  

You accept the investment options and/or collateral conditions as specified in our investment 
policy. 

 

By submitting this proposal, you acknowledge that you agree with and accept all 
specifications in the proposal except as you expressly qualified in the proposal. 

 

 

Bank: TXN Bank 

 

Address: 103 19th St 

 

City, State, Zip: Hondo, Tx 78861 

 

Phone Number: 830-426-7204 

 

Email Address: othompson@txn.bank 

 

Typed Name: Olen Thompson, EVP 

 

Date:_____________________________________________________________________  
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REMOTE DEPOSIT CAPTURE SERVICES AGREEMENT 

THIS REMOTE DEPOSIT CAPTURE SERVICES AGREEMENT (this “Service 
Agreement”) governs the provision of certain remote deposit capture services to the undersigned 
Customer by Bank. As used in this Service Agreement, “Bank”  means  TXN Bank ,N.A.,  a national 
banking association, and any other affiliate of Bank which provides such services to Customer, and 
"Customer" means the undersigned customer and any affiliate of the undersigned, as more particularly 
described below. 

1. Remote Deposit Capture Services. This Service Agreement governs the provision of remote
deposit capture services as may be provided by Bank to Customer from time to time. Remote deposit 
capture is a service which allows Customer to scan checks and electronically transmit the scanned images 
with MICR data and/or ACH-data to Bank for posting and clearing (the “Remote Deposit Capture 
Services”). All items submitted for Remote Deposit Capture Services shall be subject to Bank's 
verification and final inspection and may be rejected by Bank in its sole discretion without liability. Bank is 
not obligated to detect errors by Customer and, except as provided herein, is not liable for errors in 
providing the Remote Deposit Capture Services. Further terms relating to the Remote Deposit Capture 
Services are contained  in the addendum attached hereto (“Addendum", and the term Addendum shall 
refer to the original Addendum as amended, revised or replaced from time to time). The Addendum will 
be deemed accepted by Customer upon provision by Bank of Remote Deposit Capture  Services to 
Customer. The Addendum may be amended, revised, or replaced at any time by the Bank and shall be 
deemed fully accepted by Customer upon Customer's use of the Remote Deposit Capture Services fifteen 
(15) days after notice of such amendment, revision or replacement is sent by Bank in accordance with
Bank’s normal business practices. If Customer rejects such revised Addendum during the fifteen (15) day
period by written notice to Bank, either party may thereupon terminate this Service Agreement upon ten
(10) days written notice. Bank acts as a depository for the funds of Customer pursuant a deposit account
agreement and other agreements between Bank and Customer (collectively the “Account Agreement”),
which governs the rights and obligations of the parties pertaining to the deposit, withdrawal, and
availability of funds. All the terms and provisions of the Addendum and Account Agreement are
incorporated herein. Customer acknowledges and agrees to all time periods, deadlines, limits, image
quality requirements, acceptance requirements, and fund availability rules contained in the Addendum
and herein. Customer  agrees  that  all  images  shall  also  meet  standards  established  by  any
regulatory boards, agencies, and any clearing houses and Association used by Bank or any requirements
the Bank  is obligated to observe. In the event of a conflict or  discrepancy relating to the Remote
Deposit Capture Services between the Addendum, the Account  Agreement,  and  this  Service
Agreement, the following order of precedence shall apply: (1) Service Agreement, (2) Addendum, and (3)
Account Agreement, but only to the extent necessary to address the conflict or discrepancy.

In the event that Bank is unable to provide Remote Deposit Capture Services, Customer 
acknowledges that it may instead deposit directly with Bank any original check for processing provided 
such item has not been previously scanned and electronically transmitted for posting and clearing. 

2. Remote Capture Hardware and Software. As part of the Addendum, Bank will provide the
specifications of any hardware and software which Bank has determined to  be  compatible  with  the 
Remote Deposit Capture Services. Except as provided below, Bank will provide Customer with the 
hardware and software to access the Remote Deposit Capture Services (the "Remote Capture Tools") 
upon Customer's execution of RDC setup form. Customer will have a non-exclusive, non-transferable 
sublicense to use the Remote Capture Tools, and by using the Remote Capture Tools, Customer agrees 
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to comply with license terms (including, without limitation, any shrink wrap or clickwrap license agreement) 
included with such Remote Capture Tools. Upon termination of the sublicense, Customer's rights to use 
the Remote Capture Tools will terminate immediately without notice. If Customer desires to obtain and 
utilize alternate software or hardware with the Remote Deposit Capture Services that complies with the 
specifications and requirements set forth in the Addendum, Customer shall submit a written request for 
approval of such hardware or software and shall provide all necessary information that Bank requests. 
Bank may, in its sole discretion, approve, deny or condition use of such alternate hardware or software. If 
such hardware or software is approved by the Bank, the Bank shall have no liability for any loss, liability or 
damage incurred by Customer in connection therewith, except only to the extent of the Bank's gross 
negligence or willful misconduct. 

Customer shall be responsible for acquiring any required hardware, software, and secure 
communication lines and installing and maintaining them in good working condition. Bank shall not be 
liable to Customer for any malfunction, non-function, inaccuracy or other failure of the hardware or 
software, or any secure communication line or device used by Customer to access the Remote Deposit 
Capture Services, regardless of whether Bank approved such hardware, software or communication line. 

3. Security Procedures and Communications. Certain procedures, including the use of
identification codes, encryption, passwords, logon identifications, personal or location identification 
numbers, repetitive codes, tokens and other security devices, systems and software (the “Security 
Procedures”), designed to verify the origination (but not errors in transmission or content) of instructions, 
orders and other communications (each, a “Communication”) sent between Customer and Bank may be 
used in connection with Remote Deposit Capture Services. Customer agrees that any such mutually 
agreed-upon Security Procedures shall be deemed commercially reasonable. Bank shall not be obligated 
to act on a Communication not transmitted in accordance with the Security Procedures and may refuse to 
act on any Communication where Bank reasonably doubts its authorization, authenticity, contents, 
origination or compliance with the Security Procedures. Bank shall have no duty to discover, and shall 
not be liable for, errors or omissions by Customer. If Bank complies with the Security Procedures in 
respect of a Communication, Bank shall be entitled to act on that Communication and shall not be 
obligated to verify the content of such Communication, establish the identity of the person giving it, or 
await any confirmation thereof, and Bank shall not be liable for acting on, and Customer shall be bound 
by, any Communication sent in the name of Customer, whether or not authorized. Whenever the Security 
Procedures include the assigning to Customer of any confidential password, logon identification, 
identification code, personal or location identification number, repetitive code, token or similar security 
device, Customer shall not disclose such security device except to employees or agents authorized to act 
for Customer in connection with Remote Deposit Capture Services. Customer shall implement such 
safeguards as are reasonably necessary to ensure the confidentiality and integrity of such security devices, 
and shall immediately notify Bank if the confidentiality or integrity of any such security  device  is 
breached or threatened. Customer shall be solely responsible for the safekeeping of such security devices 
and assumes all risk of accidental disclosure or inadvertent use of such security devices by any party 
whatsoever, whether such disclosure or use is on account of Customer's negligence or deliberate acts or 
otherwise. Bank shall not be liable for any loss or damage resulting from fraudulent, unauthorized or 
otherwise improper use of any security devices. 

4. Representations and Warranties. Customer hereby makes the following representations and
warranties with respect to each item submitted for Remote Deposit Capture Services: (a) The imaged item 
submitted to Bank accurately represents all of the information on the front and back of the document as of 
the time Customer converted the item to a scanned image and is eligible for Remote Deposit Capture 
Services; (b) The item submitted for Remote Deposit Capture Services contains all endorsements applied 
by parties that previously handled the item; (c)  There will be no duplicate presentment of the item in any 
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form, and Customer assumes responsibility for any such  duplicate  presentment;  (d)  Customer  will 
comply with all image quality standards and procedures and processes established by Bank or required by 
any federal or state agency, board, and any clearing house or Association used by Bank; (e) Customer 
shall fully train its own employees in the use of Remote Deposit Capture Services and all procedures and 
processes related thereto; (f) Customer shall provide any information or documentation requested by 
Bank in connection with the Remote Deposit Capture Services, allow inspection of its facilities by Bank 
employees or agents, and execute any additional documents reasonably requested in connection with the 
Remote Deposit Capture Services as requested by Bank; and (g) Customer shall maintain all equipment 
and software used in connection with Remote Deposit Capture Services, install all updates promptly and 
accurately, and maintain any necessary internet connection necessary for Remote Deposit Capture 
Services. 

5. Compliance with Laws. Customer shall comply with all laws, rules, and regulations
applicable to Customer, to the business and operation of Customer, and to the Remote Deposit Capture 
Services, including, without limitation, Regulation CC, the Uniform Commercial Code and any rules 
established by an image exchange network through which items are processed pursuant to this 
Agreement. Customer further agrees that it shall have the responsibility to fulfill any compliance 
requirement or obligation that Bank and/or  Customer may have with respect to the Remote Deposit 
Capture Services under all applicable U.S. federal and state laws, regulations, and rulings, including 
sanction laws administered by the office of Foreign Assets Control, and other requirements relating to 
anti-money laundering, including but not limited to, the federal Bank Secrecy Act, the USA Patriot Act 
and any regulations of the U.S. Treasury Department to implement such Acts, as amended from time to 
time. 

6. Confidentiality. The Addendum, data, software, processes and other information provided to
Customer in connection with the Remote Deposit Capture Services and all fee and pricing information 
with respect to the Remote Deposit Capture Services (the “Information”) is the proprietary and 
confidential property of Bank and/or its relevant licensors or suppliers. Customer  agrees to use the 
Information only in the manner specified by Bank and in the ordinary course of Customer's business, to 
return it to Bank upon termination of the Remote Deposit Capture Services, and to keep the Information 
confidential and limit access thereto only to its agents and employees who require access in the normal 
course of their duties, except to the extent the Information is already in the public domain or Customer is 
required to disclose the Information by law. 

7. Intermediaries. Bank may act on any Communication and provide the Remote Deposit
Capture Services using any payment system or intermediary organization it reasonably selects 
("Association"). Bank may engage third parties to provide some or all of the Remote Deposit Capture 
Services. Bank shall have no obligation to disclose arrangements with third parties to Customer or obtain 
Customer's consent thereto. Customer authorizes the transfer of information relating to Customer  to 
agents of Bank or Customer for use in connection with the Remote Deposit Capture Services or as 
required by law. 

8. Compliance. Bank’s performance of the Remote Deposit Capture Services is subject to the
rules and regulations of any applicable Association ("Association Rules"). If there are any conflicts or 
inconsistencies between this Service Agreement and the Association Rules, the Association Rules shall 
govern, but only to the extent necessary to address the conflict or inconsistency. Customer agrees to be 
bound by and shall comply with the Association Rules and all laws, rules and regulations in connection 
with the Remote Deposit Capture Services. 
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9. Data Security Requirements. Customer agrees at all times to comply with the applicable security requirements
set forth in the Addendum, as the same may be revised from time to time, as well as the data
protection/security requirements imposed under federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations. Customer
shall agree to install and implement antivirus software on all devices that will host RDC service. Customer shall
agree to have Firewall enabled on device(s) and/or have IDS (Intrusion Detection Service) or appliance.
Customer shall agree to incorporate having all RDC users have unique login credentials. Customer shall agree to
restrict administrative access to certain RDC users. Customer shall agree to install all necessary operating system
patches in timely manner. Customer shall agree to NEVER disable any security, audit or monitoring controls
implemented by TXN Bank ,N.A..

10. Payment. Customer shall compensate Bank for the performance of the Remote Deposit
Capture Services in accordance with the Fee Schedule attached as RDC setup form and shall promptly 
pay all amounts and expenses due under this Service Agreement and the Account Agreement. Customer 
shall also pay any sales, use or similar tax applicable to the Remote Deposit Capture Services. If Bank is 
required to pay any such taxes, Customer shall reimburse Bank therefor upon demand. Customer shall 
also pay all attorneys' fees and other costs and expenses Bank may incur in collecting any fees or other 
sums Customer may owe to Bank in connection with the Remote Deposit Capture Services. Bank may 
collect any of the foregoing amounts and any other amounts due by Customer to Bank hereunder or in 
connection with the provision of the Remote Deposit Capture Services to Customer by debiting any of 
Customer's accounts with Bank, billing Customer, and/or setting off against any amounts Bank owes 
Customer, without any obligation to give prior notice thereof to Customer. Bank shall also have the right to 
credit or debit any accounts of Customer with Bank to correct any processing irregularity in connection with 
the Remote Deposit Capture Services. 

11. Recordings and Records. Either Customer or Bank may produce telephonic or electronic
recordings or computer records, including e-mail and facsimile transmissions, as evidence in any 
proceedings brought in connection with the Remote Deposit Capture Services. Customer agrees to Bank’s 
telephonic or electronic recording for security and quality of service purposes. Customer shall retain each 
check which has been converted to a digital image in a safe and secure environment for such time as 
Customer deems necessary and advisable, but in no event fewer than 75 days after such check has 
been digitized and processed. Customer will promptly (but in any event within 5 business days) provide 
any retained check (or, if the check is no longer in existence, a sufficient copy of the front and back of 
the check) to Bank as requested to aid in the clearing and collection process or to resolve claims by 
third parties with respect to any check. Customer will use a commercially  reasonable  method 
approved by Bank to destroy checks after Customer’s retention period has expired. 

12. Discrepancies. Customer shall promptly notify Bank in writing of any error in connection
with the Remote Deposit Capture Services and any discrepancies between any records maintained by 
Customer and any notice Customer receives from Bank with respect to the Remote Deposit Capture 
Services, and shall provide Bank with any information it may reasonably request in connection therewith. 
Customer agrees that 14 days is a reasonable time for Customer to notify Bank of errors or discrepancies, 
unless any other agreements, Association Rules, laws, rules or regulations provide for a shorter period. 

13. Notices. Any notice or other communication may be sent by Bank to Customer at
Customer's postal, e-mail, facsimile or other address provided by Customer to Bank, and  Bank may 
assume that any notice or communication sent to Customer at any such address has been received 
by Customer, until Customer notifies Bank in writing of another address. 

14. Disclosure. Customer acknowledges that Bank may have certain legal record keeping and
reporting requirements with respect to the Remote Deposit Capture Services and consents to Bank’s 
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disclosure to payment systems, intermediary organizations, and governmental authorities of information 
concerning Customer and the Remote Deposit Capture Services provided to Customer which Bank 
believes to be appropriate or necessary to fulfill such contractual and legal requirements. 

15. Fiduciary Status. Nothing contained herein or in any Addendum shall be deemed to create
any fiduciary status on the part of Bank in connection with the provision of the Remote Deposit Capture 
Services. 

16. Disclaimer. EXCEPT FOR WARRANTIES EXPRESSLY MADE IN THIS SERVICE
AGREEMENT, BANK MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR  WARRANTIES,  EXPRESS  OR 
IMPLIED,  TO  CUSTOMER,  INCLUDING,  WITHOUT  LIMITATION,   ANY   WARRANTIES 
REGARDING MERCHANTABILITY, SUITABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, OR 
NONINFRINGEMENT (IRRESPECTIVE OF ANY PREVIOUS  COURSE  OF  DEALINGS BETWEEN 
THE PARTIES OR CUSTOM OR USAGE OF TRADE), OR COMPATIBILITY OF BANK SOFTWARE, 
EQUIPMENT OR COMMUNICATION INTERFACES WITH THOSE OF CUSTOMER, OR RESULTS TO 
BE DERIVED FROM THE USE OF ANY SOFTWARE, SERVICES, HARDWARE OR OTHER MATERIALS 
PROVIDED UNDER THIS SERVICE AGREEMENT. 

17. Liability. Bank will exercise ordinary care in providing the Remote Deposit  Capture
Services and will be responsible for any loss sustained by Customer only to the extent such loss is caused 
by Bank’s gross negligence or willful misconduct. In no event shall clerical errors or  mistakes  in 
judgment constitute failure to exercise ordinary care, nor shall Bank have any liability for any indirect, 
incidental, consequential (including lost profits), special or punitive damages, whether arising in contract or 
in tort, and whether or not the possibility of such damages was disclosed to or could have been 
reasonably foreseen by Bank. Under no circumstances shall Bank be responsible for any liability, loss or 
damage resulting from any delay in performance of or failure to perform in connection with the Remote 
Deposit Capture Services which is caused by interruption of telephone, facsimile or  communication 
facilities, delay in transportation, equipment breakdown or mechanical malfunction, electrical, power or 
computer failure, accidents, fire, flood, explosion, theft, natural disaster or other catastrophe, acts or 
failure to act by Customer or any third party, strikes or lockouts, emergency conditions, riots, war, acts of 
government or other circumstances which are unavoidable or beyond Bank’s control. Bank shall not be 
liable for failure to perform any of its obligations, or the failure of any third party contractor to perform its 
obligations, in connection with the Remote Deposit Capture Services if such performance would result in it 
being in breach of any Association Rule, law, regulation or requirement of any governmental authority. If 
Bank fails to credit any of Customer's accounts utilized in connection with the Remote Deposit Capture 
Services in accordance with the Account Agreement applicable thereto as of the date such credit was 
earned, upon discovery or notification of such error, Bank will properly credit such account, but Bank 
shall not incur any liability therefor, including any loss resulting from failure by Customer to invest the 
amount of funds not properly credited to the account. In no event will Bank's liability under this Service 
Agreement exceed an amount equal to the Service Fees collected by Bank from Customer for the Remote 
Deposit Capture Services for the prior twelve (12) months (or, if the Services have been used for less than 
twelve (12) months, the Bank's liability shall not exceed an amount equal to the Service Fees actually 
collected, as annualized to determine a twelve (12) month amount). 

18. Indemnification. Customer shall indemnify and hold harmless Bank and each of its
directors, officers, employees, agents, successors and assigns (“Indemnitees”) from and against all 
liability, loss and damage of any kind (including attorneys' fees and other costs incurred in connection 
therewith) incurred by or asserted against such Indemnitee in any way relating to or arising out of the 
Remote Deposit Capture Services, by reason of any acts or omissions of Customer or any third party or 
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otherwise, except to the extent such liability, loss or damage is caused by the gross negligence or willful 
misconduct of such Indemnitee (provided that reliance, without further investigation, on any oral, 
telephonic, electronic, written or other request, notice or instruction believed in good faith to have been 
given by Customer will in no event constitute gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of such 
Indemnitee).  Customer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Indemnitees from and against all claims 

brought by third parties and all fines, penalties or sanction imposed on Bank by any clearing house, or 
governmental entity in connection with the Remote Deposit Capture Services. 

19. Termination. Any Remote Deposit Capture Services may be terminated by either party
upon 30 days' prior written notice to the other. Bank may also terminate or suspend the Remote Deposit 
Capture Services without notice to Customer if any of the following occurs: (a) Customer  becomes 
insolvent or files, or has filed against it, any bankruptcy or other insolvency, reorganization, liquidation or 
dissolution proceeding of any kind; (b) a material adverse change occurs in Customer's business or 
financial condition; (c) Bank has reason to believe that Customer has engaged in fraudulent or illegal 
activity; (d) Customer fails to maintain balances in accounts sufficient to cover overdrafts; (e) Customer 
violates the terms of this Service Agreement, the Account Agreement, or any financing arrangement with 
Bank; (f) Customer fails to provide financial information reasonably requested by Bank; (g) Bank 
determines it is impractical or illegal to provide the Remote Deposit Capture Services because of changes 
in laws, regulations or rules; (h) Bank, in good faith, is unable to satisfy itself that any Remote Deposit 
Capture Services have been properly authorized by Customer; (i) in the event that the Bank determines 
that the transmissions provided by Customer do not meet industry/Bank standards, Remote Deposit 
services may be suspended until such time as new qualified test files have been validated; or (j) Bank 
detects or reasonably suspects any virus or other program, design, or instruction which may be used to 
access and/or interfere with Bank's technology or other  computer systems. In all events, Bank may 
suspend or terminate all Services under this Agreement (upon written notice to Customer) if Bank 
determines that any aspect of the Services may be contrary to law, rules, regulations or the rights of any 
third party. Notwithstanding any  termination, the terms of this Service Agreement shall apply to all 
transactions which have been initiated prior to termination. 

20. Construction and Interpretation. Section headings used herein are for convenience of
reference only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this Service Agreement. 

21. Binding Effect; Binding Upon Affiliates of Undersigned Customer.

(a) This Service Agreement shall bind and benefit the parties and their successors and
assigns. None of the terms of this Service Agreement may be waived except as Bank may consent in 
writing, and no agreement with or representation made by any employee of Bank that is in conflict with 
this Service Agreement will be binding on Bank unless contained in a written modification of this Service 
Agreement signed by an authorized officer of Bank. No delay on the part of Bank in exercising any right or 
power under this Service Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial 
exercise of any right or power under this Service Agreement preclude further exercise thereof or the 
exercise of any other right or power. The rights and remedies under this Service Agreement are 
cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies which Bank would otherwise have. 

(b) As used in this Agreement, "Customer" means the undersigned Customer and all
affiliates of the undersigned Customer. "Affiliates" shall include, without limitation, a l l  p a r e n t , 
subsidiary, and brother-sister companies, and other companies controlled by, or under common control 
with, the undersigned Customer. Third party processors acting on behalf of the Customer are deemed 
“Affiliates” in relation to this agreement. As of the date hereof, the undersigned Customer's Affiliates are 
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identified on Exhibit "A" hereto. The undersigned Customer shall update Exhibit "A" from time to time to 
assure that it remains complete and current. Any party which qualifies as an Affiliate  shall  be 
considered an Affiliate notwithstanding the omission of such party from Exhibit "A". The undersigned 
Customer warrants and represents that it has full authority, right and power to execute this Service 
Agreement on behalf of, and thereby bind, each of its Affiliates. 

22. Modification. Bank may from time to time amend any of the terms of this Service
Agreement or restate this Agreement in its entirety. Customer will be provided with notice of any such 
amendment in accordance with  Bank’s normal business practices. By continuing to use the Remote 
Deposit Capture Services fifteen (15) days after notice of such amendment or restatement, Customer shall 
be deemed to have agreed to such amendment and shall be bound by this  Service Agreement as 
so amended. If Customer rejects such amendment or restatement  by written notice to  Bank within 
such fifteen (15) day period, either party may thereupon terminate this Service Agreement upon ten (10) 
days written notice. 

23. Applicable Law and Jurisdiction. This Service Agreement will be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the state of Texas. In the event of any  court action in 
connection with this Service Agreement, the parties agree and submit to the personal and exclusive 
jurisdiction of and venue in the Federal and state courts (as applicable) located in Hondo, Texas. 

24. Attorney’s Fees. If any action is brought by either party against the other regarding the
subject matter of this Service Agreement, including any court action or arbitration proceedings, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover, in addition to any relief granted, reasonable attorney’s fees, 
costs of court, expert witness fees and other expenses of action. 

25. Notices. All notices permitted or required to be given under this Service Agreement shall be
in writing and shall be deemed duly given upon actual delivery. Any notice shall be addressed to the 
party as follows: 

If to Bank:  TXN Bank  103 19th Street
Hondo, Texas 78861 
Attention: Operations 

Fax Number: 830-426-2265 

If to Customer: The address or facsimile number contained in Bank's records from time 
to  time. Customer  shall  provide  its  current  address  and  facsimile 
number to Bank concurrent with the execution  hereof and thereafter 
immediately upon any change in such information. 

26. Entire Agreement. This Service Agreement, the Addendum, and Account Agreement
constitute the entire agreement between Bank and Customer with respect to the  Remote  Deposit 
Capture Services and supersede any prior agreements between Bank and Customer with  respect 
thereto. This Service Agreements may be executed in more than one counterpart, each of which shall 
be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same document. 

27. Miscellaneous.   An investigative or Consumer Report will be made in connection with this
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application. Applicant authorizes TXN Bank ,N.A., or any credit bureau or any credit reporting agency 
employed by BANK to investigate the references given or any other statements or data obtained from 
Applicant, or any of the undersigned principals. The undersigned represents and warrants that he/she has 
read and understands the Service Agreement, accepts and agrees to abide by all of the terms of Service 
Agreement, and has authority to execute this Service Agreement. The undersigned have executed and 
delivered this Service Agreement to the Bank on the date indicated below. 

CUSTOMER: 

Signature: 
Name : 
Title: 

Date: 

BANK: TXN Bank ,N.A. 

Signature:  
Name : 
Title: 

Date: 

Customer Name 

Port # 

Address 

Primary Account 

Phone Number 

Fax Number 
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UNCONDITIONAL CONTINUING GUARANTY 

Guarantors as designated below, jointly and severally, hereby guaranty the performance of all 
terms of this Service Agreement by Customer to induce Bank to approve this Service Agreement. This 
Guaranty is absolute, unconditional, unlimited, continuing and irrevocable until such time as all 
obligations, financial and otherwise, of the Customer have been satisfied. No event need occur to 
establish the liability of the Guarantors and no event except for satisfaction of all such obligations will 

release or modify the liability of the Guarantors. Bank shall not be required to first resort to Customer for 
any of its funds before enforcing this Guaranty. Guarantors waive any and all defenses, claims, setoffs 
and discharges available to Company and Guarantors. The liability of the Guarantors shall not be 
effected or impaired by any of the following (which the Bank is expressly authorized to do, suffer or omit 
without further notice to or consent of Guarantors): (i) extension or renewal of time for payment of any 
obligation; (ii) any waiver or indulgence granted to Customer, or any delay or lack of diligence of the 
enforcement of any obligation or failure to give notice or institute proceedings; (iii) any full or partial 
release, compromise or settlement with Customer or Guarantor in a respect of an obligation hereunder; or 
(iv) any failure to obtain or preserve rights in any collateral security (including rights of setoff) for the
obligations hereunder, as well as the modification, impairment, substitution or release of such security.
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The undersigned Guarantors have executed and delivered this Service Agreement to Bank on the 
dates indicated below. 

GUARANTORS: 

Signature:      
Printed  Name:     
Social  Security       Number: 
Title:      
Address:      
City/State/Zip  Code: 

Signature:      
Printed  Name:     
Social  Security       Number: 
Title:      
Address:      
City/State/Zip  Code: 

Dated:  

Dated: 

Signature:      
Printed  Name:     
Social  Security       Number: 
Title:      
Address:      
City/State/Zip  Code: 

Dated:  

Dated:  

Exhibit "A" 

To REMOTE DEPOSIT CAPTURE SERVICES AGREEMENT 
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parties: 

 

AFFILIATES 

Effective as of , 20 , the Affiliates of Customer include the following 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADDENDUM 
 

Last Revised on , 20_____ 
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General Time Periods: 
Bank shall use commercially reasonable efforts to process and present items for payment within a 
reasonable period of time of its Receipt and Acceptance of an item using the Remote Deposit Capture 
Services. 

 
 

Business Day: 
Monday through Friday, excluding holidays. 

 

Limits: 
Bank may, at any time, establish daily dollar limits applicable to items submitted to Bank using the 
Remote Deposit Capture Services; and, any such limits may be increased or decreased from time to time 
by Bank. 

 

Hardware Requirements: 
The hardware used in connection with Remote Deposit Capture Services must include the following: 
Physical endorser or franker. Customer has been provided with a list of scanners that are compatible with 
the Bank’s RDC software application. 

 
 

Software Requirements: 
The software  used in  connection  with Remote  Deposit Capture Services must  include  the following: 
Duplicate detection 
Micr read 
Ability to prevent customer from modifying or altering the micr line 

 

Image Quality Requirements: 
The Image Quality Requirements are as follows:  federal standard X9.37 specification.  Bank may change 
such requirements at any time, and from time to time, upon fifteen (15) days written notice. 

 

Secure Communication Line Requirements: 
All communication lines used to provide the Remote Deposit Capture Services shall be provided through 
the following types of secure lines: SFTP or HTTPS. 

 

Date Protection/Security Requirements: 
The Data Protection/Security Requirements include the following: 
All checks must be secured prior to destruction 
Destruction of checks must be done by commercially reasonable standards 
Customer must maintain checks for a length of time to allow customer to reproduce any image requiring 
repair but not for less than 75 days. 

 

Receipt and Acceptance Requirements: 
A deposit using Remote Deposit Capture Services will be received and accepted by Bank when all of the 
following have occurred: 
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1) Bank has preliminarily verified that the Image Quality of the item is acceptable to Bank  in  its 
discretion, all item information is complete, and the deposit totals are balanced to the item information 
provided for the deposit; and 
2) Bank has successfully performed all further validation routines with respect to the deposit; and 
3) The daily dollar Limit for individual items or the total deposit has not been exceeded; and 
4) Bank has received the item during a Business Day; and 
5) The Hardware, Software, Secure Communication Line, and Date Protection/Security Requirements 
have been satisfied. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, items received by Bank for deposit may be rejected by Bank in Bank's 
sole discretion. 

 
 

Fund Availability Rules: 
Funds deposited using Remote Deposit Capture Services which meet the Receipt and Acceptance 
Requirements will be available per the funds availability policy of TXN Bank ,N.A., Hondo, Texas, as 
the same may be in force from time to time. 

 
 
 
 

 
Bank may from time to time amend, revise or replace any of the terms of this Addendum. 
Customer will be provided with notice of any such amendment, revision or replacement in 
accordance with Bank’s normal business practices. Upon Customer's use of the R e m o t e  
Deposit Capture Services fifteen (15) days after notice of such amendment, revision or 
replacement, Customer shall be deemed to have agreed to such amendment, revision or 
replacement, and shall be bound by the terms of the amended, revised or replaced Addendum. 
If Customer rejects such amendment, revision or replacement by written notice to Bank within 
such fifteen (15) day period, either party may thereupon terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) 
days written notice. 
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Positive Pay Agreement

Business Name: _________________________________________________________________ 

Contact Name: __________________________________________________________________ 

Address: _______________________________________________________________________ 

Phone: ________________________________ Tax ID#: ________________________________ 

Bank:     TXN Bank, 103 19th Street, Hondo, Texas 78861, (830)426-3066

This Positive Pay Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of the date set forth below by and between the Client and 

TXN Bank (the “Bank”) and shall become effective as of the Effective Date described below. The Client has 
requested that the Bank facilitate the Client’s detection of unauthorized and/or altered checks drawn on one or more 

accounts of the Client maintained with the Bank through the services described herein below (the “Services”), and 

the Bank is willing to perform such Services. Accordingly, in consideration of the foregoing premises and the 

promises and agreements set forth herein, the Client and the Bank agree as follows:  

1. TXN Bank Cash Management Agreement. This Agreement is incorporated as an Addendum to the

Client’s TXN Bank Cash Management Agreement with the Bank, as applicable, the terms and provisions of which

shall apply to the Services provided to the Client hereunder, except to the extent such terms and provisions may

be inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, in which case the terms and provisions of this

Agreement will govern and control.

2. Outstanding File. The Bank will maintain and update an electronic file (the “Outstanding File”) which will contain

information received from the Client, in accordance with procedures set forth herein, regarding checks issued by

the Client which have not been presented to the Bank for payment from one or more of the Client’s

checking accounts (collectively the “Account”) maintained with the Bank. The Client will provide the

Bank complete and accurate information regarding additions to and deletions from the Outstanding File for all

checks issued against the Account in a format pre-approved by the Bank and will transmit such information (via a

means approved by the Bank) by no later     than  10:00 A.M.                                                                                                                                                                                                     (Central Time)    and     (1)     Business           Day                                              (herein    after      defined)

prior    to the   day                         of  the       checks’                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   issuance in the case of additions and no later than 10:00 A.M. (Central Time) of the day

on which the Client wishes the Bank to remove such checks from the Outstanding File in the case deletions.

Information regarding additions to and deletions from the Outstanding File will include (a) records of checks

issued by the Client (each a “Record” and collectively, the “Records”), and each Record will contain the serial

number, dollar amount, check number, issuance date and payee of an issued check, and (b) any and all deletions of

Records previously entered into the Outstanding File. The Bank will not be liable for the return or payment of any

check if it does not receive timely and accurate instructions from the Client with respect to adding or removing

such check to or from the Outstanding File. Each Business Day, the Bank will perform an automated

review comparing the MICR-encoded information on each check presented for payment against

the Account with the Outstanding File. The Bank will perform a manual review of each check rejected by the

automated review and will repair damaged MICR lines and identify any other checks that appear to be

properly payable. The Client requests that the Bank pay, and the Bank shall pay, all checks that the Bank

identifies through the automated or manual review as matching the serial number and dollar amount of

a Record. All other checks will remain on the Outstanding File.
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3. Exception File. Each Business Day prior to 8:00 A.M. (Central Time), the Bank will endeavor to make available to
the Client information containing the records of checks presented for payment against the Account the previous day
(such information hereinafter called the “Exception File”), which (a) have serial numbers that

do not match the serial number  contained  in  any  Record  on  the  Outstanding  File or  (b)  have  serial

numbers that match  serial numbers contained on records on the Outstanding File, but have a different dollar amount,
payee and issued date than such Records.

4. Return Checks. Each Business Day before 10:00 A.M. (Central  Time), the Client will  instruct the Bank (via any

means approved by the Bank) to return or    pay                    each               individual  check  corresponding   to  the records on the Exception
File made available to the Client by the Bank on such day. The Client must indicate for every check to be

fails          to                     respond   the Bank will post and pay each check corresponding to a record on the Exception File for 
which the Client has provided no specific instructions (provided there are sufficient funds to cover such

checks in the  Account) and   the   Bank    shall  not   be   liable   for   damages   caused by   the  payment  of    any   such    checks. 
The  Client  waives any claim of  wrongful  dishonor  of  any  such  checks  paid  because  the  Client  did  not provide  
timely instructions  to  pay  checks  appearing  on  the  Exception File The Client understands      and     agrees  that  th           e   
Bank cannot          return       checks that       have                              been         cashed                                                                                  over-the-counter prior  to  the  time  that  the  Client  instructs  the  
Bank to  pay  or  return  such  checks. The  Bank  shall  not  be  bound by any  Set  up  Form unless  and  until  an 
authorized  representative  of  the  Bank  has executed  such  Set   Up  form.   As      used     herei  n ,                             the   te                 rm            “Business    Day”  
means    Monday                     through                      Friday,                              except  federal  holidays and any               other days on which               banks in the State of        Texas 
are  authorize to  close.

5. Check Documents. The Client agrees at all times to use high quality check documents in accordance with the

Bank’s check      printing and MICR specifications.

6. Termination.  Any  provisions  contained  in  the  Treasury  Management  Services  Agreement (or Cash

Management Services Agreement) between  the  Client  and  the  Bank  that  may  be  to  the  contrary  not

withstanding, this  Agreement  may be terminated  at any time by either party         upon  notice to the other party.

7. Effective Date.    This            Agreement                     shall     be   generally                        effective   as of   the              date    of       its    execution.    However,           services  s
shall  not commence  until the  date  that the  Bank  has  received  and  has had  a  reasonable  opportunity  to  act

upon all information and  instructions  from  the  Client  that  the  Bank  may  require.

8. Manual Return Fee. If the Client fails to notify the bank by the previously specified regarding returns and a manual
return is required by the bank a fee will be assessed to the client of $50/day. Manual returns can ONLY be conducted
after 10am and prior to 3pm. Failure to request a manual return of an item may result in that item being paid at a loss to
the client.

returned  that  it either (a) is an unauthorized  check or (b) has been materially altered after issuance. If the Client
,

.
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EXHIBIT A TO POSITIVE PAY AGREEMENT 

Positive Pay Set Up form 

This Positive Pay Set Up Form is the Positive Pay Set Up Form referenced in, and made part of, that 

certain Positive Pay Agreement (the “Positive Pay Agreement”), by and between TXN Bank (the 

“Bank”) and ________________________________________ (the “Client”); The Client makes the 

following selections with respect to the Bank’s Positive Pay service for the accounts indicated:  

     Account Number  

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

 Account Name 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

_________________________ 

Unless otherwise specifically defined herein, all terms defined by the provisions of the Positive Pay Agreement shall 

have the same meanings ascribed to such terms by the provisions of the Positive Pay Agreement when used herein. 

If the Client has selected the Default to Pay Option and if the Client fails to otherwise direct the Bank within 

the time frames set forth in the Positive Pay Agreement, checks corresponding to records on the Exception 
File for which no specific instructions have been received will be posted and paid (provided there are

sufficient funds to cover such checks in the Account), and the Bank shall not be liable for damages caused by 

the payment of any such checks in the Exception File. This Positive Pay Set up Form supersedes all previous

Positive Pay Set up Forms with respect to the accounts listed above.  

TXN BANK

_________________________________ 
Signature  

_________________________________ 
Printed Name 

_________________________________ 
Title 

CUSTOMER 

_________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 

_________________________________ 
Printed Name 

_________________________________ 
Title 
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EXHIBIT B TO POSITIVE PAY AGREEMENT

Positive Pay Opt Out Form

This Positive Pay Opt Out Agreement is the Positive Pay Form referenced in, 

and  made part  of,  that certain Positive Pay  Agreement  (the “Positive Pay Agreement”), by 
and  between  TXNBank  (the “Bank”) and ________________________________________ 
(the “Client”)

i) Unless otherwise specifically defined herein, all terms defined by the provisions of the Positive Pay Agreement

shall have the same meanings ascribed to such terms by the provisions of the Positive Pay Agreement when used

herein. If the Client has selected to Opt out of Positive Pay and if the Client fails to otherwise direct the Bank

within the time frames set forth in the Positive Pay Agreement (Exhibit B), checks will be posted and

paid (provided there are sufficient funds to cover such checks in the Account), and the Bank shall not be

liable for damages caused by the payment of any such checks . This Positive Pay Opt Out Form supersedes

all previous Positive Pay Forms.

ii) The Client must notify TXNBank of a check that is unauthorized, altered/fictitious or contains a fraudulent
endorsement in the time frame set forth by TXNBank in accordance with the UCC (Uniform Commercial Code). The
time frame to notify the bank of an unauthorized check is by 10AM the following business day in which the check
was presented. 

TXN BANK

_________________________________ 
Signature  

_________________________________ 
Printed Name 

_________________________________ 
Title 

CUSTOMER 

_________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 

_________________________________ 
Printed Name 

_________________________________ 
Title 

 I, ________________________, have chosen not to participate in Positive Pay offered by TXN Bank. As such, I 
agree that I (the "Client") am responsible for the reconciliation of checks presented to the accounts and agree to 
indemnify and hold TXN Bank harmless from any losses or liabilities it may suffer or incur as a result of the Bank 
paying a check.

_______________________________________________



CASH MANAGEMENT SERVICE AGREEMENT 

AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE (ACH) 

ORIGINATOR AGREEMENT 

This agreement is for Cash Management Services provided by TXN Bank, N.A. ("Financial Institution") 
(customer name). This agreement does not replace the existing Deposit 

Account Terms and Conditions. Both parties agree that the services described and provided by Financial Institution will 
be subject to the terms and conditions set forth below: 

1. Rules & Prerequisites

The Cash Management services to be provided by Financial Institution to Customer, permits Customer to obtain certain 
account information reporting, electronic funds transfer services, and other account maintenance functions, by means of 
INTERNET, hereinafter referred to as "Services". Services are provided by the Financial Institution for access and use 
by the customer. The Cash Management services only allows the CCD, CTX and PPD SEC codes to be used. All other 
codes are not allowed and will be blocked. 

The Company acknowledges receipt of a copy of the operating rules of NACHA (as amended from time to time, the "Rules"). 
The Company agrees to comply with and be bound by the Rules as in effect from time to time and acknowledges that entries 
may not be initiated that violate the laws of the United States. The Financial Institution agrees to inform the Company of 
revisions to the Rules of which the Financial Institution has knowledge. 

Subsection 2.2.2.1 ODFI Must Enter Origination Agreement with Originator an Origination Agreement with each Originator 
must include, at a minimum, each of the following: (a) The Originator must authorize the ODFI to originate entries on 
behalf of the originator to receivers' accounts; (b) The Originator must agree to be bound by these Rules; (c) The 
Originator must agree not to originate entries that violate the laws of the United States; (d) Any restrictions on the types 
of entries that may be originated; (e) The right of the ODFI to terminate or suspend the agreement for breach of these 
Rules in a manner that permits the ODFI to comply with these Rules; and (f) The right of the ODFI to audit the 
Originator's compliance with the Origination Agreement and these Rules. 

Subsection 2.2.2.2 ODFI Must Enter Origination Agreement with Third-Party Sender an ODFI must enter into an 

Origination Agreement with each Third Party Sender for which the ODFI will originate Entries. The Origination Agreement 

must include each of the following: (a) The Third-Party Sender, on behalf of the Originator, must authorize the ODFI to 

originate Entries on behalf of the Originator to Receivers' accounts; (b) The Third-Party Sender must agree to be bound by 

these Rules; (c) The Third-Party Sender must agree not to originate Entries that violate the laws of the United States; (d) 

Any restrictions on the types of Entries that may be originated; (e) The right of the ODFI to terminate or suspend the 

agreement, or any Originator of the Third-Party Sender, for breach of these Rules in a manner that permits the ODFI to 

comply with these Rules; (f) The right of the ODFI to audit the Third-Party Sender's and its Originators' compliance with 

the Origination Agreement and these Rules; and (g) The Third-Party Sender must agree that, before permitting an 

Originator to originate any Entry directly or indirectly through the ODFI, it will enter into an agreement with the Originator 

that satisfies each of the requirements of Subsection 2.2.2.1 (ODFI Must Enter Origination Agreement with Originator). 

Subsection 2.5.8.3 Origination Agreements for IAT Entries an Origination Agreement between an ODFI or Third-Party 

Sender for IAT Entries must specify, in addition to the requirements of Subsection 2.2.2(ODFI Agreement with Originator, 

Third-Party Sender, or Sending Point): (a) the terms and conditions for the allocation of gains, losses, and the assumption 

of risk for foreign exchange conversions, and (b) the rights and responsibilities of the ODFI in the event of an Erroneous 

Entry. 

to 



2. Transmission of Entries: Security Procedures

The Company will transmit all debit and credit (PPD and/or CCD) entries to the Financial Institution at the location, on or 

before the deadlines, described on the Sample Deposit Schedule Attachment to this Agreement in accordance with the 

attached Security Procedures.  The Company will confirm all entries to the format, content and specifications contained 

in the Rules and this Agreement.  The Company authorizes the Financial Institution to transmit all entries received by the 

Financial Institution from the Company in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and to credit or debit entries to 

the specified accounts. 

We recommend machines and networks used for ACH Origination are up to date with industry best practices, including 

but not limited to anti-virus, anti-malware, anti-spyware, operating system patches, ancillary system patches, etc.  In 

addition, if information online to place a block on your account (and change your password ASAP).  Company is required 

to notify financial institution if they experience a data security breach. Should you receive any communication from us 

that you feel may be fraudulent, please contact us at 830-426-2066. 

3. Financial Institution Obligations

In a timely manner and in accordance with the Rules, the Financial Institution will process, transmit, and settle for the 

PPD or CCD entries received from the Company which comply with the terms of the Agreement, including the security 

procedures, ODFI will verify the Originator is not a blocked party and that a good faith effort will be undertaken to 

determine, through the normal course of business that the originator is not engaged in transmitting funds to, from or on 

behalf of a party subject to a blocking action. 

4. Warranties

The Company warrants to the Financial Institution all warranties the Financial Institution is deemed by the Rules to make 

with respect to entries originated by the Company.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Company warrants and agrees that 

(a) each entry is accurate, is timely, has been authorized by the party whose account will be credited or debited and

otherwise complies with the Rules: (b) each debit entry is for a sum which, on the settlement date with respect to it, will

be owing to the Company from the party whose account will be debited is for a sum specified by such party to be paid to

the Company or is a corrections of a previously transmitted erroneous credit entry; (c) the Company has complied with all

prenotification requirements of the Rules; and (d) the Company will comply with the terms of the Electronic Funds

Transfer Act if applicable or Uniform Commercial Code Article 4A (UCC4A) if applicable and shall otherwise perform its

obligations under this Agreement in accordance with all applicable laws, regulations, and orders including, but not limited

to, the sanctions laws, regulations, and orders administered by OFAC and/or FINCEN.  The Company will retain the

original or copy of the customer authorization record as required by the rules for a period of not less than two (2) years

after termination or revocation of such authorization and will, upon request of the Financial Institution, furnish such

original or copy to the Financial Institution.  The Company will indemnify the Financial Institution against any loss, liability or

expense (including attorneys' fees and expenses) resulting from or arising out of any breach of any of the foregoing

warranties or agreements.

5. Provisional Credit

The Company acknowledges that the Rules make provisional any credit given for any entry until the financial institution 

crediting the account specified in the entry receives final settlement. If the financial institution does not receive final 

settlement, it is entitled to a refund from the credited party and the Originator of the entry shall not be deemed to have paid 

the party. 

6. Settlement

The Company will maintain an account with the Financial Institution at all times during the term of this Agreement. The 

Company will maintain in the account as of the applicable settlement date immediately available funds sufficient to cover all 

credit entries initiated by it. The Company authorizes the Financial Institution to debit its account on the applicable settlement 

date in the amount of each entry. 

7. Cancellation or Amendment

The Company shall have no right to cancel or amend any entry/file after its receipt by the Financial Institution. However, the 

Financial Institution shall use reasonable efforts to act on a request by the Company to cancel an entry/file before 



transmitting it to the ACH or crediting an on-us entry. Any such request shall comply with the Security Procedures Attachment 

to this Agreement. The Financial Institution shall have no liability if it fails to effect the cancellation. 

8. Rejection of Entries

The Financial Institution shall reject any entry, including an on-us entry, which does not comply with the requirements of 

Section 1 of this Agreement and may reject any entry if the Company is not otherwise in compliance with the terms of the 

Agreement. The Company authorizes the Financial Institution to not honor a transaction request if the Financial Institution 

believes not processing the transaction will protect the Company from fraud (ex: unable to confirm a transmission that is 

out of the ordinary for the Company such as a different day, differing amounts or unfamiliar recipients). The Financial 

Institution shall notify the Company by telephone of such rejection no later than the business day such entry would otherwise 

have been transmitted by the Financial Institution to the ACH or, in the case of an on-us entry, its effective entry date. The 

Financial Institution shall have no liability to the Company by reason of the rejection of any entry or the fact that such notice is 

not given at an earlier time than that provided for herein. The Financial Institution shall retain the right to reject any on-us 

transaction for any valid reason such as but not limited to insufficient funds or revoked authorization. 

9. Notice of Returned Entries

The Financial Institution shall notify the Company by secure email. telephone or fax of the receipt of a returned entry from the 

ACH no later than one business day after the business day of such receipt. The Financial Institution shall have no obligation to 

retransmit a returned entry if the Financial Institution complied with the terms of this Agreement with respect to the original 

entry. If a customer of the Company returns any transaction, then it is the Company's responsibility to collect any funds that 

are owed. The Financial Institution has no obligation to originate a transaction where authorization has been revoked. 

10. Reversals

The Company may initiate a reversing entry or file of entries as permitted by the Rules. 

11. Periodic Statement

The periodic statement issued by the Financial Institution for the Company's account will reflect entries credited and debited 

to the Company's account. The Company agrees to notify the Financial Institution within a reasonable time not to exceed 

thirty (30) days after the Company receives a periodic statement of any discrepancy between the Company's records and the 

information in the periodic statement. 

12.Fees

Fees payable by Customer for access to and use of the Internet Banking Services shall be at a rate specified by the Financial 

Institution's fee schedule, and amended from time to time. Financial Institution may change fees upon written notice to the 

company. 

13. Liability

(a) The Financial Institution shall be responsible only for performing the services expressly provided for in this Agreement

and shall be liable only for its negligence in performing those services. The Financial Institution shall not be responsible

for the Company's acts or omissions (including without limitation the amount, accuracy, timeliness of transmittal or due

authorization of any Entry received from the Company) or those of any other person, including without limitation any

Federal Reserve Financial Institution or transmission or communications facility, any Receiver or Receiving Depository

Financial Institution (including without limitation the return of an Entry by such Receiver or Receiving Depository Financial

Institution), and no such person shall be deemed the Financial Institution's agent. The Company agrees to indemnify the

Financial Institution against any loss, liability or expense (including attorneys' fees and expenses) resulting from or arising

out of any claim of any person that the Financial Institution is responsible for any act or omission of the Company or any

other person described in this Section 13(a).

(b) In no event shall the Financial Institution be liable for any consequential, special, punitive or indirect loss or damage which

the Company may incur or suffer in connection with this Agreement, including without limitation loss or damage from

subsequent wrongful dishonor resulting from the Financial Institution's acts or omissions pursuant to this Agreement.



(c) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing provisions, the Financial Institution shall be excused from failing to act or

delay in acting if such failure or delay is caused by legal constraint, interruption of transmission or communication

facilities, equipment failure, war, emergency conditions or other circumstances beyond the Financial Institution's control.

In addition, the Financial Institution shall be excused from failing to transmit or delay in transmitting an Entry if such

transmittal would result in the Financial Institution's having exceeded any limitation upon its intra-day net funds position

established pursuant to present or future Federal Reserve guidelines or in the Financial Institution's otherwise violating

any provision of any present or future risk control program of the Federal Reserve or any rule or regulation of any other

U.S. governmental regulatory authority.

(d) Subject to the foregoing limitations, the Financial Institution's liability for loss shall be limited to general monetary

damages not to exceed the total amount paid by the Company for the affected ACH service, as performed by the

Financial Institution under this agreement for the preceding 30 calendar days.

14. Inconsistency of Name and Account Number

The Company acknowledges that, if any entry describes the Receiver inconsistently by name and account number, payment 

of the entry may be made on the basis of the account number even if it identifies a person different from the named Receiver. 

15. Rejection Due to Excessive Exposure

The Financial Institution may from time to time assign maximum exposure limits for debit and credit entries submitted by The 

Company. See Attachment - Sample Exposure Limits. The Financial Institution may, but is under no obligation to, reject 

entries based on assigned exposure limits. The Financial Institution may provide The Company with the assigned exposure 

limits but The Financial Institution may change the assigned exposure limits at any time with no notice to The Company. The 

Financial Institution will inform The Company within one business day of The Financial Institution's decision not to process a 

transmittal of debit or credit entries due to The Company exceeding its assigned exposure limit(s). 

16. Data Retention

The Company shall retain data on file adequate to permit remaking of entries for five (5) business days following the date of 

their transmittal to the Financial Institution as provided herein and shall provide such data to the Financial Institution upon its 

request. 

17. Termination

The Financial Institution may amend the terms of the Agreement from time to time by notice to the Company. Either party 

may terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) days written notice to the other. The Financial Institution shall have no obligation 

to transmit entries if the Company is in default of its obligation under this Agreement, including the obligation to pay the 

Financial Institution for each credit entry. 

18. Signature Form

The Financial Institution shall be entitled to rely on any written notice believed by it in good faith to be signed by one of the 

Authorized Representatives whose names and signatures are set forth on the ACH Authorized Signature Form Attachment to 

the Agreement. 

19. Entire Agreement

This Agreement (including the schedules attached hereto), together with the Account Agreement, is the complete and 

exclusive statement of the agreement between the Financial Institution and the Company with respect to the subject matter 

hereof and supersedes any prior agreement(s) between the Financial Institution and the Company with respect to such 

subject matter. In the event of any inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and the Account Agreement, the terms 

of this Agreement shall govern. In the event performance of the services provided herein in accordance with the terms of this 

Agreement would result in a violation of any present or future statute, regulation, or a government policy to which the 

Financial Institution is subject and which governs or affects the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, then this 

Agreement shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to comply with such statute, regulation, or policy, and the 

Financial Institution shall incur no liability to the Company as a result of such violation or amendment. 

20. Non-Assignment



The Company may not assign the Agreement or any of the rights or duties hereunder to any person without the Financial 

Institution's prior written consent. 

21. Binding Agreement Benefit

This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective legal representatives, 

successors, and assigns. This Agreement is not for the benefit of any other person, and no other person shall have any right 
against the Financial Institution or the Company hereunder. 

22. Headings

Headings are used for reference purposes only and shall not be deemed a part of this Agreement. 

23. Governing Law

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the United States of America, the State 
of Texas, and the NACHA rules. 

Company Name 

Authorized Signature Date 

Printed Name 

Name of Financial Institution 

Authorized Signature  Date 

Printed Name 



AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE (ACH) ORIGINATOR AGREEMENT 

ATTACHMENT 

DEPOSIT SCHEDULE 

(for Corporate Originators) 

Consumer Debit Transactions 

Delivery Method Deadline Day of Delivery 

Paper 4:00 p.m. One Business Day Prior to Effective Date 

Diskette 4:00 p.m. One Business Day Prior to Effective Date 

Transmission 4:00 p.m. One Business Day Prior to Effective Date 

Consumer Credit Transactions 

Delivery Method Deadline Day of Delivery 

Paper 4:00 p.m. One or Two Business Days Prior to Effective Date 

Diskette 4:00 p.m. One or Two Business Days Prior to Effective Date 

Transmission1 4:00 p.m. One or Two Business Days Prior to Effective Date 



AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE (ACH) ORIGINATOR AGREEMENT 

ATIACHMENT 

SECURITY  PROCEDURES 

Written Notice or Communication 

The Financial Institution shall be entitled to rely on any written notice or other written communication believed by it in good 

faith to be genuine and to have been signed by the Authorized Representative, and any such communication shall be 

deemed to have been signed by such person. 

Personal Computer File Transmission 

The Company's Authorized Representative will access the ACH system by utilizing the prearranged logon procedures, 

remote ID, and file ID. 

The Company's Authorized Representative will provide the Financial Institution with verification of the totals contained in the 

transmission by sending a facsimile transmission or secure email to the Financial Institution's ACH Contact. In the event that 

the Company or the Authorized Representative is unable to fax or securely email the information, the Company's Authorized 

Representative will telephone the Financial Institution's ACH Contact with the verification and fax or send through secure 

email the information as soon as they are able. 

The Financial Institution will anticipate the receipt of an ACH transmission from the Company on each scheduled processing 

date identified by the Company in writing and agreed to by the Financial Institution. The Company's Authorized 

Representative will notify the Financial Institution if a transmission will not take place on the prearranged scheduled 

processing date. The Company is responsible for ensuring that the Financial Institution receives the transmission on each 

processing date indicated in the processing schedule. 

The Financial Institution will verify that the file totals agree with the Company information given by the Authorized 

Representative. In the event of a discrepancy in the totals, the Financial Institution will call the specified Company Authorized 

Representative designated by an authorized signatory of the Company. If an Authorized Representative is not available for 

notification, then the file will not be processed until the Company's Authorized Representative can be contacted on the next 

business day. Once the file is processed, the Financial Institution will contact the Company informing them the file was 

sent.  

The Company is solely responsible for the accurate creation, modification, and deletion of the account information maintained 

on the Company's personal computer and used for ACH money transfer. The Company agrees to comply with written 

procedures provided by the Financial Institution for the creation, maintenance, and initiation of ACH money transfers. 

The Company is solely responsible for access by its employees of the data files maintained on the Company's computer. 

The Company is responsible for operator security procedures on any personal computer used for the transmission of files. 

The Company authorizes the Financial Institution to not honor a transaction, if the Financial Institution in its sole discretion, 

believes not processing it will protect the Company from fraud (ex: a file is submitted on a non-regular scheduled day and the 

financial institution is unable to contact the Company, or a file is submitted for a substantially different amount than regular 
files and/or contains transactions to a foreign bank) 

Hand-Delivered Files 

The Company's Authorized Representative will hand-deliver file(s) to the designated location. Each hand-delivered file will be 

accompanied by a transmittal register, signed by an authorized signatory of the account. 

The Financial Institution will anticipate the receipt of an ACH file from the Company on each scheduled processing date 

identified by the Company in writing and agreed to by the Financial Institution. The Company's Authorized Representative will 

notify the Financial Institution if a file will not be delivered on the prearranged scheduled processing date. The Company is 



responsible for ensuring that the Financial Institution receives the file in the ACH processing area on each processing date 
indicated in the processing schedule. 

The Financial Institution will verify that the file totals agree with the Company information given by fax or phone. In the event 

of a discrepancy in the totals, the Financial Institution will call the specified Company Authorized Representative designated 

by an authorized signatory of the Company. If an Authorized Representative is not available for notification, then the file will 

not be processed until the Company's Authorized Representative can be contacted on the next business day. 

No list of security practices can be all inclusive or foolproof for preventing theft. If a fraudulent payment order is received by 

the financial institution in compliance with our normal security procedures, the risk of loss resides with the Company. 



AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE (ACH) ORIGINATOR AGREEMENT 

ATTACHMENT 

ACH ORIGINATION FEE SCHEDULE 

$ 0 Software Licensing Fee 

$ 0 Additional Software Training (if needed) 

$ 0 Monthly Maintenance 

$ 0 Per Transmission or File 

$      0 Per Transaction Originated 

$  0 Return Items/Notification of Change 



AUTOMATED CLEARING HOUSE (ACH) ORIGINATOR AGREEMENT 

ATTACHMENT 

Date:

ACH AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE FORM 

Originating Company Name: 

Originating Company Account No: 

The signatures below are the signatures of employees authorized by our  board of directors with full authority to sign 
transmittal  registers used in conjunction with  the deposit of ACH files. An administrator for the Company will be responsible 
for issuing user credentials to submit ACH transmissions to the bank, and for keeping those users current. 

Name 

By signing below, I acknowledge that I am responsible for administration of Company users, and the financial institution may 

rely on instructions from listed individuals. 

Authorized signature: 

Title:

Phone email address



DISCLOSURE OF EXPOSURE LIMITS 

CREDIT ORIGINATION: 

Maximum File Value 

Maximum Frequency 

DEBIT ORIGINATION: 

Maximum File Value 

Maximum Entry Value 

Maximum Frequency 

MAXIMUM NET SETTLEMENT LIMIT 

Frequency 

$

weekly

0.00

0.00

n/a
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TRI-PARTY PLEDGE  

AND SECURITIES CUSTODIAL AGREEMENT 

This Tri-Party Pledge and Securities Custodial Agreement (“Agreement”)_is entered into 

this ______ day of ___________________ 20_____, by, between, and among Frost Bank, a Texas 

state bank approved to act as a safekeeping bank (hereinafter, “Custodian”), 

______________________________________, a financial institution authorized to do business 

a public entity (hereinafter, “Secured Party”) (Custodian, Pledgor and Secured Party sometimes 

collectively referred to herein as the “Parties”).  

RECITALS 

A. Secured Party, a Texas _____________________________ required or entitled

under the Texas Public Funds Collateral Act to obtain a pledge of assets to secure the uninsured 

portion of its deposits of public funds, has designated Pledgor as a depository to receive demand 

deposits and time deposits for the  purchase of certificates of deposit by Secured Party or deposits 

of certain funds of the Secured Party.  

B. Pledgor has agreed to secure the uninsured portion of funds so deposited with it by

Secured Party, by granting and conveying to Secured Party a first priority security interest in 

certain eligible securities owned by Pledgor. 

C. Pledgor has selected Custodian, as an approved safekeeping or custodial bank,  to

hold securities, deposited by Pledgor with Custodian, in a safekeeping account on behalf of 

Secured Party. 

D. Pledgor and Secured Party wish to appoint Custodian, and Custodian has accepted

such appointment, as safekeeping bank to hold on behalf of Secured Party, in Custodian’s custodial 

capacity, securities pledged by Pledgor to Secured Party, in which Secured Party has a perfected 

security interest.   

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby 

agree as follows: 

TXN Bank

Uvalde Consolidated ISD

in __ _Texas____________ (hereinafter, “Pledgor”), and __Uvalde Consolidated ISD____________,

25
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1. Authorization of Custodial Services.  Pledgor and Secured Party appoint Custodian, and

Custodian hereby accepts the appointment, as safekeeping bank to accept and hold on behalf of 

Secured Party, in Custodian’s custodial capacity, securities pledged by Pledgor to Secured Party 

and deposited by Pledgor with Custodian into the following safekeeping account, incorporated 

herein by reference (the “Safekeeping Account”), pursuant to this Agreement: 

Account No.  _____________________________ 

Account Styling: _____________________________ 

Type of Account: _____________________________ 

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Safekeeping Account shall identify the 

Pledged Securities (as defined below) as held for the benefit of Secured Party. The Parties agree it 

is intended that Custodian act as a “securities intermediary,” as such term is defined in the Uniform 

Commercial Code as adopted from time to time in the State of Texas (the “UCC”), with respect 

to Pledged Securities. Pledgor authorizes Custodian to comply with all entitlement orders, and all 

other order and instructions, originated by Secured Party with respect to Pledged Securities, 

including, without limitation, any interest, dividends, proceeds or income therefrom, without 

further consent or direction from Pledgor or any other party, and Pledgor and Secured Party 

authorize Custodian to utilize any book-entry system and/or third-party depositories to the fullest 

extent permissible in connection with Custodian’s performance hereunder. Custodian agrees to 

and shall hold the Pledged Securities and apply the same, or any permitted substitutions or 

additions thereto, for the purposes set forth in this Agreement, upon the terms and conditions 

hereinafter set forth. 

2. Pledged Securities.  For the purpose of securing the uninsured portion of Secured Party’s

deposits of public funds with Pledgor, Pledgor  has agreed to pledge and constantly maintain, in

its Safekeeping Account with Custodian, eligible securities owned by Pledgor and on which

Secured Party shall have a lien to the extent of its deposits.  Custodian shall have no obligation or

duty to (i) verify the eligibility, type, genuineness, amount or marketability of any securities

pledged by Pledgor, or (ii) advise Pledgor in relation to the purchase, retention, sale, exchange,

disposition, or call for redemption of Pledged Securites or related instruments. Pledgor agrees to

take all actions reasonably necessary to determine the eligibility, type, genuineness, amount and

marketability of such securities, to perfect the pledge, and to confirm same to Secured Party. In

order to perfect the security interest of Secured Party in such pledged securities, Pledgor shall

deposit into the Safekeeping Account such pledged securities (hereinafter collectively the

“Pledged Securities”) identified on Exhibit A hereto, incorporated herein by reference, which

Pledged Securities shall be of one or more of the following kinds, and none other:

(1) United States Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds,

(2) Notes and Bonds of United States Agencies and Instrumentalities,

4370
TXN Bank
Safekeeping
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(3) Other Evidences of Indebtedness of the United States Government which are

guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States Government,

(4) Municipal bonds rated A or better.

The Parties intend and agree that this Agreement conveys a security interest in any and all such 

Pledged Securities deposited by Pledgor into the Safekeeping Account, as well as in any proceeds 

or permitted substituted collateral. The Pledged Securities shall not be less than _____% (the

“Mandatory Percentage”) [must be at least 102%] of the total amount of Secured Party funds, 

including accrued interest, on deposit at all times with Pledgor.  The kind, value, and substitution 

of such Pledged Securities shall be subject to prior approval by Secured Party.  The Parties intend 

that Secured Party shall have a first and prior lien on such Pledged Securities to the extent of its 

funds on deposit with Pledgor, and that none of such Pledged Securities shall be pledged or subject 

to any lien other than that of Secured Party.  The value of the Pledged Securities and on which 

Secured Party shall have its lien shall be determined by Pledgor as the current market value.  The 

final determination of such value shall be at the discretion of Secured Party, whose decision shall 

be final and binding.  Pledgor shall value the Pledged Securities no less than 

_____________________. 

If at any time the market value of the Pledged Securities becomes less than the Mandatory 

Percentage, Pledgor shall immediately pledge additional securities owned by it, upon which 

additional securities Secured Party shall also have its first and prior lien in such additional amount 

as required to provide not less than the Mandatory Percentage.  

If at any time the market value of the Pledged Securities becomes more than the Mandatory 

Percentage, Pledgor may make request to the Secured Party to release certain securities from the 

pledge to bring the total to the Mandatory Percentage. 

The Pledgor shall be solely responsible for monitoring and maintaining the required value and/or 

adequacy of the Pledged Securities at all times. 

3. Custodian’s Fees and Compensation.   Custodian shall be compensated by Pledgor for its

services hereunder in accordance with Custodian’s fee schedule in effect on the effective date of 

this Agreement, and as such fee schedule may be amended from time to time. Pledgor authorizes 

Custodian to make all necessary and proper debits and credits to the deposit account(s) of Pledgor 

with Custodian in connection with the performance of custodial services under this Agreement. 

4. Pledgor’s Reservation of Rights.  Upon deposit of Pledged Securities with Custodian

pursuant to this Agreement, and until such time as Custodian has received a Default Notice 

pursuant to Section 6 hereof and has had a reasonable time, not exceeding two (2) business days 

(any date Custodian is open for conducting substantially all business functions, hereinafter a 

110

monthly
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“Business Day”), to comply with and implement the Default Notice, Pledgor shall have the 

following rights in the Pledged Securities (unless otherwise agreed to in writing between Secured 

Party and Pledgor and confirmed in writing to Custodian): (i) to substitute and add securities in 

conformity with and pursuant to Section 8 of this Agreement, and (ii) to receive dividends, interest, 

income, or proceeds of sale, if any, from the Pledged Securities; provided, that Custodian shall 

have no obligation to Pledgor or Secured Party to collect or attempt to collect any interest, 

dividends, income or proceeds of sale on or with respect to any of the Pledged Securities. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Custodian shall accept any such interest, dividends, income or 

proceeds of sale as are tendered to it arising from the Pledged Securities, and shall transfer such 

funds to Pledgor, unless Custodian has received Default Notice pursuant to Section 6. 

5. Safekeeping; Custody Receipts and Statements.  On receipt, Custodian shall identify the

Pledged Securities on Custodian’s books and records, by book entry or other method as determined 

by Custodian. Pledgor shall issue and deliver a custody receipt (“Custody Receipt” or “Pledge 

Notification”) for the deposited Pledged Securities to Secured Party evidencing Custodian’s 

acceptance of the Pledged Securities pursuant to this Agreement, and clearly marked as “Pledged 

to __________________________________________”. 

Custodian shall permit a “Designated Official” of Secured Party to examine and inspect the 

Pledged Securities in the presence of the appropriate officials of Custodian at any time during 

normal business hours. 

The Pledgor and Custodian shall not be within the same holding company. 

6. Default by Pledgor.  If Custodian receives from Secured Party written notice that Pledgor

is in default (a “Default Notice”) of Pledgor’s obligations to Secured Party, including, without

limitation, for failure to perform under the terms of any agreement between Pledgor and Secured

Party secured by the Pledged Securities, then, notwithstanding any defense, claim or objection that

Pledgor may assert or have, Secured Party shall have full power and authority to direct Custodian

to transfer the Pledged Securities, in whole or in part, to Secured Party or its designee, together

with any accrued interest thereon. Upon transfer of any Pledged Securities to Secured Party,

Custodian shall have no duty to see to the proper application or use of any such Pledged Securities,

and Custodian shall not in any manner whatsoever be answerable to Pledgor for any loss,

missaplication or non-application of any such Pledged Securities by Secured Party.

7. Indemnification of Custodian: Exculpation.  Except in cases of the Custodian's gross

negligence or willful misconduct, Pledgor hereby agrees to indemnify Custodian and hold it

harmless from and against any and all claims, liabilities, losses, actions, suits or proceedings

at law or in equity (collectively, "Claims"), or any other expenses, fees or charges of any

character or nature which Custodian may incur arising out of or in any way relating to, or

 Uvalde Consolidated ISD
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by reason of Custodian's actions under this Agreement, including but not limited to, any 

Claims caused or alleged to be caused by the sole or concurrent negligence of Custodian, its 

employees or agents; and, in connection therewith, to indemnify Custodian against any and 

all expenses, including without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses incurred 

by  Custodian.  Custodian may itself defend any suit brought against it and shall be equally entitled 

to receive reimbursement from Pledgor, of its reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, and all fees 

and costs incident to any appeals which may result.  Pledgor and Secured Party agree that 

Custodian shall have no liability to either of them for any loss or damage that either or both 

may claim to have suffered or incurred, either directly or indirectly, by reason of this 

Agreement or any transaction or service contemplated by this Agreement, regardless of 

whether such loss or damage is caused or alleged to be caused by the sole or concurrent 

negligence of Custodian, its employees or agents, unless occasioned solely by the gross 

negligence or willful misconduct of Custodian.  In no event shall Custodianbe liable for losses 

or delays resulting from computer malfunction, interruption of communication facilities, labor 

difficulties or other causes beyond the Custodian's reasonable control, or for indirect, special or 

consequential damages. Pledgor and Secured Party further agree that Custodian shall be entitled 

to recover and receive from the value of the Pledged Securities all funds, fees or charges of any 

kind or character due to Custodian from Pledgor pursuant to the indemnity provisions of this 

Section 7, and Custodian’s reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses arising out of or in any way 

relating to an action in the nature of an interpleader. Such claims of Custodian shall have priority 

status, subject to any claims of Secured Party, as among any claims asserted against the Pledged 

Securities. 

8. Release, Substitution and Additions of Pledged Securities.  Subject to Section 14 of this

Agreement, Custodian shall not release, transfer, substitute, or otherwise dispose of Pledged

Securities except on the prior written consent of Secured Party substantially in the form of Exhibit

“B” hereto, as amended from time to time. Unless and until such time as Custodian receives a

Notice of Default pursuant to Section 6 of this Agreement, Pledgor may substitute securities with

other eligible securities of like kind and market value as those of the Pledged Securities for which

they are to be substituted. Custodian shall have no obligation or responsibility to verify eligibility,

kind, or market value of any proposed substituted securities, or otherwise of the substitutability of

any securities. In the event Secured Party consents to substitution of Pledged Securities pursuant

to this Section, Custodian shall release to Pledgor any of the Pledged Securities upon receipt of

the substituted securities therefor, and when such substitution is made, shall provide a receipt to

Pledgor describing both the securities substituted and those of the Pledged Securities released, and

Pledgor shall promptly provide such receipt to Secured Party. Upon such substitution, all rights

and obligations of Pledgor, Secured Party and Custodian hereunder shall automatically apply to

all such substituted securities. Delivery to Pledgor or its designee of any Pledged Securities in

compliance with this Section shall constitute a complete release and discharge of Custodian from

all responsibilities and obligations under this Agreement with respect to such released Pledged
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Securities. Additionally, Pledgor may deposit with Custodian such additional securities for which 

Pledgor has obtained Secured Party’s written approval, provided Pledgor transmits such written 

approval to Custodian. Upon deposit of such approved additional securities with Custodian, 

Custodian will provide Pledgor a receipt identifying the additional securities.  

9. Interest Payments.   The Custodian is directed to surrender all interest payments or other

evidences of interest, when due, on Pledged Securities, provided that remaining Pledged Securities

are sufficient to meet or exceed the Mandatory Percentage.

10. Representations by Pledgor.  Pledgor represents and warrants to Secured Party and

Custodian that the Pledged Securities are genuine and are freely negotiable, that Pledgor owns the

Pledged Securities free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests and encumbrances, other

than as granted to Secured Party or as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, and that Pledgor has

such ownership and rights in the Pledged Securities sufficient to grant and convey a security

interest therein in favor of Secured Party pursuant to this Agreement and any agreement in place

between Pledgor and Secured Party.

11. Custodian’s Reliance.  Pledgor and Secured Party acknowledge and agree that Custodian,

without liability to either party, may at all times act upon such instructions and authorizations of

designated officers of Pledgor and Secured Party as are consistent with the terms of this

Agreement, and shall at all times be entitled to rely upon any communication, writing or instrument

or signature which it, in good faith, believes to be genuine, may assume the validity and accuracy

of any statement or assertion made in such a communication, writing or instrument, and may

assume that any person purporting to give any communication, writing, notice, advice or

instructions in connection with the provisions of this Agreement has been so duly authorized. No

duty of independent investigation of any authorization or representation or advice made by Pledgor

or Secured Party shall be imposed on Custodian.

12. Custodian’s Duties.  Custodian undertakes to perform only such duties as are expressly set

forth in this Agreement, and makes no other representations or warranties of any kind with respect

to the safekeeping services to be provided hereunder, except as expressly set forth in this

Agreement. No implied duties or obligations shall be read into this Agreement against Custodian,

and no additional duties shall be imposed on Custodian hereunder or by operation of law,

including, without limitaiton, the duties of a trustee under a trust indenture.

13. Financial Statements.   Pledgor will send to Secured Party, on an annual basis, audited

annual financial statements.

14. Termination  This Agreement and the duties and responsibilies of the Parties hereunder

shall remain in effect until this Agreement is terminated. This Agreement shall terminate and be
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of no force and effect upon receipt by the Custodian of written notice from Secured Party that it 

no longer claims an interest in the Pledged Securities.  This Agreement may be terminated by the 

Custodian, with or without cause, upon its delivery of thirty (30) days prior written notice thereof 

to Secured Party and Pledgor of Custodian’s resignation as Custodian hereunder, and upon the 

expiration of such thirty (30) day period, all of Custodian's obligations hereunder shall cease.  

Upon the effective date of such termination, Custodian will simultaneously transmit all Pledged 

Securities in its possession hereunder as directed in writing by Secured Party.  Notwithstanding 

any of the provisions hereof, Secured Party shall have, and does hereby retain the right to utilize, 

other depositories and the right to terminate this Agreement whenever the interest of Secured Party 

may demand. 

15. Notices.  All notices, instructions, requests, demands or other communications required or

permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and given by (i) personal

delivery, (ii) reputable, expedited delivery service with proof of delivery, (iii) United States mail,

postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or (iv) electronic mail (email)

or facsimile transmission, sent to the intended addressee at the addresses for notice listed on the

signature page(s) of this Agreement, or (v) entry on Custodian’s Safekeeping Online customer portal.

Any such Notice shall be deemed to have been received either, in the case of personal delivery, as

of the time of actual personal delivery, in the case of reputable, expedited delivery service, as of the

date of first attempted delivery at the address and in the manner provided herein, in the case of mail,

facsimile transmission or email, upon actual receipt, and in the case of entry on Custodian’s

Safekeeping Online customer portal, on the date of entry.  Any Party shall have the right to change

its address for notice hereunder to any other location within the continental United States by notice

to the other Parties of such new address at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of such

new address. Custodian shall have a reasonable period of time, not to exceed two (2) Business Days,

to comply with and implement any Notice actually received by Custodian from Secured Party or

Pledgor.

16. Severability.  Any portion of this Agreement held invalid or unenforceable by a court of

competent jurisdiction shall not impair or invalidate the remainder of this Agreement, and any

such portion shall be deemed modified and will be applied in a manner consistent with the

remainder of this Agreement and applicable law. In all such cases, the remainder of this Agreement

shall be considered valid and enforceable. Custodian, Secured Party and Pledgor agree that the

terms and provisions of this Agreement are contractual in nature and not merely recitals.

17. Amendments; Entire Agreement.   The provisions of this Agreement may not be amended,

supplemented, waived, or changed orally, except by a writing signed by all of the parties to this

Agreement. This Agreement, together with all schedules attached hereto, represents the entire

agreement by and between the Parties concerning the subject matter hereof and supersedes any

prior oral or written agreements by and between the Parties respecting the subject matter of this
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Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the provisions of this Agreement and any other 

agreement between Custodian and Pledgor (or any of its affiliates), the provisions of this 

Agreement shall control. 

18. Headings.  The headings, captions and arrangements used in this Agreement are for

convenience only, and shall not affect the interpretation of this Agreement.

19. Successors and Assigns. The rights created by this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of,

and the obligations created hereby shall be binding upon, the successors and assigns (where

permitted) of Custodian, Pledgor, and the Secured Party. This Agreement may not be assigned by

any Party without the prior written consent of Custodian, which consent shall not be unreasonably

withheld or delayed.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Secured Party may transfer its rights and

duties under this Agreement to a transferee to which, by contract or operation of law, Secured

Party transfers substantially all of its rights and duties under the arrangements in place between

Secured Party and Pledgor.

20. Governing Law.  This Agreement is being executed and delivered, and is intended to be

performed, in the State of Texas.  The laws of the State of Texas shall govern the validity,

construction, enforcement and interpretation of this Agreement.  This Agreement is performable

in Bexar County, Texas.

21. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of

which when taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement, and any of the Parties

may execute the Agreement by signing any of the counterparts. Signature pages may be delivered

by facsimile transmission and/or by electronic mail and will be binding without the need to

exchange original signature pages.

22. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. To the fullest extent permissible under applicable law,

each Party knowingly, voluntarily, irrevocably and unconditionally agrees to waive its right 

to trial by jury of any and all issues, claims, counterclaims, actions, causes or disputes 

relating in any way to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

To the fullest extent permissible under applicable law, each Party acknowledges that this is 

a waiver of a legal right and is made knowingly and voluntarily after consultation with 

counsel, and agrees that all such claims shall be tried before a judge of a court having 

jurisdiction, without a jury. 

23. Official Bank Board Action  In accordance with FIRREA requirements, the execution of

this agreement has been authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Bank and
entered into the Minutes.



Signature: _____________________________ Date: _________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 

Address for Notice: _______________________ 
______________________________ 

Email:  ______________________________ 

PLEDGOR: 

Signature: _____________________________ Date: _________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 

Address for Notice:  

Email:  

CUSTODIAN: 

Signature: _____________________________ Date: _________________ 
Name: _____________________________ 
Title: _____________________________ 

Address for Notice: Frost Bank 
ATTN: Custody Services 

 111 W. Houston St.  
San Antonio, TX 78205 

Telephone: 210-220-4799
Fax: 210-220-5986

9

TXN Bank

Olen Thompson
EVP

103 19th St.

EXECUTED, this_______day of______________,20____. 

_________________________

Hondo, Texas 78861
othompson@txn.bank
_________________________
_________________________

(Public Entity): _______Uvalde Consolidated ISD ______________________ 

Annette Vordenbaum
Highlight



Exhibit A 

PLEDGED SECURITIES 

Pledgor has assigned and pledged the following described Pledged Securities to Secured Party. Pledgor and 

Secured Party have appointed Custodian as safekeeping bank to hold the Pledged Securities on behalf of Secured 

Party, pursuant to the Tri-Party Pledge and Securities Custodial Agreement between Pledgor, Secured Party, and 

Custodian dated _______________________. Pledgor represents and warrants that, as of the date of the Tri-Party 

Pledge and Securities Custodial Agreement, the following described Pledged Securities are eligible and adequate 

to secure the uninsured portion of Secured Party’s deposits of public funds with Pledgor. 

Reference # CUSIP Current Par Market Value Description 

PLEDGOR: 

___________________________________ 

By: ________________________________ 

Printed Name: ________________________ 

Title: _______________________________ 

SECURED PARTY: 

____________________________________ 

By: _________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________ 

Title: ________________________________ 

Olen Thompson

EVP

TXN Bank

Uvalde Consolidated ISD
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